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CHAPTER 1 - MAYOR’S FOREWORD AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

COMPONENT A: MAYORS FOREWORD

Greater Kokstad Municipality have experienced the fast-growing population, which leads to hight demand of
service delivery. This is because of the position at which the municipality is located which attracts people from
the surrounding areas in search for greener pastures. This is what prompted the Council to take advantage of
the situation to also attract potential investors to the town. The municipal vision was crafted to map out the

development of the city in years to come, where economic opportunities will be realised not only by people of
Kokstad but for all South Africans.

Greater Kokstad Municipality Vision is “A People-Centred City of Economic Possibilities by 2047” This
vision was inspired by the current potential of the town in attracting investment even during difficult times of
COVID-19 and lock down. it derives its strength from the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, Act 108
of 1986: Section 152 which prescribes the principal mandates of the Local Government. As we are
approaching the end of the Council term, | can safely say we have managed to achieve most of our objectives
in paving a way towards attaining the City of Economic Possibilities.

The municipality successfully managed to develop and align its policies with the Provincial and National
development strategies, amongst others is the Sustainable Development Goals and African Union Agenda,
national plan priorities, national outcomes, state of the Nation Address, provincial priorities, provincial growth
and development strategy, Harry Gwala development plan, back to basics and others. Our IDP document
contains a full plan which clearly indicate the GKM response plan to each development policy area. Our IDP
has been for the past years rated amongst the top 10 in the province according to MEC comments as
responsive documents to the needs of our people. This 2020/21 annual report is a full account of the journey
we took as the municipality in ensuring that we respond fully to our community development needs and service
delivery as outlined in various government policies and strategies.

2020/2021 year was no of much difference as we are still faced by COVID-19. Our way of doing things is not
yet back to normal, however we managed to adjust well in new developments in ensuring that service delivery
is continuing as planned with less disruptions. In terms of our planning, the Municipality managed to deliver
capital projects successfully in areas of electricity which covers the upgrading of Shayamoya and Bhongweni
switch gear, bulk infrastructure substation still under construction, which is a multiyear project funded by the
department of Energy and the electrification of informal settlementin Marikana, chocolate city and Horseshoe.
We have supported a lot of LED initiatives in ensuring job creation and sustainability food security.

We continued with providing indigent support to our community, our register accommodated 4589 beneficiaries
who receive basic electricity, rates, burial and refuse removal.
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Greater Kokstad Municipality continue to maintain a healthy financial status, with Unqualified audit opinion
from Auditor General Report for the year under review and previous years.

With much achieved we however we are still facing chailenges of high unemployment rate especially among
youth, high crime rate characterised by house breaking and electricity cable theft, high rate of drugs abuse
and gender-based violence. We are working with all interest groups and government department in our strides
to fight these social ills.

We have managed {o involve communities in municipal programmes through Public Participation. Since the
start of this term all ward councillors were able to hold their monthly community meetings. This was made
possible by functional ward committees structures who are active with sound working relation with ward
councillors. All legislated public meetings such as IDP and Budget roadshows and tabling of Annual report to
community were successfully conducted. The municipality was able to reduce chances of community protests
through its active and effective rapid response team led by the Speaker of Council. This resulted in no
community protests since the beginning of the term.

The Council committed its focus on road infrastructure development and maintenance in the CBD area for the
coming years as a way of improving econamic networks. We are hoping to benefit immensely on the
development that is coming to Kokstad of the construction of N2 interchange. This project is going to improve
our road infrastructure further which connects Kokstad to Eastern cape. We are also working close with the
Department of Huan Settlements in providing interventions on the challenges we are facing of growing demand
of houses for middle income people, including renting facilities, the department has funded some of our
programmes which are under construction such as CRUs in ward 3 and R56 project.

Through our LED unit the municipality was able to secure partnership for development of small and emerging
businesses with small enterprise development agency (SEDA) MolU was signed with abjectives to increase
presence of SEDA in Kokstad by establishing offices in Kokstad, placement of Municipal funded intern to
ensure that the needs of SMME'’s are coordinated and fast-tracked. The offices are anticipated for operation
soon and will be based on the Light Industrial Park as a means to augment increased foot traffic in support of
the existing businesses in operation. The SEDA offices work in conjunction with the Greater Kokstad Business
Forum.

Partnership with the Moses Kotane Institute {entity of EDTEA) for the realisation of the Innovation Ignition
Programme and implementation of the ICT Hub. The Programme also seeks to train enterprise on how to do
business on different levels of technology.

The 2020/2021 annual report contain details of cur achievements in terms of implementation of IDP and
Budget. Some of our projects are still under planning phase while others are under construction. This report
details how this Council managed {o provide its oversight function over the implementation of its resolutions.
As we are left with few months we hope most of our targets will be achieved by the end of the term. We are
grateful for the development we see however more still need to be done fo ensure better community
development.

| thank you.
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COMPONENT B: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1. MUNICIPAL MANAGER'S OVERVIEW FOR 2020/2021 ANNUAL REPORT

Greetings to all the residents and stakeholders of Greater Kokstad Municipality. It is my
pleasure to inform you that the municipality has in consultation with all its stakeholders
drafted the Annual Report for 2020/2021 financial. Indeed, the financial year under review has
been a challenging year for Greater Kokstad Municipality. These challenges are compounded
by disasters, changes at top management level, cash flow challenges and the impact of Covid
19 on projected deliverables.

As outlined in Sections 151 and 152 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, the municipality is compelled to
deliver on its developmental mandate. Section 121 (1) of the Local Government: Municipal Financial Management Act
56 of 2003 (MFMA) read in conjunction with Section 46 of the Municipal Systems Act of 2000, stipulates that “Every
municipality and every municipal entity must for each financial year prepare an annual report” in accordance with its
guidelines and must also prepare a performance report reflecting the performance of the municipality and of each
external service provider during that financial year. In responding to the above legislative mandate, the administration
of Greater Kokstad Municipality has performed its duties in an increasingly volatile and changing environment which
required tough decisions to be taken to change the lives of the communities of Greater Kokstad Municipality.

The municipality remains committed to provide good quality services to the community and is committed to facilitate
sustainable human settlements, addressing the needs of the communities residing in informal settlements and
providing good quality basic services to all the communities within its jurisdiction. It is with great pleasure to update
you about the progress of Community Residential Units (CRU) which is under construction in ward 3. As at 30 June 2021,
176 Units at first floor slab level were constructed. The anticipated completion date is 30 August 2022. In support of
social and economic growth in the area, the municipality has prepared and adopted the Local Integrated Transport Plan
(LITP) for the period 2020 to 2025. This plan will assist the municipality to enhance its economic opportunities by
developing a well-maintained transport infrastructure and efficient transport network.

To achieve our objectives and goals, the municipality is guided by the Integrated Development Plan (IDP) which guides
our planning and management of the municipality. Our IDP is the true reflection of what was discussed with
communities during the IDP Roadshows. The adoption and the implementation of a credible Integrated Development
Plan (IDP) and a Spatial Development Framework continues to assist the municipality in realising the municipality’s
vision “A People-Centred City of Economic Possibilities by 2047.” To ensure improved access to appropriate basic
services and infrastructure the municipality completed installation of electricity in informal settlements. These backlogs
are gradually phased out and is dependent on the availability of funding.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank all the employees of Greater Kokstad Municipality, management, and
Council for the dedication and commitment demonstrated during the year under review. The team work indeed yielded
excellent results, it is an honour to serve in a municipality with determined employees who are innovative and
inspirational. | also wish to extend my sincere gratitude to the Kokstad community for their continued involvement in
the affairs of the municipality. Without you this would not have happened, and we thank you for that.

| thank you

SR Zwane

Municipal Manager
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1.2.  MUNICIPAL FUNCTIONS, POPULATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL OVERVIEW

Greater Kokstad Municipality provides Electricity, Refuse Removal, & Housing as part of the Basic Services.
It also provides Roads, Storm-water & Drainage together with Local Economic Development and the approval
of local building plans to local communities. Notwithstanding the legislative mandate to ensure service
delivery as a means to respond to the developmental nature of local government, the Municipality takes
cognizance in that the provision should strive to augment an improved socio-economic nexus.

The Greater Kokstad Council adopted its development vision, mission and core values as follows:

The formulation of Greater Kokstad Municipal Vision is based on the objective of the Local Government as
enshrined on the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, Act 108 of 1986: Section 152 which prescribes
the following as the principal mandates of the Local Government.

e To promote democratic and local government;

e Toensure the provision of services to communities in a sustainable manner;
e To promote social and economic development;

e To promote a safe and healthy environment; and,

e To encourage the involvement of communities and community organizations in the matter of local
government.

The mission statement of Greater Kokstad Municipality is:

1.2.1. VALUES OF GREATER KOKSTAD MUNICIPALITY

e Caring: Showing compassion whilst delivering services to its citizens

e  Accountability: Taking responsibility for decisions and actions taken.

e Transparency and honesty: openness and public involvement in municipal affairs.

e Integrity: professionalism, a commitment to ethics, and focus on justice and fairness and accountability.
e Efficiency: results orientation, cost effectiveness, superior performance, customer satisfaction.

e Professionalism: executing the mandate with diligence.

Fairness: threat all those who do work with the municipality equally.

L]
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e Dignity: respect for everybody.
e Respect: treating all clients and partners with respect.

11.2.2. DEVELOPMENT GOALS

Development goals for the GKM were developed based on the provincial goals as outlined in the PGDS and
are as follows:

e Ensure that all people have access to basic services

e Safe, healthy and sustainable living environment

e Employment of all employable people

e Increased investor confidence in the GKM

e To provide strong and decisive leadership

e Developed and capacitated institution

e To ensure human and utilization of natural resources are in harmony
e To foster social compact

e To create options for people on where and how they opt to live, work, play and pray.

11.2.3. POPULATION

The following table summarises key municipal statistics, and is explained briefly below:

Demographic | 2016 Census Survey 2001 Census
Indicators AT

Poptilation Size

Total Population 76 753 65 981 56 528
Age Structure

Population under 32.9% 30.6% 30.9%
15

Population 15to 64 64.9% 66.7% 66.7%
Population over 65 2.2% 2.7% 3%
Dependency Ratio

Per 100 (15-64) 54.0 499 51.4%
Sex Ratio

Males per 100 92.5 94.4 100.3
females

Population Growth

Per annum 3.44% 1.55% 9.74%
Labour Market

Unemploymentrate 31% 28.9% 41.2%
(official)

Youth n/a 36.3% 50.1%

unemployment rate
(official) 15-34

Education (aged 20 +)

No schooling 1.6% 4.1% 10.2%
Matric 34.9% 28.3% 18%
Higher education 95% 10.8% 7.7%
Household Dynamics

Households 24 397 19140 19 625

Page 10 of 353



Demographic 2016 Census Survey 2011 Census 2001 Census
Indicators

Average household

size

Female headed 43.7% 41.6% 43.9%
households

Formal dwellings 86.3% 83.6% 67.3%
Housing owned 56.7% 36.3% 28.2%
Household Services

Flush toilet 66.2% 60.1% 59.5%
connected to

sewerage

Weekly refuse 72.7% 74.0% 60.7%
removal

Piped water inside 27.0% 36.1% 14.7%
dwelling

Electricity for 88.6% 80.7% 49.9%
lighting

Table 1: Municipal Summary of Key Statistics
Source: www.statssa.gov.za

The population of the Greater Kokstad forms part of the ultimate objective of the development process, as
well as being a subject in the process, since the people provide labour and entrepreneurship for production
and consume the output of production. Likewise, demographic processes e.g. fertility, mortality and
migration determine the demographic outcomes such as size, age-sex structure and spatial distributions of
the population which affect the functioning of socio-economic processes of land use, labour absorption,
consumption and expenditure which in turn define the socio-economic outcomes in terms of income,
employment, education, health, housing etc. In short, this analysis will shade some light on the dynamics of
the Greater Kokstad Municipal population, which can then be used to develop strategic interventions.
These demographics characteristic analyses the socio-demographic and human settlement characteristics of
the Greater Kokstad Municipality.

POPULATION SIZE

The Greater Kokstad Municipality covers a total area of 2 680km?. It is a category B Municipality situated
within the Harry Gwala District of KwaZulu-Natal. Initially Statistics South Africa (Statssa) conducted a
population census once every 5 years i.e. 1996 and 2001, this interval was however changed to 10 years and
thus the last census was in 2011. In between the census, Statssa conducts a Community Survey (CS) and the
last one was in 2016. According to Statssa a population census, as defined by the United Nations, is “the total
process of collecting, compiling, evaluating, analysing and publishing or otherwise disseminating
demographic, economic and social data pertaining, at a specified time, to all persons in a country or a well-
defined part of the country”; i.e. a total count of the population. The CS on the other hand is a large-scale
household survey conducted by Statistics South Africa to bridge the gap between censuses. i.e. it is a
representative sample of the population.

As a result of this, the information from the Community Survey is only provided at a Municipal level and not
at ward level as compared to the 2011 census which goes down to the ward level and beyond. Prior to the
release of the CS results in 2016 there was a re-demarcation of the municipal wards. Statssa thus had to
delay the release of the CS results and realign the ward boundaries to the newly demarcated ward
boundaries e.g. population figures for Greater Kokstad from the CS before factoring in the new demarcatjon
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was 65 981; but after factoring in the re-demarcation it is 76 753. According to Statistics South Africa,
Community Census 2001, 2011 and Community Survey 2016, the total population of the Municipality was as
follows: -

Total Population

90000 e o
80000
70000
60000
50000
40000
30000
20000
10000

0

Total Population | Census 2001 Census 2011 - ” CS 2016 §
' mSeries1 | 56528 65981 76752 ‘

Source: Stats SA: Census 2001-2011; COMMUNITY SURVEY 2016

The table below illustrates the distribution of the population based on racial groups.

Table 1: Population Distribution per race (% of population)

Population Group

80000
70000
60000
50000
40000
30000
20000
10000

_ [T erael
Black african 5 Coloured Indian/asian White

‘mSeriesl | 68350 5637 377 2388

Source: Stats SA: COMMUNITY SURVEY 2016

Both statistics on table 1 above show that black people are dominant in the Municipality followed by
coloured people, then white people. Indians or Asians are the smallest population group in the
municipality.

AGE DISTRIBUTION

The Greater Kokstad Municipality shows a significant proportion of youth dependency. The overall
population is split between youth (0-14), working class (15 — 64) and the elderly (+ 65).

Page 12 of 353



According to Statistics South Africa Community Survey 2016, the youth population accounts for 32.9%, while
the working age population accounts for a majority of the population at 64.9%, while the elderly population
only makes up 2.2 of the population.

According to the Statistics South Africa Community Survey of 2016, the municipality has seen a rise in the
youth population from 27 177 in 2011 to 35034 in 2016 and working-class populations of 66.7%, and an
increase in the number of elderly people from 2.7% in 2011 to 3% in 2016 within the municipality.

40000
35000
30000
25000
20000
15000
10000

5000

Total Youth Population

Total Youth
Population

Census 2011

€S 2016 s

Ll Series1

27177

35034

33,50%
33,00%
32,50%
32,00%
31,50%
31,00%
30,50%
30,00%
29,50%
29,00%

Source: Stats SA: Census 2001-2011; COMMUNITY SURVEY 2016

Age 0-14

Age 0-14

Census 2001

Census 2011

CS 2016

| mSeries1

30,90%

30,60%

32,90%

Source: Stats SA: Census 2001-2011; COMMUNITY SURVEY 2016
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Working Age (15-64)

67,00% |
66,50%
66,00%
65,50%

Axis Title

65,00%
64,50%

Working Age (15-64) Census 2011 . cs2016 |
' mSeriesl 66,70% 64,90% l

64,00%

Source: Stats SA: Census 2001-2011; COMMUNITY SURVEY 2016

Elderly (65+)

67% |

67% |

66%

66%

65%

65% —
S Eiderty (657} Census 2001 | Census 2011 52016 |

| mSeries1 67% 66,70% 64,90%

Source: Stats SA: Census 2001-2011; COMMUNITY SURVEY 2016

Age Distribution by Sex
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5
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| | | | | i
00- 05- 10- 15 20- 25- 30- 35-|40- 45- 50- 55-| 60- 65-}570-§75-§80—§85+;
(04 09 14 19 24 29 34 39 44 49 |54 59 |64 69 74 79 84

EMale (13 11 10|10 12 14|12 | 4 |4 |3 |3 | 2 | 2 1,0 0 0 0
|WFemale| 12 /11| 9 |12/10(1220|5 |4 |4 |3 [ 2|21 /1 |1 0 0|

Source: Stats SA: Census 2001-2011; COMMUNITY SURVEY 2016

From the statistics, it can be concluded that the elderly population has increased to 3%.

As shown in graph above, the Greater Kokstad population is relatively young, with 70% of the population
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being youth under the age of 35, About 35% of the population is still school going pointing out a need to
strength the existing FET College and to attract more institutions of higher learning in the future. This
relatively young population signifies high potential for population growth in the future which further
exacerbates the supply and demand scenario for more housing, education and health services in the
foreseeable future. This means that the municipality, sector departments and NGOs must direct their
development plan in favour of the youth. This brings us to the key issues of concern in the area such as the
high unemployment rate, lack of skills, HIV&AIDS and substance abuse.

The segment of the population falling within the 15 — 64 age groups {which makes approximately 67% of the
population) would essentially be classified as the potentially economically active population of Greater
Kokstad Municipality. This data also means that there must be improved in-take of social security grants
especially the child support grants within the municipal area and economic growth to provide jobs for the
economically active population. The Municipality has a relatively small percentage of elderly people, which
brings to question whether people are not living to old-age, owing to untimely deaths or whether there is a
generation of people that have left the area and are enjoying old age elsewhere.

1.2.4. EDUCATION ' - , e

The education levels represented below states that a majority of the population has a primary and secondary
education. However, the tertiary education sector is very underdeveloped. This poses a major challenge for
the Municipality, as this indicates that there are a limited number of qualified or skilled individuals within
the labour pool.

From the statistic obtained, it can be concluded that a majority of the youth move away to obtain a tertiary
education. From the statistic obtained, it can be concluded that the most persons with institutional education
are located within ward 4 which accounts for 18.02% of the population who has a formal education. This is
closely followed by wards 1, 6 and 8 which accounts of 17.37%, 14.62% and 13.81%, respectively, of the
population who has a formal education.

According to the Statistics South Africa Census 2011, 83.87% of the Municipal population has some form of
formal education. However, according to the Statistics South Africa Community Survey 2016, this percentage
has increase by 2.59% to 86.46%, which equates to 66 355 persons as depicted in the tabie below:

15523 16508 13032

56 48 103 37 243
22 48 128 45 242
43 117 32 43 235
261 301 340 179 1081
105 38 117 29 288
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e - ] - -
- i  libiihle ; : .
Kokard | % | Dl »}é‘ﬁ:
. . - - e =
' %:“ s e ,zfm%:g: S
249 77 525 12 863
14 30 23 - 67
113 74 109 136 433
242 699 526 328 1795
1152 1088 1264 622 4127
788 400 387 273 1848
521 362 537 301 1721
528 467 1007 545 2548
212 377 428 178 1194
35 89 47 54 224
22 26 40 30 118
127 437 251 310 1125
415 155 165 148 884
211 235 735 122 1303
9769 23392 41823 19694 94679
3419 5999 10050 6010 25478
2538 4641 6718 4604 18501
1383 38 6141 4124 15566
2627 5735 10313 6172 24848
2708 5405 10832 6784 25830
3096 5545 14327 5880 25848
3388 6364 13303 5835 28890
3726 4736 8684 5977 23123
4150 6538 11729 7017 20434
5416 7224 14140 8156 34935
6666 8361 14792 10441 40260
6908 9900 14061 11361 42230
! _ ~ 76753 118346 197286 118480 510865
Scurce: Stats SA: Census 2011; COMMUNITY SURVEY 2016
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:1.2.5. HIV/AIDS

The municipality is dealing with HIV issues through Local Aids Council which is chaired by the Mayor and
Ward Aids Council chaired by ward Councillors. Department of Health is playing central role in relation to
prevention and management of the HIV pandemic.

(Food Security initiatives) (Social Behavior Change Awareness- Malcomess
High)

Here is the HIV Management Statistics within the Greater Kokstad Municipal area of jurisdiction:

Infant PCR test around 10 weeks | 110 133 171 115
Infant PCR test positive around

10 weeks 00 00 0 00
HIV test around 18 months 157 157 237

HIV test positive around 18

months 0 0 0

Inpatient death under 5 years

total 2.5 3.5 1.8 0.0
Children under 12 years sexually

assaulted rate 40.0 20.0 23.8 0.0
Maternal death in facility 0 01 01 0
TB client 5 years and older start

on treatment 103 58 110 37
ART client remains on ART end

of month - total 10950 11378 11442 11297
Antenatal 1st visit before 20

weeks rate 67.5 66.7 62.5 64.1
Antenatal client starts on ART

rate 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
Antenatal client HIV 1st test

positive rate 11.2 8.3 124, 9.1
HIV test around 18 months

positive rate 32 00 00

Infant PCR test positive around

10 weeks rate 00 00 00 0.0
Antenatal 1st visit before 20

weeks 337 282 | 337 250
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297
Antenatal client HIV 1st test
positive 40 25 49 27
Antenatal client starts on ART 45 32 57 33
Antenatal client eligible for ART
initiation 45 32 57 33
Antenatal client already on ART
at ist visit rate 75.0 77.9 68.7 74.0
Antenatal 1st visit total 499 423 539 390
Antenatal client HIV re-test
positive 1 5 2 5
Live birth to HIV positive woman | 170 174 156 126
Medical male circurncision 15
years and older 03 96 54 5
Medical male circumcision 10-14
years 3 31 1 1
Delivery in facility - total 546 508 516 362
Delivery 10-14 years in facility 3 6 1 1
Delivery 15-19 years in facility 112 103 99 77
STl treated new episode 901 986 1174 736
Screen for TB symptoms 5 years
and older 108.2 118.7 109.4 107.0
Screen for TB symptoms under 5
years 100.7 101.4 103.6 113.3
HIV client tested - male 5426 4943 4222 2491
HEV client tested (excluding
antenatal) - ferale 8107 8281 7445 4450
HIV test positive - new male 214 166 163 93
HiV test positive - new
{excluding antenatal) female 312 267 259 130
Female condoms distributed at
facility 6315 9046 7857 5620
Male condoms distributed at
facility 294400 483570 320030 243400
Sexual assault prophylaxis
(starter pack issued)
Sexual assault case seen - new 15 15 21 1010
Child referred from Phila
Mntwana Centre - Immunization | 22 5 16 6
Child offered deworming at Phila
Mntwana Centre by CCGs 120 605 541 0
Child referred from Phila
Mntwana Centre - Diarrhea 0z 0 00 0
Child referred from Phila
Mntwana Centre - TB 2 0 00 0
Child screened at Phila Mntwana
Centre 534 1511 1512 247
Vitamin A - CCG 1265 1410 1100 420
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Chapter 4; Part A to E of SPLUMA outlines requirements of SDF's at National, Provincial and at Municipal
level with various sections providing prescription for each sphere of government with regard to the SDF
preparation and content, section 12 of SPLUMA specifically requires that all spheres of government compile
SDF’s for their areas of jurisdiction; Part E provides for the preparation and content of a Municipal SDF. Part
E defines the status of a SDF.

The GKM 2020-2021 Adpoted SDF serves as a strategy to interpret and represent the Spatial Development
Vision of the Municipality. The vision must be designed toc enable sustainable development throughout the
municipality while the planning process will address the challenge to balance imperatives of economic
efficient, social and environmental integrity.

Furthermore, SPLUMA Section 20 provides that Municipal SDF’s, must be prepared as part of a Municipality’s
Integrated Development Plan in accordance with section 26 {e) of the Local Government Municipal Systems
Act No. 32 of 2000.

In the past many Municipalities, have developed SDF’s, either in silos or supported {technically and/or
financially) by the Department of Rural Development and Land Reform (DRDLR) or by their respective
Provinces. Different SDF development approaches were applied depending on who was managing or has
been contracted to undertake the project.

In 2014 DRDLR commissioned the development of Comprehensive SDF Guidelines as a response to the
current modus-operandi. The process of developing the guidelines was extensive and inclusionary. All
relevant stakeholders were consulted, and the comments received were instrumental in shaping the final
product. These guidelines will form part of the SPLUMA regulations in as fast as the development of SDF’s
concerned. These guidelines have been implemented and tested since their development to ascertain their
effectiveness in addressing the current challenges and shortcomings with regard to the development process
and the content of the SDF’s.

The SDF must have a set of objectives, strategies and policy guidelines that direct development and
development options to ensure that the envisaged long term urban and rural structure and target
deliverables are realised. The SDF should find a balance between Environmental and Development especially
since the economic base (agriculture, tourism, retail and manufacturing) are reliant on the natural resources
of its existence. This objective shall be achieved by the development of a SDF in GKM in compliance with the
provisions of these guidelines,

The SDF shall be amended accordingly and made credible. Compliance with the following important aspects
of an SDF indicated in the Chapter 4 of SPLUMA must be adhered to Section 12 subsection (1} (a) to (o)
stipulates generally the areas an SDF must cover. In particular, section 21 (a) to {p) prescribes over and above
the parameters of preparing for the development of a MSDF.

The SDF must give effect to the development principles contained in SPLUMA:

_ Spatial Justice

_ Spatial Sustainability
_ Efficiency

_ Spatial Resilience

_ Good Administration
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Greater Kokstad Municipality has three urban nodes Kokstad Town, Swartberg and Franklin. Kokstad Town
is the major economic center due to its strategic location in terms of transport network, economic and
administrative activities. The National Route (N2} links the area to the major economic nodes such as Port
Shepstone and Durban in the KwaZulu-Natal Province and Mthatha in the Eastern Cape Province. The R56
links Kokstad to Ixopo and Pietermaritzburg. The strategic location of Kokstad creates opportunities for
economic growth. Emanating from the spatial location of the area is high population growth rate due to high
migration of people from the Eastern Cape and Lesotho into the area in search for employment
opportunities. The municipality is therefore faced with a challenge of planning, providing basic services,
housing and creating employment opportunities for its growing communities.

There are also land reform projects in rural areas like Pakkies | and 2 and Kransdraai. Apart from the built
environment, there are also agriculture, indigenous forests and areas of biodiversity. The municipality
acknowledges the relationship between the built and the natural environment and has adopted an
integrated approach to development and protection of the natural environment.

One major spatial challenge facing the municipality is illegal occupation of land for housing purposes. The
municipality has no systems in place to deal with the situation. However, the implementation of Land Use
Management System and the preparation of by-laws {to be prepared after the Land Use Scheme has been
completed) will enable the municipality to control land use and apply to court to demolish any structure that
is in contravention of its Land Use Scheme. This will contribute towards orderly and harmonious
development.

The following spatial characteristics, issues and challenges impact on the future development of the Greater
Kokstad Municipality and need to be taken forward in the IDP Process:

o lllegal occupation of land for informal housing purposes.

* Mushrooming of informal settlements on flood line and protected wetland areas.

e Kokstad town is presently not presenting a very good image for Greater Kokstad Municipality, due to the
character of key infrastructure.

e There is minimal integration of environmental, land use and transport management system.

e A need exists to redirect growth and development to the previously disadvantaged areas and areas of
economic opportunity while focusing on the redevelopment of deteriorating areas within the municipal
area.

e There has been a substantial increase in the number of illegal small business operators that are
conducting business from home without permission. This has given rise to traffic and safety problems as
++these areas were not designed for such purposes.

* Infrastructure like roads, electricity, and telephones, the main services are in the urban areas.
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11.2.7. LAND REFORM

The implementation of the land reform program within Greater Kokstad Municipality has progressed very
slowly. There are a number of land claims that have been lodged on farms in Greater Kokstad.

The priority redistribution is in the Pakkies area (PORTION 3(1) OF THE FARM MELKSPRUIT NO 293.) The only
transferred redistribution claim within the study area is the Kokstad Commonage redistribution project. It
includes the farm Kranzfontain and is located to the east and south east of Bhongweni.

The map below indicates all the land reform projects within the Greater Kokstad municipality.

The role of local government in supporting the land reform program remains one of the poorly defined and
uncoordinated activities in the integrated development planning process. The land reform affects the local

communities, yet it is implemented by a national government department with limited consideration of the
IDPs.

The primary aim of the Land Reform Program is to broaden access to land and address the historical
imbalances in the land ownership pattern in South Africa. It is a complex program and affects a number of
development sectors including agriculture, housing, conservation, commerce, and industry.
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As such, it is imperative for the program to be implemented in a cooperative manner with all the spheres of
government making firm commitments to support and integrate the program into their planning and service
delivery initiatives.

Similarly, these documents do not provide an adequate strategic framework for dealing with the land
guestion. Land issues are complex and intricate with some of them ({labour tenants and fand restitution)
being rights driven. Therefore, land reform is considered as one of the most significant programs that
promise to make a major contribution to economic growth, poverty alleviation, and nation building, As such,
its implementation should be embedded in the notion of sustainable and integrated development.

Notwithstanding the aforementioned limitations, and given that land reform and redistribution remains the
responsibility of the Department of Rural Development and Land Reform {DRDLR) the Municipality retains
its responsibility in facilitating access to opportunities. In respect to the Kranzfontein Farm, the Municipality
has provided and facilitated support to emerging farmers who have access to the farm. Mechanisation, land
preparation and the distribution of seedlings together with mentorship from the Department of Agriculture
and Rural Development {DARD) to sustain activities initiated through the 2018/2019 partnership with UKZN
{School of Agriculture} has ensured access to markets and participation in the RASET programme. Albeit
limited in the support provided to date, the Municipality and DARD through the established AGRIFORUM
continue to strive for increased opportunities and market access.

The Municipality through the Local Economic Development unit now holds a voting seat on the District
Allocations Committee which considers the leasing of farms acquired by DRDLR. The achievement has
realised the allocation of the Chris Fey Farm (Diary Production) to a local farmer to aid in the expansion of
the diary industry responsive to black owned farmers. It is anticipated that continued support by government
through partnerships with the private sector should seek to retain jobs especially of unskilled labour. A key
paradigm shift in the context of farm labour, would be reskilling and upskilling, especially in literacy in the
anticipation of a owner/farmer cooperative developmental model.

To date, training and mentorship has been provided through strategic parinerships created in the
development of Agriculture within the Municipal jurisdiction. This however needs to be expanded if the
Municipality is to achieve targets for primary development of emerging farmers.

The prioritization of the Franklin_Makoba area as a strategic development node responsive to agriculture
and manufacturing {Catalytic Project 2) has positively contributed to the economy and development of the
Franklin area. In the 2019/2020 Financial Year and through successful applications for funding the
Municipality has ensured the realisation of the following:

e Development of Multi-Dimensional Cultural Village — R14,5million (COGTA funded) — the overall
anticipated development to be realised in a phased approach is anticipated to be valued at
R54miilion —the Municipality continues to lobby for funding for the completion —2019/2020

o Integrated Centre {attraction of manufacturing) —R2,8million {DRDLR funded) —2019/2020

¢ Library — the Department of Arts and Culture has commenced with the construction of the Library
which is anticipated at R2,2million at completion

e Establishment of Visitor Information Centre — funding secured from the Department of Economic
Development, Tourism and Envireanmental Affairs has resulted in necessary signage, audio visual art
gallery and a visitor information centre

With a focus on agriculture, the Municipality released 10 hectares of municipal owned land in Franklin to a
Cooperative and subsequently invested R2,3million for the established of 12 x Hydroponic Tunnels
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(2018/2019 FY) and subsequently R795,000.00 for the establishment and sitting of a borehole to augment
access to water (2019/2020FY). To address challenges identified in the production within the tunnels,
training was arranged and provided to the cooperative members. Together with DARD and the Department
of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs (EDTEA) access to opportunities through the
RASET programme continues.
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'1.2.8. COMMENT ON BACKGROUND AND DATA
Greater Kokstad Local Municipality (hereinafter referred to as ‘GKM’) currently has a 2020/2021 SDF, which

in terms of legislation needs to be reviewed annualy. The 2020-2021 SDF has been aligned with the 2020-
2021 IDP.
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1.3. SERVICE DELIVERY OVERVIEW
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The Greater Kokstad Municipality basic services as contained in our Municipal Indigent Policy is intended to
provide norms and standards for a program to improve the lives of indigents and to improve access to free
basic services. The policy recognized the need for inter-government co-operation in the process of dealing
with indigents but places a specific emphasis on the municipal sphere, recognizing the important role local
government has in effectively addressing the needs of indigent households. This requires local understanding
and local initiative, co-ordination with support from national and provincial government. The indigent policy
seeks to address the problem of institutional exclusion by facilitating the reform of the systems of local
government in ways that ensure the inclusion of the poor in ways that will guarantee their access to
affordable basic services.
The implementation of the indigent policy as the basis of providing Free Basic Services was done in context
of socio-economic realities facing our communities such as:

* High level unemployment

* Low income earners that have limited affordability

» High incidents of child-headed households

e Natural attrition of elderly headed households within our society.

The Municipality indigent policy apply specifically to Free Basic Services program within Municipality i.e. free
hasic electricity, rates, burial and free basic refuse removal. We had 4 589 beneficiaries on this program in
2019/20 financial year compared to 4 849 beneficiaries in 2018/19. The equitable share allocated to the
Municipality to provide free basic services is still in short supply.

Since 1994 GKM has made huge strides in the service delivery arena with electricity dominating ahead of
others, this was made possible by funding from Department of Energy, Eskom and GKM own funding. For
the 2019/2020 financial year the municipality managed to do 88 connections for permanent structures.
There was also some 800 plus connections to informal settiements in Horseshoe, Chocolate City 1 & 2 and
Marikana areas. The 100% connectivity of households in GKM is always a moving target; this is made
impossible by widespread of illegal settlements as more people are moving to Kokstad from neighboring

towns in anticipation of subsidized housing and better services.
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1.4. FINANCIAL HEALTH OVERVIEW

vulnerable customers, we have intensified awareness of the Municipality’s indigent subsidy to ensure they
are able to access free basic services without being targeted in our Credit control management processes.
We have continued to encourage customers experiencing cash flow challenges to enter into alternative
payment arrangements in order to improve the collection rate. The GKM remains committed to prudent
management of its finances. Qur Financial Plan will ensure continued financial sustainability and effective
financial planning through prudent generation of annual operating surplus, and the creation of cash reserves
to increase the level of infrastructure expenditure to improve service delivery. We have again achieved an
unqualified audit opinion as was the circumstance in the previous financial year. This is a firm indication of
the committed leadership which drives governance, compliance and strategic financial management.

Income:
Grants 73 740 000 85 908 000 84 858 564
Taxes, Levies and tariffs 307 239 903 306 949571 275 783 746
Other 25734 745 17 200 045 20 482 417
Sub Total 406 714 648 410 057 616 381124 727
Less: Expenditure 420 073 473 438 690 341 411 854 222
Net Total* (13 358 825) (28 632 725) (30 729 495)

Employee Cost

| 34%
|

Repairs and Maintenance

5.5%
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Finance Charges & Impairment | 3.5%

The above ratios, which are closely monitored during the year, ensure that at all times the GKM remains
focused on ensuring continued financial sustainability.

Original Budget 98 798 000 125 492 000 102 185 000
Adjustment Budget 134 354 000 152 922 000 154 227 000
Actual 88 368 050 92 563 292 113 707 000

The 2020/2021 financial year capital budget marked a significant milestone once again with an approved
adjusted capital budget of R154.2 million. Capital expenditure, as expressed by the additions capitalised in
the current year amounted to R million and work in progress amounting to R million (% of approved capital
budget).

[1.5. ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT OVERVIEW

Organizational development serves to give effect to the strategy of an organization. It gives a platform for
the organization to identify functions as well as posts that are required for it to achieve its mission and vision.
Such a decision has to start with the type of structure which is suitable for the organization. The
organizational structure of the municipality was reviewed and adopted by Council on 27 June 2019. The
structure adopted for the 2019/2020 financial year was informed by the availability of the budget and, as
such, some critical posts were not included in the structure.

The structure is being implemented and the recruitment process is being undertaken. Towards the end of
the 2019 /2020 financial year the structure will be reviewed. The review will be more in-depth with a work-
study exercise being undertaken. Such an exercise will ensure that organizational design and development
is based on scientific principles and that the Municipality has enough posts in its staff establishment to carry
out its mandate

1.6. AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT

AG’s responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements based on
AG’s audit. AG conducted AG’s audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No.
25 of 2004) (PAA), the general notice issued in terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that AG comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated and separate financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial
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statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasons of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated and separate financial
statements.

AG believes that the audit evidence AG have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for AG’s
Unqualified Audit Opinion for 2020/2021 Financial Year. The Audit Report shall be included in chapter 6 of
the 2020/21 Annual Report once issued by the AG(SA). The municipal performance over the last three
financial years in as far as the audit is concerned is summarized below:

2018/2019 Ungualified
2019/2020 Unqualified
2020/2021 Ungqualified

l 1.7. STATUTORY ANNUAL REPORT PROCESS

No. Activity Timeframe

1 Finalize the 4th quarter Report for previous financial year 31 July 2021

2, Submit draft Annual Report to Internal Audit 12 August 2021

3. Audit/Performance committee considers draft Annual Report of municipality and
entities (where relevant)

4. Mayor tables the unaudited Annual Report

5. Municipality submits draft Annual Report including consolidated annual financial 31 August 2021
statements and performance report to Auditor General

6. Annual Performance Report as submitted to Auditor General to be provided as input
to the IDP Analysis Phase

7 Auditor General audits Annual Report including consolidated Annual Financial 1 September -31
Statements and Performance data October 2021

8. Municipality receives and start to address the Auditor General’s comments 30 November 2021

9. Mayor tables Annual Report and audited Financial Statements to Council complete 31 January 2022
with the Auditor- General’'s Report

10. Audited Annual Report is made public and representation is invited 01-12 February 2022

11. Oversight Committee assesses Annual Report 17-26 February 2022

12. Commencement of draft Budget/ IDP finalization for next financial year. Annual October 2021 - May
Report and Oversight Reports to be used as input 2022

13. Annual Report and Oversight report presented to Council for adoption 31 March 2022

Local authorities prepare annual reports to discharge their public accountability responsibilities. A local
authority's annual report serves as a communication tool for providing wider information on activities carried
out and services provided, and for comparing actual service delivery with forecast service delivery. The
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information in annual reports and summary annual reports should allow ratepayers, the community, and the
wider public to assess how local authorities have performed in relation to stewardship of community assets,
and the efficiency, effectiveness, and cost-effectiveness of operations.

Local authorities are also required to prepare an annual report that fairly reflects their achievements and
results against their annual plan, with particular emphasis on comparisons with their forecast financial and
non-financial performance.

The annual report should link forecast performance and actual performance. The annual report should
compare forecast expectations to actual results, should "feed into” the next year’s farecast, and should signal
any intended changes in direction, services, or actions based on an analysis of the current year's
performance.
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CHAPTER 2 - GOVERNANCE

INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE

Governance at Greater Kokstad Municipality is made up of Political & Administrative Governance, Inter-
governmental Relations, and Public Accountability & Participation along with Corporate Governance.
Political & Administrative Governance is the breakdown of Elected Councillors, the committees they sit on,
& the number of meetings they attend. It further looks at the administrative aspect of the municipality in
terms of the organizational structure being implemented and a distinction made of the business units and
their respective functions. Intergovernmental Relations is basically the relationship that the municipality
forges with other sector departments in order to carry out day to day activities, like National Treasury, the
Auditor General & the Provincial Department of CoGTA. Public accountability is the way the Municipality
operates with regards to the communities by way of holding community meetings, Izimbizo’s, State of the
Municipality Address and the process of ward committees dealing with issues within the wards. Corporate
Governance looks at issues of transparency and accountability whereby the municipality outlines its top risks,
and the way in which they run the Municipal Affairs. Together these important aspects intertwine and are
forged to ensure all aspects of the municipality are properly functioning and that communities receive quality
services at an affordable.

COMPONENT A — POLITICAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE

2.1. POLITICAL GOVERNANCE

Greater Kokstad Municipality established portfolio committees namely, Executive Committee, Governance
and community & Social services, Budget and Treasury & Infrastructure and Technical services, Economic
Development and Spatial Planning committee and lastly Local Labour forum. These committees sit on
monthly basis to oversee if that the day to day activities within the Municipality are dealt with correctly. The
Council, MPAC and Audit committee sits on quarterly basis. An Audit Committee provides opinions and
recommendations on financial processes and performance and provides comments to the Oversight
Committee on the Annual Report.
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12.1.1. POLITICAL STRUCTURE

MAYOR:

Clir Bhekinkosi Michael Mtolo

S

DEPUTY MAYOR: \ SPEAKER: EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE:

Gl Karen Walker Clir Zolani Anthony Mhlongo Hon. Mayor Clir (Bhekinkosi
J Michael Mtolo); Deputy

Mayor (Karen Walker); Clir
 (Nomakhosazana Dumisa)

f2.1.2. COUNCILLORS

Greater Kokstad Municipality has 19 Councillors. Ten (10) Councillors are Ward Councillors and 9 Councillors
are proportional.

Political parties in the Council are represented as follows:

AFRICAN NATIONAL CONGRESS(ANC) 13
DEMOCRATIC ALLIANCE(DA)
ECONOMIC FREEDOM FIGHTERS (EFF)
African Independent Congress

(AIC)

;2.1.3. COMMITTEE ALLOCATIONS JULY 2020 TOJUNE2021

Committee Allocations July 2020/21

Portfolio Chairperson Members
committee
MPAC Councilor P. Councilor Nguza; Councilor E Bhengu,
Nocanda Councilor B L Marnce;
Budget & Mayor: Councilor M N L Madikizela;
Treasury and Councilor B.M | Councilor Z.R Tshazi;
Infrastructure | Mtolo Councilor K. Phuthuma
& Technical
Services
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Governance Councillor Councillor M Figlan,
Community Deputy mayor | Councillor N Mfukuli,
Development | KJ Walker Councillor L. Mashibini
& Social
Services
Economic Councillor N. Councillor N Mavuka; Councillor T.O Madikizela; Clir Z. Tshangase; Councillor N.
Development | Dumisa Lusawana, Clir N. Mayeza
and Spatial
Planning
Local Labour Councillor Cllr M. Figlan
Forum Figlan Clir N. Mfukuli

Clir L.N Mashibini

:2.1.4. WARD COUNCILLORS POLITICAL PARTY (2020-2021)

WARD COUNCILLORS LIST
Ward No. Name Political Party
Ward 1 Clir N. Lusawana ANC
Ward 2 Cllr N. Nguza ANC
Ward 3 Speaker, Cllr Z.A. Mhlongo ANC
Ward 4 Clir M. Figlan ANC
Ward 5 Clir N. Mavuka ANC
Ward 6 Clir N. Mfukuli ANC
Ward 7 Clir E. Bhengu ANC '
Ward 8 Clir L.M. Madikizela ANC
Ward 9 Cllr. N. Mayeza ANC
Ward 10 Clir. Tshazi ANC

2.1.5. PROPORTIONAL REPRESENTATION (PR) COUNCILLORS BY POLITiCAL PARTY (2020 - 2021)

PR COUNCILLORS LIST
Name Political Party
Mayor, Clir B.M Mtolo ANC
Deputy Mayor, ClIr K. Walker ANC
Clir P. Nocanda ANC
Clir. T.O Madikizela AIC
Cllr. M.N.Dumisa DA
Cllr.K. Phuthuma DA
Clir. B.L Marnce DA
Clir L. Mashibini EFF
Cllr Tshangase EFF
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2.1.6. MUNICIPAL PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE-{MPAC)

The Municipal Public Accounts Committee is a committee of Council established under section 79 of the
Municipal Structures Act, 1998. Section 79 allows for the co-option of advisory members to a Committee of
Council, who are not members of the Council.

The Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) assigns specific oversight responsibilities to Council about
the Annual Report and the preparation of an Oversight Report.

Given the processes required by Council to effectively undertake its oversight role, the establishment of
MPAC of Council would provide the appropriate mechanism in which Council could fulfill its oversight
responsibilities.

FUNCTIONS OF MPAC:
Below are some of the functions that MPAC must perform in executing and fulfilling its oversight role:

Undertake a review and analysis of the Annual Report.

Invite, receive, and consider inputs from Councillors and Portfolio Committees, on the Annual Report.
Consider written comments received on the Annual Report from the public consultation process.
Conduct Public Hearing(s) to allow the local community or any organs of state to make representations
on the Annual Report.

Receive and consider Council’s Audit Committee views and comments on the annual financial statements
and the performance report.

v" Preparation of the draft Oversight Report, taking into consideration, the views and inputs of the public,
representative(s) of the Auditor-General, organs of state, Council’s Audit Committee and Councillors.

e WL A 4

b

MPAC CONSTITUTION

The following members of Council are members of the Municipal Public Accounts Committee for Greater
Kokstad Municipality:

= Cllr P Nocanda - Chairperson
= ClIr N Nguza

= Clir E Bhengu

= Cllr BL Marnce

MPAC has during the financial period investigated irregular, fruitless, and wasteful expenditure to a value of
about R93 000 000 by the end of June 2021, this was constituted of transactions from prior years and from
transactions from the 2019/20 transactions as per audited Annual Financial statements and Audit Report.

MPAC has further recommended for investigation of possible financial misconduct from the Irregular,
Fruiless and Wasteful expenditure and recover of funds where it identified financial losses.

MPAC will monitor implementation of its recommendations as adopted by Council.
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'2.1.7. THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (EXCO)

The second layer of committees is the EXCO which reports in terms of section 44 of the Local Government:
Municipal Structures Act, 1998 to the municipal Council on decisions made in terms of its delegated powers
as well as recommendations made on those issues which require the Council’s consideration.

EXCO consists of 3 members, namely, the Mayor, Deputy Mayor and 1 (one) another member. The Mayor is
the Chairperson of the meeting, whilst the Deputy Mayor automatically becomes the Deputy Chairperson.

12.1.8. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES (SECTION 80)

The third layer of committees are the Portfolio Committees (in terms of Section 80 of the Local government:
Municipal Structures Act, 1998), which makes recommendations to the EXCO and report back on resolutions
taken in terms of its delegated powers.

All Portfolio Committees report to the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee may refer a matter
back to the Portfolio Committee for further consideration, amend or adopt the recommendations if it has
delegated authority to do so, or submit its (Executive committee) recommendations to Council.

There are 3 (three) section 80 committees, namely:
e Economic Development and Spatial Planning Portfolio Committee
e Governance and Community Social Services Portfolio Committee
e Budget and Treasury and Infrastructure and Technical services Portfolio Committee

2.2.  ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE

The Municipal Manager is the head of the municipal administration and provides policy direction. The roles
and responsibilities of the Municipal Manager are comprehensively set out in Section 55 of the Municipal
Systems Act with his role as the Accounting Officer being set out in Chapter 8 of the Municipal Finance
Management Act, 56 of 2003. Through the Delegations Framework the MM has delegated certain functions
to the relevant Executive Managers. The Executive Managers assume the roles as delegated and report
formally to the MM during Top Manco meetings which take place on a weekly basis. One on one meetings
also take place as and when required. Performance management also provide an opportunity for the MM
to communicate performance targets and for the measurement of these on a quarterly basis.

There are five Business Units that mirror the committee portfolios also report to the Municipal Manager.
They are:

e Corporate Services
e Budget & Treasury Office
e Community and Social Services

e Infrastructure and Technical Services
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o Economic Development and Spatial Planning

Each of these Business Units is headed by an Executive Manager, who must ensure that services are
effectively and efficiently delivered to the people of the Greater Kokstad Municipality. The municipal
manager and his team of executive managers hold weekly meetings to discuss key strategic service
deliverables, and to offer guidance on achieving 1DP goals.

The administrative component is aligned with the six (6) National Key Performance Areas {(named below);
and they are linked to Back to Basic Pillars.

e Municipal Transformation and Institutional Development
e Basic Service Delivery
e Local Economic Development

¢ Municipal Financial Viability and Management
¢ Good Governance and Public Participation
e Cross-Cutting

The Municipal Manager’s office has also assumed direct responsibility for Communications and Corporate
Strategy as well as the drafting, management and implementation of Council’s Integrated Development Plan
(IDP}. The Internal Audit Division also falls under the Office of the MM.

Page 38 of 353

-



221 T-bF-’-ADMIN.I.S'I;ARTIVE. ST-RUCTURE

MUNICIPAL MANAGER

Communications
Integrated Development Plan

Executive Manager: Executive Manager:
Infrastructure, Planning Community & Social
& Economic Services
Development

Executive Executive Manager:
Manager: Budget Corporate Services
and Treasury Office

Manager: . Manager: ¥ Manager: Community
Revenue & ' Administration & ' Manager: Local Se .5
Expenditure Customer Care Economic

Development- ‘

Mr. W Dotye i
- Miss A Whyte

. Manage!

al
Plannine :

r: Spati
, Hu
Environmental Health
| Parks

| Recruitment and [ Facilities ,
' Selection i - Libraries f
 Staff establishment ' Disaster Management
:R Su]gporf Services Fire and Emergency
enefits ‘ ac
Administration
. Employee Relations
Budget & - Occupdtional
Financial - Heaith, Safety and
eline S
Elomrtzlﬁ | - ‘ Economic Growth and
Xpenaiiure t Development Incl:
Management | Research and |

and Financial Development |
nt SMME and Enterprise
Development ’
Business Licensing and
Regulation

Investment Attraction
Business Retention and
Ex| ¥




12.2.2. TOP STRUCTURE OF THE GREATER KOKSTAD MUNICIPALITY (TIER 1-3)
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COMPONENT B: INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS

INTRODUCTION TO CO-OPERATIVE GOVERNANCE AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS

The intergovernmental relations Framework Act No 13 of 2005 provides for the establishment of
Intergovernmental structures amongst the three spheres of Government, where issues of mutual interests
are disused and agreed upon. It also provides guidelines in which disputes amongst Government spheres
and structures should be addressed before legal and court of laws can be involved in resolving the disputes.
The Act clearly separate role players and their responsibilities in efforts of serving South African Citizens.
Greater Kokstad Municipality fully participates in all IGR structures for the benefit of enhancing service
delivery and ensuring the good working relations amongst Government spheres. The benefits of such
relations are witnessed by several projects that are underway in Kokstad where the Municipality was
funded by various Provincial Departments.

These Intergovernmental relations assisted the municipality to realise service delivery in most areas. The
Municipality have experienced a greater number of jobs creations through the intervention made by
National and Provincial Government. Kokstad community benefited immensely especially youth through
internship programme by CoGTA for unemployed graduate and jobs created through EPWP.

The details of information relating to grants and Projects funded received by the Municipality are disclosed
in financial statements as required by the Municipal Finance Management Act no 53 of 2005.

2.3. INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS

12.3.1. NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURES

The Greater Kokstad Municipality does not attend the National IGR structure as the IGR framework does
not provide for such, however the municipality continue to receive the financial support in a form of grants
such as MIG to fund its infrastructural projects.

?2.3.2. PROVINCIAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURE
The Greater Kokstad Municipality is constantly attending and partaking in various Provincial IGR Structures
such as Technical MuniMec, and Provincial MuniMec. The objectives of the forums are to share knowledge
and information on matters of the same interest, and to articulate on policy matters that affect
Municipalities for implementation and to seek intervention and advises on certain service delivery matters
that requires the Provincial and National attention.

2.3.3. DISTRICT INTERGOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURES
The intergovernmental relations Framework provides for the district municipality’s role to facilitate and
coordinate local municipality on IGR structure’s meetings. The IGR Structures are actively coordinated by
Harry Gwala District Municipality, Greater Kokstad Municipality is actively partaking and attending IGR
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structures meetings by invitation such as District Technical forum, Mayor’s Forum, and cluster forum
meetings and programmes. These meetings provide space for all municipal leadership and managers to
discuss service delivery issues per cluster and source intervention where necessary. Greater Kokstad
Municipality always provide platform for the District Municipality’s inputs on strategic planning session to
allow alignment of programmes.

Greater Kokstad municipality has been actively involved in District Development Model (DDM) activities
including the drafting of the District Development Plan (DDP) which is currently at a draft stage.

COMPONENT C: PUBLIC ACCOUNTABILITY AND PARTICIPATION

OVERVIEW OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTABILITY AND PARTICIPATION

Greater Kokstad Municipality has a Public Participation unit within the municipality which facilitates all
public Participation activities. To enhance Public Participation, Ward committee structures were
established in all wards, they act as advisory structure to the Council and as a bridge between the
Municipality and the Community. There are also Community Development Workers which are deployed in

wards, they assist on identifying service delivery gaps and advise the relevant departments for
interventions. ’

i2.4. PUBLIC MEETINGS

j:2.4.1. COMMUNICATION, PARTICIPATION AND FORUMS

The Municipality’s Communication’s Strategy is reviewed on annual basis facilitated by communications
and IGR unit. The 2020/2021 action plan was reviewed, and workshop was conducted for Managers and
Councillors. It is through the action plan that communication’s programmes are consolidated and
implemented. The 2020/2021 action plan was successfully implemented and played a huge role in
communicating government programmes including public education on COVID-19 and other programmes
relating to preventative measures. Public education and awareness campaigns on National lockdown
regulations from level 5 to level 3.

Since the outbreak of COVID-19 use of social media has been the easiest way of reaching out to
communities without physical contact. The municipality was able to attract national TV stations interviews
coverage on news programmes which was free of charge, municipal newspaper issued on monthly basis
has gained readership within townships of Kokstad and municipal website is continuously used to
disseminate information.

In terms of communicating with organised structures and Forums, virtual meetings were coordinated and
attended.

2.4.2. WARD COMMITTEES
Ward committees are advisory structures which make any recommendations on any matter affecting their
wards. They are required to increase the participation of citizens in local government, by providing a

During the 2020/21 financial year Ward committees in all wards have performed their activities that
includes: sitting of ward committee meetings, reporting back to the community on issues, attending and
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forwarding community quires to the Municipality, disseminating information to the community and
reporting their activities on monthly basis, for the 2020/21 financial year, there were supposed to be 600
Ward Committee meetings and 62 were held.

Public meetings are held on regular basis to keep the community informed on issues affecting service
delivery. During the 2020/21 financial year, Greater Kokstad Municipality held community meetings in all
wards.

60 Community meetings were planned and 62 were held, broken down as follows in the table below:

Public Meetings

Ward Nature and Date of event : No. of Number of Community
Purpose of Participating Participating members attended Addressed
meeting Municipal Municipal (Yes/No)
Councillors Administrators
1 18 October 2020 il 1 22 Yes
20 October 2020 | 5 7 49
18 May 2021 [ 1 il 101
Community | 04 May 2021 1 2 128
meetings 25 March 2021 1 1 63
21 March 2021 Z 2 109
06 March 21 5 4 95
14 March 2021 6 4 121
2 15 November 2020 1 1 36 Yes
Community
meetings 25 November 2020 4 28
29 November 2020 2 2 30
27 October 2020 | 12 10 225
26 March 2021 ['2 1 21
26 March 2021 | 3 1 68
25 April 2021 5 8 57
25 April 2021 3 1 08
2 May 2021 9 4 35
25 May 2021 3 3 47
25 May 2021 3 3 80
3 Community | 29 October 2020 13 7 44 Yes
meetings 06 March 2021 1 1 60
09 March 2021 |2 3 24 i
14 March 2021 [ 1 1 60
18 April 2021 1 1 34 |
4 Community | 27 October 2020 11 9 90 Yes
meetings
20 October 2020 it 1 181
10 March 2021 1 1 127
23 September 2020 1 1 128
12 September 2020 2 1 48
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Public Meetings

Ward Nature and Date of event No. of No. Number of Community Issue
Purpose of Participating Participating members attended Addressed
meeting Municipal Municipal (Yes/No)

Councillors Administrators

5 Community | 20 October 2020 | 10 13 66 Yes [

meeting | 30 October 2020 2 6 15 '
04 March 2021 i 1 76 !
07 May2021 1 1 132 ‘

|

6 Community | 25 October 2020 7 7 76
meetings 07 March 2021 1 1 60 Yes

13 February 2021 2 2 48
22 April 2021 2 2 51
06 May 2021 | 2 1 62
12 June 2021 4 3 43
12 June 2021 4 4 47
02 September 2020 2 7 28
7 Community | 19 December 2020 3 3 21 Yes
meetings 28 October 2020 9 6 64
24 October 2020 11 6 40
11 March 2021 1 1 68
08 May 2021 2 1 60 ‘

8 Community | 25 October 2020 10 8 61 Yes
meetings 07 March 2021 1 1 59

9 Community | 27 October 2020 7 9 41 Yes
Meeting 30 October 2020 6 11 80

12 June 2021 5 5 - 50
11 March 2021 | 1 1 44
05 March 2021 1 1 75
04 March 2021 1 1 110
23 August 2020 5 6 26

10 Community | 12 November 2020 1 2 127 Yes

meeting 28 February 2021 1, 1 82
11 March 2021 1 1 80
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Public Meetings

Ward Nature and Date of event No. of No. Number of Community Issue
Purpose of Participating Participating members attended Addressed
meeting Municipal Municipal {Yes/No)

Councillors Administrators
16 May 2021 | 2 4 76
|
| |
06 August 2020 1 1 12
27 October 2020 8 3 51 '
28 October 2020 8 7 102

2.5. IDP PARTICIPATION AND ALIGNMENT

Does the IDP have priorities, objectives, KPIs, development strategies? Yes
Does the IDP have multi-year targets? Yes
Are the above aligned and can they calculate into a score? Yes
Does the budget align directly to the KPIs in the strategic plan? Yes
Do the IDP KPIs align to the Section 56 Managers Yes
Do the IDP KPIs lead to functional area KPls as per the SDBIP? Yes
Do the IDP KPIs align with the provincial KPIs on the 12 Qutcomes Yes
Were the indicators communicated to the public? Yes
Were the four quarter aligned reports submitted within stipulated time frames? Yes

COMPONENT D: CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

OVERVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance at Greater Kokstad Municipality entails Risk Management, Anti-Corruption and
Fraud and Supply Chain Management which is unpacked below.

2.6, RISK MANAGEMENT
MFMA section 62 (i) (c) requires the Accounting Officer to develop and maintain an effective, efficient, and
transparent system of risk management.

Risk Management is crucial management tool which if implemented effectively allows management to take
informed decisions and ensure optimum achievement of municipal set goals and objectives. It assists
management to better prepare for undesired risk events and to identify untapped opportunities.
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The Greater Kokstad Municipality is progressively aligning itself with the principles of the King IV Report on
Corporate Governance.

The municipality has established a Risk Committee that functions separately from the Audit Committee,
which is intended at increasing prominence on the oversight role with respect to risk management activity.

The Chairperson of the Risk Committee tables its report both to the Audit Committee and Council. Again,
this is aimed at drawing specific focus on risk management issues by Council.

The Audit Committee stili plays its critical role over the functionality and effectiveness of the risk
management function.

The municipality’s risk management system is progressively improving and maturing through the alignment
of risk management and planning and processes and expanding responsibilities with respect to risk
management activities.

During the 2020/2021 financial year, an independent review over the municipality’s risk management
maturity level indicated that while indicators demonstrated acceptable levels of risk maturity within the
municipality, it also highlighted the need for management to cascade and integrate risk management to
lower levels within its operations.

The assessment further highlighted that much effort is still required to toward the conscious identification
of available and or idle opportunities to be explored by the Municipality.

The Accounting Officer is in a process of revising the Municipality’s risk management strategy in order to
identify and effect the necessary processes to improve on identified gaps.

The Municipality to continues to enjoy the rewards of some of the risk management processes, i.e., the
improved ICT infrastructure revamp that was done in the previous years, which continues to provide
reasonable assurance over ICT security, minimal downtime as a result of network challenges, an effective
disaster recovery, which continues to ensure efficiency towards the provision of services; and the year-on-
year increase on the Capital maintenance budget to mention a few.

As at the end of June 2021, Progress registered on efforts by management on the implementation of risks
mitigation is % as at the end of June was 60%, a significant declined statically when compared to that of
the previous financial of 83%. This is significantly a direct result of the business disruption as a result of the
Covid-19 National Lockdown. This have left some high-risk areas undressed, however efforts have resumed
to implement the planned risk mitigation strategies.

Covid-19 Risk Management:
The Municipality continues face the risk of business disruption as the Country is largely still faced with the
Covid-19 pandemic and that of the spread of the virus in the workplace.

Through the financial years, management continued to profile critical functions and related strategies to
ensure minimal impact of business continuity, in the absence of business continuity plan.
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Management has made use of its risk management process to ensure compliance over Covid-19 OHS
regulations in order to ensure minimal spread of the virus in the workplace to ensure regulatory

compliance.

Below are the municipality’s Strategic Risks and top 10 risks for the period under review:

STRATEGIC RISKS

Below are the Strategic risks identified for the 2020/2021 financial year and have been managed through

risk

Custodian

Corporate

Function Objective

Achieve holistic human

Risk |dentified

Unco-ordinated approach

Inherent risk
exposure

Residual Risk exposure

Risk
Category

Human

Development

Attraction, and Business
Retention and Expansion

Services development and fo the development of Resources
capacitation for the sector specific skills. risk
realization of skilled and
employable workforce
Corporate Optimise systems, Inability to provide sirategic | Informatio
Services administration and direction interms of ICT to n
operating procedures. the insfitufion technolog
yrisk
Budget and Increased Revenue Base Disinvestment Financial
Treasury risk
Spatial Planning g the reduction of housing§ Mushrooming of informal Service
seflements delivery
risk
Local Economic Facilitate economic Unco-ordinated approach | Economic
Development growth, development |to economic development risks
and creation of decent inifiatives
employment
opportunities
Local Economic Facilitate Investment Inability fo facilitate access | Economic

to support existing business
to strengthen and retain
business

risks

management processes employed by the municipality.
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OPEARTIONAL TOP 10 RISKS

In terms of the municipality’s risk management methodology, the residual risk exposure for the top 10 risks
is above the acceptable levels and as indicated earlier, management has employed risk mitigation strategies
which have been implemented and monitored throughout the year.
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Custodian

Infrastructure,

Function Objective

Maintain and improve

Risk Identified

Inadequate

Residual Risk
exposure

Inherent risk
exposure

Risk Category

Process/Opera

Techinical municipal buildings maintenance of tional risk
Services and assets municipal properties
Corporate  |Increased performance| Poor performance of Third party
Services and efficiency levels. service provider perfomance
risk
Corporate Optimise systems, Exposure of critical data | Information
Services administration and and information security risk
operating procedures. | Technology Assets to
damage or loss.
Corporate Optimise systems, Inability to ensure Disaster
Services administration and Business continuity in recovery/
operating procedures. events of disruption Business
Continuity risk
Corporate Optimise systems, Inability to restore Disaster
Services administration and systems in event of a recovery/
operating procedures. disaster Business
Continuity risk
Corporate Optimise systems, Non- Compliance with | Compliance
Services administration and Occupational risk
operating procedures Health and
Safety Act

Office of the

Promote an effective

Inadequate internal

Communicati

Municipal Customer Care System communication on risk
Manager based on Batho Pele
Principles
Community | Improved provision of Ineffective Waste Service delivery
Development | Community and Social Management. risk
Services Services
Office of the Strengthened Ineffective Risk Governance
Municipal governance, and Management System risk
Manager reduced risk
Corporate Increased institutional Ineffective Employee Human
Services capacity and promote | Wellness Programme. resources risk
transformation.
Corporate Optimise systems, Loss of IT infermation |Process/Opera
Services administration and and assets through tional risk

operating procedures.

employees and
Councillors exiting the
institution
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12.7.  ANTI-CORRUPTION AND FRAUD

'2.7.1. FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION STRATEGY
MFMA section 62 (i) (c) requires a municipality to have and maintain an effective, efficient and transparent
system of risk management. The risk management system referred to in the act includes that of fraud risk
management amongst others.

MFMA section 62 (i) (c) requires a municipality to have and maintain an effective, efficient and transparent
system of risk management. The risk management system referred to in the act includes that of fraud risk
management amongst others.

In a strive to eradicate fraud and corruption within the municipality, GKM Council has reviewed the fraud
prevention strategy in order to progressively implement the programmes that will ensure achievement of
the objectives of the municipality’s Enterprise-wide risk management framework in relation to fraud risk
management.

Throughout the financial period under review, the Municpality had a functional Anti-fraud Hotline.

The Municipality received allegations on jobs and tenders’ sales through the Hotline and through other
reporting platforms. The Municipality did incident reports and opened a case with the South African Police
Services in April 2021.

Furthermore, as part of the fraud prevention strategy, GKM has rolled-out an intensive education and
awareness campaign on fraud, corruption, and ethical conduct in collaboration with the Office of the
Premier and the SIU. This is part of the Municipality’s on-going programme which is focusing much on the
promotion of ethical conduct and ethical leadership.

Council is in a process to adopt the newly developed Whistle blowing policy, aimed at encouraging whistle
blowing by employees and citizens.

2.8. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

OVERVIEW OF SUPPY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

MFMA section 110 - 119; SCM Regulations 2005; Preferential Procurement Regulations 2017 and relevant
MFMA circulars provides processes and guidance to help ensure that SCM provide appropriate means of
procuring goods and services, offer best value for money and minimize the opportunities for fraud and
corruption. The SCM unit is located within the Financial Services, The Chief Financial Officer is the Head of
department and the unit has 8 permanent staff (3 x SCM officers, 3 x SCM Clerks, 2 x Stores Clerks) and
(Manager —SCM). The unit operates under four Council adopted policies: Supply Chain Management Policy,
Policy for the appointment of Consultants and SCM Policy for Infrastructure procurement and delivery
management. There is a procedure manual which has been developed and checklist which continuously
monitors implementation of all related legislative requirements. Provincial Treasury ensures that SCM
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officials are trained in the areas they operate in and further provides training to Bid Committees. Challenges
that currently delays service delivery are Objections or Disputes, Submissions of poor-quality bid
documents by bidders resulting in re-advertisement which is being addressed by prompt dispute resolution
and LED initiative to Skilled Local Service Providers.

-2.8.1. DEMAND MANAGEMENT

The Procurement Plan defines the Supply Chain Management needs of the organization, aligned to the
municipality’s IDP, Budget and Departmental SDBIP. The plan is for a minimum of one year but aligned to
the IDP three-year period, this is especially critical in the case of capital projects requiring the issuing of bids
for multiyear projects, as well as in order to obtain cost savings through longer term goods and service
contracts (limited to a three-year period in terms of the MFMA). The main objective of the plan is to assist
the service delivery business units to achieve their service delivery mandates and to meet their service
delivery requirements without any SCM processes delays and this form the integral component of the entire
process to ensure effectiveness, efficient and economical SCM processes,

2.8.2. ACQUISITION DEMAND ' ' '

Written delegations have been approved whose thresholds are in line with regulation 12 of the SCM
regulations and there has been compliance with the delegations throughout the year. A thorough review
of all contracts and annual supplies contracts was done to identify contracts that have reached or ahout to
reach their expiry period and are in the process of being re-advertised in the form of a contract register this
process has been documented in all monthly reports submitted to management and Council. The members
of Bid Committee who were appointed for the 2020/2021 financial year were trained to ensure that
members are aware of their roles and responsibilities and individuals serving in the bid committees of the
Greater Kokstad Municipality. Training was provided by Provincial Treasury, and it was resolved that this
trend is to continue yearly prior to the appointment of new committee members for every financial year.
The SCM unit requested training on Local Production and Content and Bid Committees for SCM officials and
the MANCO in April 2021 to avoid the repeat of findings that were raised by the Auditor General on Local
Production and Content and the attendance was very poor as very few MANCO members attended that
training. The purpose for inviting the whole MANCO was to ensure that our MANCO understands SCM and
its implementation especially because bid committee members are appointed from MANCO members so it
was to ensure that members who will possibly be appointed as new members to the bid committees for
the 2021/2022 financial year have a clear understanding of their roles and responsibilities in the
committees. As a result of that poor attended SCM might have no choice but to invite Provincial Treasury
again when new bid committee members are appointed for the 2021/2022 financial year especially if there
are individuals who will be serving in the bid committees for the first time in 2021/2022 financial year.

Bid documentation were compiled and as far as possible aligned with circular 25. A thorough review of the
bid documentation was done to ensure full compliance with circular 25 and circular 62.

Competitive bidding process is followed for procurement above R200 000 and a Bid committee structures
were also established with new Bid Committee Members appointed at the start of the Financial Year. These
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bid structures have been implemented in accordance with regulation 27, 28 and 29 of the SCM regulations
throughout the course of the year.

2.8.3. LOGISTICS MANAGEMENT (STORES MANAGEMENT)

Part of logistics management is to establish and implement appropriate standards of internal control and
warehouse management to ensure that goods placed in stores are secure and only used for the purpose
for which they were purchased; regular checking of stock; and monitoring and review of the supply vendor
performance to ensure compliance with specifications and contract conditions for particular goods or
services.

With Stores having been moved to the SCM unit, we have ensured a continuous provision of relevant stock
to the respective department and with stricter controls to be developed and centralization stores for
material delivered offsite to ensure proper monitoring of receipts and issues of material. The unit has
undertaken a stock count every quarter and with recent year stock completed and verified by Internal
Audit.The purpose of conducting a stock count is to verify and ascertain and benchmark the stock records
as reflected by the computer system and that of the physical stock on hand. Any discrepancies on stock are
then reported and investigated and same is translated on computer system either losses or surpluses.
Further to that the investigation is then conducted and necessary remedies made if any. Review of the

supply vendor performance has been done every quarter to ensure that optimal performance and poor
performance is detected early.

5 EY MONTORING O#sCM CQN.TRACT-S S

ASSESSMENT OF THE PERFORMANCE OF EXTERNAL SERVICE PROVIDERS

The Council of the Municipality has approved the procurement plan which is in line with the SDBIP.
The procurement plan was implemented during the 2020/2021 Financial Year however, there
have been some delays.

A panel of Service Providers was successfully established, it is utilized in the fields of Civil
Engineering Consultants, Electrical Engineering Consultants, Planning Consultants, Legal Services
and Electrical Supplies and was done to fast track the procurement process when appointing
Service providers in these professions which will assist in improving service delivery. Only the
panel for electrical supplies is still valid and expiring in November 2021, all the other contracts
expired in November 2020. SCM unit has started the tendering process for the appointment of
new panel members for all the above-mentioned fields. Due to audit findings from the 2017/2018
audit report on the implementation of section 32 of the Municipal SCM regulations, the
Municipality resolved to not participate on the use of section 32 of the Municipal SCM Regulations
on appointment of service providers. As a result, thereof no bids were awarded under section 32
of the Municipal SCM regulations in the 2020/2021 financial year. The proper management of
appointed Service Providers has been a challenge in recent years as highlighted by AG in the
2018/19 FY findings and this ultimately affects the performance of appointed Service Providers.
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Great efforts have been channeled into improving this situation whereby the following where
undertaken:

a) The Accounting Officer appointed a committee to assess Service Providers who convene
quarterly to assess Service Provider.

b) Performance Assessment of all appointed Service is conducted by the Project Manager and
verified by the Committee quarterly.

c) Submission of the Performance Assessment of Service Providers report to council as
required by the Section 116 of MFMA to ensure adequate monitoring and oversight is
conducted by council

d) The Contract Management Officer was appointed in July 2018 and amongst other duties
that are dedicated to him, he is, together with the project managers responsible for the
performance assessment of service provider as well as ensuring that all Contract
Management matters including all compliance issues are addressed

Assessment Key

The service has been provided at acceptable standards and within the time
frames stipulated in the SLA/Contract

The service has been provided at acceptable standards and outside of the
timeframes stipulated in the SLA/Contract

The service has been provided at below acceptable standards
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2.9. BY-LAWS

The municipality has initiated the process of reviewing of all bylaws during 2020/21 financial year, from
consultation to adoption by the Council, in June 2020 gazetting process has been initiated and in progress.

On a legal perspective, the following bylaws are still valid for implementation;

N/A Trading by-law Yes January to May Yes 2021
2021
N/A Credit control Yes January to May Yes 2021
and debt 2021
collection —
bylaw
N/A Municipal tariffs | Yes January to May Yes 2021
2021
N/A Control of public | Yes January to May Yes 2021
nuisance 2021
N/A Electricity supply | Yes January to May Yes 2021
2021
N/A Municipal Yes January to May Yes 2021
facilities and 2021
public amenities
N/A Cemeteries by- Yes January to May Yes 2021
law 2021
N/A Civic symbols, Yes January to May Yes 2021
honors and 2021
related matters
N/A Fire prevention Yes January to May Yes 2021
2021
N/A Keeping animals | Yes January to May Yes 2021
2021
N/A Parking by-law Yes January to May Yes 2021
2021
N/A Pound by-law Yes January to May Yes 2021
2021
N/A Property Yes January to May Yes 2021
encroachment 2021
by-law




N/A Rates by-law Yes January to May Yes 2021
2021
N/A Refuse removal Yes January to May Yes 2021
and disposal 2021
N/A QOutdoor, Yes January to May Yes 2021
advertising and 2021
signage
N/A Spatial Planning | Yes January to May Yes 2021
and Land Use By- 2021
law
Business Annually Yes January to May No 2021
Licensing By- 2021
law

2.10. WEBSITES

Current annual and adjustment budgets and all budget-related documents Yes 02/ 03/2021
01/06/2020

All current budget-related policies Yes 01/06/2021

The previous annual report (2019/20) Yes 28/05/2021

The annual report (2020/21) published/to be published Yes

All performance agreements required in terms of section 57 (1)(b) of the Municipal Systems | Yes 30/07/2020

Act (2018/19) and resulting scorecards ‘

All service delivery agreements (2020/21) No N/A [

All long-term borrowing contracts (2020/21) No N/A |

All supply chain management contracts above a prescribed value for 2020/21 No N/A

An information statement containing a list of assets over a prescribed value that have been | No 07/08/2020

disposed of in terms of section 14 (2) or (4) during 2020/21

Contracts agreed in 2020/21 to which subsection (1) of section 33 apply, subject to | No N/A

subsection (3) of that section

Public-private partnership agreements referred to in section 120 made in 2020/21 N/A N/A

All quarterly reports tabled in the Council in terms of section 52 (d) during 2020/21 Yes 30/10/2020
29/01/2021
29/04/2021

_ - o - _ - 30/07/2021
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For Legislative Compliance, various Business Units are expected to furnish relevant information for
publishing on the Greater Kokstad Website. Information is updated almost daily or as and when uploads
are received from various departments and is accessible within a few hours depending on the content.
Internet bandwidth on the LAN is not very reliable therefore uploads onto the Website is very slow.
Although 3G Data Connectivity is available the speed is not consistent and affects uploads and test
downloads. However Greater Kokstad Municipality always strives and publishes the necessary information
on the Website.

The Public can access information on www.kokstad.gov.za 24hrs a day by viewing some information on
respective pages whereas other information is available as downloads viz. PDFs (Readable with Acrobat
Reader). Information not up to date, it is usually due to respective Units not providing them timeously or
not at all. Most information provided is uploaded and available within a few hours; however, Internet
bandwidth, LAN or 3G is not always reliable.

It should be noted that Municipality is currently in a process of upgrading the Website to improve the
accessability of the wesite content and a website visitors counter has been added to monitor and report on
the use of website by the public. The municipality has computers with internet access in libraries for public
use.

2.11. PUBLIC SATISFACTION ON MUNICIPAL SERVICES
INTRODUCTION

Public Participation is a core tool of accountability and good governance. It is also a means through which
citizens exercise their voice in determining their livelihoods and quality of life. Municipalities are charged
with a wide portfolio of responsibilities, including the provision of basic services, facilitation of good socio-
economic environments, etc. Within these functions, legislation and good practice calls that the
communities are an essential part in determining the direction in which their localities grow.

During 2016/17 financial year The Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs (COGTA)
through Back-to-Basics program identified a need for conducting Customer Satisfaction Survey in Greater
Kokstad Municipality. In 2017/18 financial year, the Customer satisfaction survey was conducted in all
wards with the aim of assessing the areas which needed attention and to identify the support that is needed
to improve Public Participation and service delivery. The findings were tabled to the Council for adoption.
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CHAPTER 3 - SERVICE DELIVERY PERFORMANCE

(PERFORMANCE REPORT PART 1)

COMPONENT A: BASIC SERVICES

This component includes: water, waste water (sanitation), electricity supply, waste management, and
housing services, and a summary of free basic services. -

3.1. WATER & SANITATION (WATER SERVICES) PROVISION

Water Services i.e. the supply of Water and Sanitation is a function of the Harry Gwala District Municipality
(HGDM) which is the designated Water Service Authority (WSA). Greater Kokstad Municipality (GKM)
engage with the WSA through quarterly infrastructure meetings which are held between the District and
other Local Municipalities. All the challenges and progress on projects are discussed in these meetings. The
major challenge is that the HGDM sometimes does not hold the meetings. The WSA is carrying out a few
bulk projects like Horseshoe VIP conversion to water borne sanitation and the sewer main in Shayamoya to
address backlogs.

The water restriction that was put in place by HGDM in November 2018 has been lifted due to the good
rains which saw the levels of the Crystal Springs Dam and the Mzintlava River being replenished to
satisfactory levels.

No. of | With Access Access Backlogs Backlog Services
Households Percentage Percentage
24,314 22,165 91.20 2,149 8.80 Water Supply
24314 16,154 66.44 8,160 33.56 Sanitation

Source: Provincial profile: KwaZulu-Natal [Community Survey 2016], Report 03-01-10

3:2: ELEGTRICITY

INTRODUCTION

GKM is licensed by NERSA to distribute approximately 22MVA (15 MVA from main Sub-Station and 7MVA
from Bhekintaba Sub-Station) of electricity to the residents within its area of supply. ESKOM is the electricity
supplier to all farming areas.

GKM wrote to Nersa with regards to the application to supply all farm areas that are under the Eskom Area
of supply, and the Municipality has since met with Eskom and started with the negotiations to the transfer
of the network.

Majority of household in GKM are in Kokstad town and peri-urban areas and are on prepaid meters. All in
all, GKM has some plus/minus 13,574 electricity meters (pre-paid and conventional) with the bulk of 12,619
being pre-paid.

The other major centers are Franklin and Swartberg, with Makhoba emerging as a settlement under
construction. ESKOM is currently electrifying the houses at Makhoba which have occupants. It can be said
that all formal households within these areas are 100% covered except Makhoba that is being electrified
by ESKOM.
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Since 1994 GKM has made huge strides in the service delivery arena with electricity dominating ahead of
others, this was made possible by funding from Department of Mineral Resources and Energy under the
Integrated National Electrification Programme (INEP) as well as COGTA, ESKOM and GKM own funding. In
this regard the 100% connectivity of households in GKM is always a moving target, this is made impossible
by widespread illegal settlements as more people are moving to Kokstad from neighboring towns in
anticipation of subsidized housing and better services.

The table below demonstrates households by main source of energy for cooking and lighting.

Cooking Lighting
Greater Electricity | Other None Total Electricity | Other None Total
Kokstad Energy Energy
Municipality Sources Sources
19,916 4,411 69 24,396 21,634 2,762 1 24,397

Households by main source of energy for cooking and lighting, Community Survey 2016.

It should also be noted that due to the new developments happening around town and the surroundings
the Municipality had to make sure that there is always available capacity to cater for all the new electricity
connections. With the help of the Department of Mineral Resources and Energy’s INEP, GKM has been
funded for the construction of a new substation with a 20MVA capacity which will help to cater for the new
housing developments such as R56 Housing and electrification projects such as informal settlements etc.

0-3 1 1 1 0 0%
4-6 6 6 6 0 0%
7-8 2 2 2 0 0%
10-12 0 0 0 0 0%
13-15 5 5 5 0 0%
16-18 16 18 18 2 11.1%
19-20 0 0 0 0 0%
Total 30 32 32 7 6.25%

Electrical Engineering Section Staff Compliment

Upgrade of 1000m of MV Cable Phase 3 R 3,000,000.00 N/A R744,165.00 24.80
Installation of Street Lights & High Mast Phase 1 R 2,800,000.00 N/A R 2,798,995.17 99.96
Electrification of Informal Settlements Phase 3 R 7,914,000.00 N/A R 7,914,000.00 100.00
Electrification of Farm Houses R 3,900,000.00 N/A R 2,884,453.36 73.96
Upgrade of mini sub-stations and transformers R 3,500,000.00 N/A R 2,449,442.49 69.98
Bulk Infrastructure-Sub-Station, PDR, Geo-Tech, WULA, R15,000,000.00 N/A R10,380,116.11 69.20
11KV Switch Gears etc.

Pole Mounted Transformers x2 Number R500,000.00 N/A R500,000.00 100
Energy Sector Plan R400,000.00 N/A R400,000.00 100
Electricians’ Standby Quarters R250,000.00 N/A R65 000.00 26
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The Electricity services has performed very well in trying to minimise the backlog in terms of upgrading,
maintenance and repairs of the existing old infrastructure, this is evident from the upgrading of Mini sub-
stations and Transformers and also in the upgrading of the MV cable. The Council has also committed to
budget for the continuation of the upgrading of the infrastructure until all the infrastructure is up to
standard to improve the quality of supply as required by NERSA. This will be made possible by the use of
the recently adopted Energy Master Plan which has categorised the works into immediate, medium and
long term targets for upgrading and maintenance of the electrical infrastructure.

Willowdale Houses

MV CABLE UPGRADE NEW STREET LIGHTS IN MURRAY STREET
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OLD MAIN SUBSTATION SWITCH GEAR TO BE UPGRADED

MURRAYPARK STADIUM LIGHTS
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SINGISI SUBSTATION PROJECT
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3.3. WASTE MANAGEMENT

INTRODUCTION

There are 10730 households within the Greater Kokstad Municipal area of jurisdiction, with an estimated
number of 3000 informal settlements, formal refuse removal /collection is done to 75 % of households.
Some informal settlements do benefit as refuse is collected on street to their dwellings. Waste is collected
weekly on the residential areas and seven days per week within the central business district.

Recycling is conducted by individuals that are based at the landfill site. Currently the recycling is informal
and the municipality is in a process of formalizing it. Recyclables are collected by private recycling
companies within Kokstad and outside Kokstad. The municipality plans to operate formal recycling in the
new land fill site.

There are three refuse removal compactor trucks, one skip bin truck, one TLB and two tractors for refuse
removal.

Waste Management Section conducted 10 public awareness and clean up campaigns. lllegal clearance is
conducted every throughout the week and Thursdays are regarded as illegal clearance day. Municipal
Environmental Management Inspectors (EMI’s) are assisting the municipality in terms enforcing waste
management by laws.

The waste clean-up, lllegal dumping clearance and public awareness campaigns.

Clean up campaigns.

Public awareness campaigns Integrated clean-up campaigns.
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Solid Waste Services Delivery Levels

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
Actual No. Actual No. Actual No.
Solid Waste Removal: (minimum level)
Removed at least once a week All streets All streets All streets
Minimum Service Level and Above sub-total |
Minimum Service Level and Above Percentage 100% | 100% 100%
Solid Waste Removal: (Below minimum level)
Removed less frequently than once a week 25% 25% 25%
Using communal refuse dump 10% 10% 10%
Using own refuse dump 75% 75% 75%
Other rubbish disposal 0 0 0
No rubbish disposal 5% 5% 5%
Below Minimum Service Level sub-total
Below Minimum Service Level Percentage 0% 0% 0%
Total number of Households 10730 10730 10730
old 0 De o pelo 0 pid
Descriptio 018/19 019/20 020/20
A Orig Ad ed A Orig Ad d A i Ad A
0 Buag Budge 0 Bud Bud 0 Budge Buadg 0
0 o 0 0
Formal settlements
[Total households (10730 10730 10730 (10730 10730 (10730 |[10730 (10730 10730 10730 |
Households below minimum 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% |
service level I
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Proportion of households |1860 1860 2300 1860 1860 2300 1860 1860 2300 2300
below minimum service level |

Informal settlements

Total households 1350 1350 1370 1350 1350 1370 1350 1350 1370 1370
Households below minimum [0 0 0 0 0 (o] 0 0 o 0
service level

Proportion of households 100% 100% 100% 100%  [100%  |100% 100%  [100% 100% 100%
below minimum service level

“Employees: Solid Waste Management Services
Job Level 2019/20 2020/21
Employees No. Posts No. Employees No. ‘ Vacancies (fulltime Vacancies (as a % of
{ equivalents) total posts) %

0-3 1 2 2 0 0%

4-6 3 3 3 0 0%

7-9 8 0 0%
10-12 8 15 15 7 5%
13-15 0 0 0 0 0%
16-18 58 86 86 0 0%
19-20 0 0 0 0 0%
Total 78 113 114 7 15%

Details

Financial Performance 2020/21: Solid Waste Management Services

2019/20
Actual

Original Budget

R’000

Adjustment Budget

2020/21
Actual

Variance to

Budget %

Expenditure

Total Operational 0 22922621.00 22922621.00 17134 225.28 75% |

Revenue |

Expenditure

Employees 18 585 747.06 19150 473.00 19 150 473.00 18 254 265.70 95% |

Repairs and 2769 984.08 2 630000.00 2630 000.00 472468791 100% |

Maintenance |
Other 0 2545 017.00 2545 017.00 2366 957.44 93%

Total Operational 22875 258.90 47 248 111.00 47 248111.00 42 480 136.33 89%

Greater Kokstad municipality’s’ Integrated Waste Management Plan has been adopted by the
Council has been work shopped to Council and submitted to Departments of Environmental
Affairs for promulgation. The IWMP makes a comprehensive analysis of the status quo of the

municipality’s waste management, makes a critical analysis, and assesses strategies to address
these. Then, the implementation plan summarizes the priority projects and associated actions
that are recommended for implementation of the strategies that were developed as part of the

IWMP.

The existing landfill site is in Shayamoya and is approximately 2.2ha in size, and over the years it
has accumulated waste of more than 50 000 m3. The landfill site is in a fair condition as there are
some management measures in place. However, it has reached its operational capacity.

The new proposed land fill site (Kransfontain Landfill site) is located at the east of Horseshoe,
which is north east of the CBD. While the old land fill site is still operational, it must be noted that
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the usage is kept at a minimum due to capacity until such time that the new site has been fully
established and commission letter for commencement. Both landfill sites are licenced.

13.4.  HOUSING

INTRODUCTION

Human settlement patterns are typical, with the older part of town housing the more affluent (historically
white) population in the leafy suburbs, with peripheral poor (black) townships. The suburbs are low density,
with large sites along tree lined streets, and single storey bungalow-built form. Site sizes range from over
4000m2 (the zoning allows a minimum of 1800m2), compared to the township areas, which are zoned for
450m2 sites but in fact the average is more like 300m2. Parts of the old town lend themselves to
densification, and the strip along the river, to the east, is particularly in need of intensification, and presents

an opportunity to improve the sustainability of Kokstad as a settlement.
Human settlements development in the municipality is challenged by the following:

The lack of affordable, well-located land for low-cost settlements has resulted in the human settlements
programmes largely extending existing areas that had been developed for low-income settlements in the
past, often located at the urban margins and with weak prospects of integration.

These extensions to existing low-income settlements generally lacked amenities necessary for a decent
quality of life, mainly because of the lack of funding and poor alignment of budgets; National policy and
provincial funding allocations have not always been able to effectively respond to the changing nature of
demand caused by rapid urbanization; The number of subsidies required is increasing, resulting in an
additional burden on the national and provincial fiscus; The lack of institutional and sector capacity to
deliver human settlements programmes; and The inability of beneficiaries of human settlements subsidies
to afford municipal services and taxes, creating the view by the municipality that such housing projects are
liabilities. The Municipality’s Integrated Development Plan identified the following key issues in terms of
human settlements: High prices of privately owned land, lack of suitable land to build houses; Private shack
settlements are used as an income-generating activity; Urbanization results in growing number of informal
settlements; Speculation in up-market human settlements, especially in areas outside urban edges of the
Spatial Development Framework has resulted in ad-hoc development and cost inefficiencies; The lack of
funding and the non-alignment of municipal and government department budgeting processes; Lack of bulk
services for human settlements development. The Housing Sector Plan (2020-2021) indicates that the
municipality faces a low and middle-income human settlements crisis. It broadly describes the housing
demand as follows: Need for low-income (fully subsidized) houses at 1000. Informal settlements need to
be relocated or upgraded. Highly constrained, a demand-driven private housing market with inflated house
prices, in all market segments.

The Shayamoya Township is characterised by monotony, and lacks legibility, partly through the layout
design that is predicated on engineering efficiency and lowest cost. Most sites have pedestrian access, or
in some instances roads that have only been half surfaced, no storm water control system in place and the
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current sewer system is old and under huge pressure as over spills are day to day experiences. The character
of Shayamoya is largely determined by a mass housing approach to delivery, also evidenced by the mono-
functional land use.

Bhongweni Township is older, is on flatter land, and although also delivered through state subsidies for
incremental housing, the grid layout and street scale has resulted in a very pleasing character. The area has
been identified through additions to the original RDP houses, often to provide rooms for tenants. A central
social facilities precinct, as well as pockets of houses for slightly higher income residents, provides relief
and as semblance of human settlement rather than a housing project. Informal settlements at the edges of
the townships site either on the steepest slopes or dangerously close to the river and are the object of

proposed slums clearance projects.

Percentage of households with access to basic housing

Year end Total households Households in formal Percentage of HHs in
(including formal and settlements formal settlements
informal settlements)

2012/13 10550 8548 81%
2013/14 10550 8548 81%
2014/15 10700 8698 81.2%
2015/16 10910 8908 81.6%

13.4.1. COMPLETED HOUSING PROJECTS "

According to the information received from the Housing Subsidy System section of the Department of
Human Settlement, from 1994 until the end of 2021 approximately 6858 houses have been completed
within the Greater Kokstad Municipality. The historical housing delivery figures are summarised per local
municipality in the below table. From this table, it can be seen that housing units have been delivered
mostly in Greater Kokstad local municipality.

Greater Kokstad Municipality has been proactive in initiating and implementing housing projects, over 6000
housing opportunities have been provided to date (of which approximately 2651 have been developed to
cater specifically for informal settlement communities), since the inception of the Government’s housing
subsidy scheme. However, there still exists a significant demand, as evidenced, particularly by informal
settlements, mainly in the vicinity of Kokstad Town.

Makhoba Housing Project for 2020-2021 financial year 618 of 1400 Housing Units completed.

Local Properties Service Sites = Serviced Slabs Units Units Under | Wall Plates

Municipality | Transferred Completed Under Completed Completed Construction } Completed
Construction I

Greater

Kokstad 618 948 330 F57 618 1400 756

Municipality
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3.4.1.2 Title Deed Restoration Programme

The Greater Kokstad Municipality with the assistance of the KZN Department of Human Settlement has
undertaken on the Title Restoration Programme for the Greater Kokstad Municipality. The Greater Kokstad
Municipality has properties that are located in Bhongweni which existed prior 1994 which were previously

owned by NPA. These properties are now registered in the name of the Municipality.

Properties in Bhongweni were transferred to the Municipality by the NPA, some properties were
transferred to the occupants of the properties and a number of properties with occupants were transferred
to the Municipality. The process for the transfer to occupying residents is unknown by the Municipality.

On site survey has been completed at Horseshoe.

Conveyancing Attorneys have been appointed to serve at the Municipality’s Dispute Resolution Committee.
The first sitting of the subcommittee was held on the 24 June 2020 and the resolutions were:

QOutstanding properties (Bhongweni & Eastview) will be verified by Conveyancing Attorneys as the social
facilitators appointed by DoHS are no longer on site.

An advert for missing beneficiaries was published in the local newspapers.
Interviews will take place within respective wards.

A report of the interview outcomes will be submitted to Council.

The table below represents the Greater Kokstad Municipality recently completed housing project indicated
in the Integrated Development Plan Review 2020/2021

Franklin Housing

K03070012 Project 450 0 0 0 Completed
K19970177 Shayamoya Phase 2 220 0 o -0 . Completed
K13050008 EastView Riverview 82 Ril.2m 0 0 Completed

Rectification Project

The 2011 census data provides some form of typological classification for the various units of spatial analysis
used in the census. These include the categories of formal residential, informal residential, traditional
residential, collective living quarters, smaltholdings and farms. In addition, it also includes a number of other
non-residential typological classifications including vacant land, Parks, and Recreation, industrial and
commercial. The data provides a comparative distribution of land area and population according to this
classification is below.
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The 2011 census data distinguishes between 11 different housing categories under the variable referred to
as “type of dwelling”. These categories range from brick houses on separate stands to different types of
informal dwellings, and other categories such as caravans and tents. The categories that can potentially be
regarded as forming part of the housing backlog or demand at a particular location include the following

types:

= Traditional dwelling

» House/flat/room in backyard

e Informal dwelling {shack; in backyard)

= [nformal dwelling (shack; not in backyard)

= Room/flatlet on a property or larger dwelling
s Caravan/tent

The Housing Sector Plan {GKM HSP: 2020-2021) indicates that Greater Kokstad faces a low and middle-
income housing crisis. It broadly describes the housing demand as follows:

Need for low-income {fully subsidized) houses at 2800.

Informal settlements need to be relocated or upgraded.

Highly constrained, demand-driven private housing market with inflated house prices, in all market
segments.

Demand for housing is across the board, ranging from single-person rented accommodation,
through basic fully-subsidized housing units, to middle and upper-income bonded accommodation.

The lack of accommodation contributes to pressure on existing housing, with the negative outcomes of

squatting, overcrowding of existing houses, down-market “raiding” by higher income households and
escalating of rentals and sale prices of houses.

According to the Greater Kokstad Municipality’s 2020-2021 Housing Sector Plan, the below stipulates the
estimated housing and planned housing units to reduce the current housing backlog.

Slum Clearance Project Shayamoya- 700 units

R56 Integrated Sustainable Settlement Kokstad 583 units

Franklin Phase 2 Residential Development {New Project) -300 units.

Makhoba Housing Farms Argyll & Springfontien -418 & 994 Units 618 completed to date
Willowdale Housing Project Kargs Post -83 units

Need for low-income (fully subsidized) houses at 2800.

Kokstad Community Residential Units 300 Units

Shayamoya Community Residential Units 414 Units

Informal settlements need to be relocated or upgraded.

Highly constrained, demand driven private housing market with inflated house prices in all market
segments.

Demand for housing is across the board ranging from single person rented accommodation through
basic fully subsidized housing units, to middle and upper-income bonded accommodation.

An estimated housing demand of 3565 is evident in Greater Kokstad Municipality
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'3.4.3. CURRENT HOUSING PROJECTS

The table below represents the Greater Kokstad Municipality planned housing projects indicated in the
Integrated Development Plan 2020-2021.

Project Project Housing
Code Units

Funding 2020/2021

2018/2019 2019/2020  2020/2021

K0711001 Makhoba Housing Project Stage 3 Under Construction
K16020010 | Shayamoya Phase 3 Slums Project is at
Clearance 700 Feasibility Stage 1 Stage 1 Planning Stage
k20211688 | Kokstad Community Under Construction
Residential Units 300 Feasibility Stage 1 Stage 1
Developments (CRU)
Shayamoya Community 414 Project is at
Residential Units Feasibility Stage 1 Stage 1 Planning Stage
Developments (CRU)
R56 Mixed Housing Project is at
Development 582 Feasibility Stage 1 Stage 1 Planning Stage
Bhongweni Heights Middle Under Construction
Income Housing 136 Feasibility Stage 1 Stage 2
K15060001 | Willowdale Housing Project i il Complete
83 Stage 1 Stage 3 Stage 3 !

Table Above: Current and Planned Housing Projects

Stage 1 =Planning
Stage 2 = Internal Structures
Stage 3 = Top Structures

'3.4.4. INFORMAL SETTLEMENTS .

There are seven (7) informal settlements the in Greater Kokstad municipality that need serious
attention due to their inhumane conditions. The below gives an overview of status in terms of
how far the municipality has intervened and commenced with the rectification of their living
conditions by constructing houses and undertaking Geotech services to determine if the land
is liveable and how many houses can be built. These include:

No. of Dwelling Units.

Horseshoe 800

Lindelani/Moyeni and Bhambayi 450

Marikana 900

Bergview 98

Ezimpungutyeni 150 ‘
Franklin 300

Table Above: Informal Settlements Project
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People gravitate from areas outside the municipality to meet their economic and socital needs. It implies
that administrative demarcations are not necessarily the basis for planning and development but is far more
important to understand and take cognizance of functional economic and social linkages of an area.
Nevertheless, institutional demarcation is important since it determines the functions and powers of the
municipality and in that sense determines what it can and cannot do irrespective of cross boundary impacts.

v land plays a pivotal role in more than one way in municipal development. The key issues are:

*  Ward demarcations that can define the power balance and hence the allocation of resources.

r  Land ownership that often determines the rate of development, if not the availahility for
development.

= land restitution as part of the process of addressing imbalances created under the previous political
dispensation.

= Land values that forms the basis for municipal revenue and the ability to intervene is the
development process.

Various areas in the municipality are subjected to land claims and the land restitution process. There is no
logical link between land ownership and the optimal use of land. However, the land restitution process, if
not resolved speedily creates uncertainty in the property market and might affect land values, the
marketability of land and the development process in general.

* High prices of privately-owned land a [ack of land to build houses;
# Limited land availability and middle-income housing

Most people in the rural areas of the municipality do not own land and as resuit they live in a very squalor
conditions and exposed to hazardous health conditions due to poor basic service, This has become a critical

issue which requires immediate actions by the municipality.

The relevance of the identified focus areas as identified in Section 13 have to be contextualised against the
overall provincial and the more detailed local housing need profile and the potential land requirements
resulting from this profile. The potential land needs required to address the current housing demand within
the province, and specifically within the identified focus areas, are influenced by a range of factors. To
account for these factors, the following assumptions were used as point of departure:

= The majority of households residing in traditional dwellings of two rooms or less (regarded as part
of the potential housing backlog as defined in this report) will be accommodated in terms of
housing provision at their current location. These households are largely located on Ingonyama
Trust Land and will not require substantial new “greenfield” land areas for housing development
purposes.

* It was assumed that one third of households residing within informal structures on a separate
stand or within a backyard of another structure could form part of in-situ upgrading processes and
be accommodated at their current location. It was thus further assumed that the other two thirds
will require alternative land (Greenfield} for settlement purposes.

Page 74 of 353



£

= A total of 20% of households earning between R38 000 — R153 000, need a GAP market house for
which land has tao be identified.

= Over and above the existing housing demand and land requirement figures, calculations were also
made in terms of additional housing units and land required to accommodate the anticipated
housing demand up to 2030,

= Interms of informing the land requirement the following density related assumptions were made

o 30% of the GAP Market housing requirement will be provided for at a density of 15
dwelling units per ha.

o 60% of the current housing backlog will be provided for at a density of 20 dwelling units
per ha.

o 30% of the current Greenfield housing backlog and 50% of the current GAP Market
requirement will be provided for at a density of 40 dwelling units per hectare.

The implementation of the land reform programme within the Greater Kokstad Municipality has been very
sedentary although a number of land claims have been lodged. The Kokstad Commonage redistribution
project is the only claim to have been transferred. Priority is now concentrated on the redistribution in the
Pakkies area.

The main components of land reform with specific reference to the Greater Kokstad Municipal area are
that:
= A strategy for the distribution of information on land reform to stakeholders and possible
beneficiaries. It is anticipated that existing representative structures such as the Farmers.
Associations, Kokstad Chambers of Commerce and the larger commercial landowners should
remain the focus for this exercise from where the information can filter down to grassroots levels;
and
= As most of the areas in the Greater Kokstad are under the control of a farming community, land
reform becomes complicated. The Land Reform Legislation does not cater for the land extension
within the sub-region. Land Reform will contribute to the increased opportunities for commercial
farming thus aiding in the economic development of the Greater Kokstad Municipality.

Land ownership in the municipal area was assessed from the current valuation role of the Council.

Land ownership is fundamental to development. There is also a growing consensus that there is a direct
link between land ownership, development, and more specifically communal ownership and under-
development.

Various areas in the municipality are subjected to land claims and the land restitution process. There is no
logical link between land ownership and the optimal use of [and. However, the land restitution process, if
not resolved speedily creates uncertainty in the property market and might affect land values, the

marketability of land and the development process in general.

Land, and more specifically land ownership, is very much a central issue in South African politics,
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Furthermore, land and the value of land is the basis for property taxes that accounts for a substantial
portion of municipal revenue. As indicated location, production potential, access to services and amenities
and investment return determines the value of land.

'3.4.6. HOUSING CAPACITIES

The Municipality has not been delegated a mandate to act as developer and Province plays the role of the
Developer. The Greater Kokstad Municipality has a Housing Section. The housing functions are under
Economic Development and Spatial Planning Department. Not all the positions are filled and this impacts
on the ability of the municipality to provide on-site technical support to projects. The municipality has a
Human Settlements Officer who takes care of housing matters.

The below information particularizes about the remedial actions the Department of Human Settlements
have proposed:

®  The eradication of slum areas (Informal housing) has been highlighted by national government.

* The identification and formalisation of these areas, if found to be suitable, needs to be prioritised.

= Establish the real need for housing (The Backlog) and prioritise the beneficiaries.

*  Proactively identify and access land needed for future housing.

* Beneficiary and surrounding communities need to be consulted and participate in all housing
related matters.

= All housing developments must contribute to the formulation of compact and integrated nodes.

= All housing developments are to comply with legislative processes and requirements.

= Strive to minimize or eradicate informal and/or shacks.

= The full spectrum of housing needs is to be catered for, i.e. low-income, subsidy housing, multi-
storey developments, affordable housing.

" Low-income subsidised residential areas where freestanding dwellings are erected on individual
stands should not be developed at gross densities of higher than 20 units per hectare, while the
erven should not be smaller than 250m2.

® The housing backlog is to be eradicated by 2030. 20% of all new subsidy housing areas are to be
allocated to the provision of rental stock and alternative housing types.

* An investigation needs to be launched to determine the feasibility of the provision of alternative
housing typologies in Greater Kokstad Municipality.

3.4.7. INFORMAL SETTLEMENT UPGRADE STRATEGY

The municipality has been active in their development of their informal settlement housing plan. The
municipal strategy predominantly aims at providing new Greenfields’s housing developments in close
proximity to the current informal settlements and relocating the informal settlements. This can be seen
from the strategy in Bhambayi and Lindelani/Moyeni that relocated to Shayamoya and Franklin Phase 2.
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The primary concern is how to accommodate the remaining informal settlements, but for this the
municipality has initiated two projects to establish new Greenfield housing projects in Bhambayi (600 units)
and Franklin (300 units). The municipality could further convert Ezimpungutyeni into CRU’s as rental stock.

There is however a shortfall to accommodate the Horseshoe community staying in environmentally
sensitive areas.

The following strategies should be put in place: -

= The municipality should fast-track the new Greenfields developments in Bhambayi/Shayamoya and
Franklin to assist with relocation of informal settlements.

= The municipality should consider in-situ upgrade in areas suitable for development, rather than
relocation.

=  The municipality should consider rental stock in Ezimpungutyeni by implementing CRU’s.

= The uncontrolled and rapid growth at Marikana informal settlements requires urgent intervention
and community participation.

= Community based communication in relation to the relevant Municipal development plans should
be improved.

Housing Interventions: -

_ Willowdale Housing Project, Kargs Post 83 units

__ R56 Integrated Sustainable Settlement Kokstad 583 Units
_ Shayamoya 700 Units (Low cost Housing)

-Homes 2010 *Bhongweni Heights

_ Makhoba 1400 Housing Development

_ Thuthuka Ngele Rural Urban Housing Project 300 Units

_ Ekuthuleni Rural Housing Project

_ Kokstad Community Residential Units 300

-Shayamoya Community Residential Units 414

_ Informal Settlement Housing Project for Horseshoe, Lindelani/ Moyeni, Marikana, Bergview, Bhambayi,
Ezimpungutyeni and Franklin

_ Development of an Informal Settlement Strategy

_ Franklin Residential Development — 450 Units

Percentage of Households with access to basic housing 2020/2021

Total Households (Formal and Informal Households in formal settiements Percentage of households in Formal

Settlements) : settlements

19140 11500 | 60%
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Bhongweni Heights, Kokstad CRU and Willowdale Housing Under Construction
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3.5. FREE BASIC SERVICES AND INDIGENT SUPPORT

INTRODUCTION

The delivery of free basic services to the people is a priority to the Council in order to afford dignity to our
community that live below the poverty line. In this group, we include and not limited to the elderly,
unemployed, child headed household and people living with disabilities.

2018/19 | 4849 | 4849 4849

2019/20 4589 4589 4589
2020/21 4753 4753 4753

COMPONENT B: ROADS

This component includes: roads and waste water (storm water drainage).

The Municipality had a Road Infrastructure Development policy in place. Infrastructure and Technical
Services Department (ITS) is responsible for strategic leadership of roads development in GKM as follows:
e (lassification of the road network
e Road asset management
e  Five-year implementation program and its funding needs
e Roads maintenance program and funding needs
e Roads policy and standards

Generally, GKM’s service delivery mechanism is by means of outsourcing major work by use of consultants
for specialist designs and construction where heavy machinery is required while minor works like fixing of
potholes, replacing and cleaning of storm-water pipes is done in-house.

3.6. ROADS

INTRODUCTION

The municipality is faced with a huge backlog in terms of road and rehabilitation or asset management of
roads. The available budget for roads is minimal versus the backlog and the Municipality also undertakes
maintenance i.e. repairing of potholes. Since the Municipality is still struggling in collecting revenue, the
funding of new roads, upgrading of gravel roads and asset management is very limited only those funded
by grants such as Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG) are being upgraded.

Over the years the municipality has focused on rehabilitation and upgrading of existing roads around the
municipal jurisdiction with focus in CBD, Extension 7, Shayamoya, Horseshoe and Bhongweni areas. Most
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of the roads in the CBD have reached their design life and road failures occurs which results to lots of
potholes developing. The municipality has thus focused on the rehabilitation of Kokstad CBD roads with
phase 1 completed in the 2019/2020 FY with phase 2 commenced in the 2020/2021 FY. The areas outside
the Kokstad CBD (i.e. Extension 7, Shayamoya, Horseshoe and Bhongweni) still have backlog of gravel roads
which requires upgrading to asphalt. The municipality over the year has upgraded gravel roads to asphalt
in different areas of Kokstad.

The following projects were completed in the 2020/2021 financial year:

PROJECT NAME PROJECT PROJECT PICTURE
DESCRIPTION VALUE

A. Upgrading of |
Horseshoe Roads |
Phase 1

The project entails | R 8 806 863.00
the upgrading of
approximately
2.0km of gravel
roads to asphalt in
the Horseshoe area.
The project also
includes
stormwater
upgrade which s '
both underground }

and surface \
drainage, road ‘
furniture and traffic

signs.

B. Upgrading of
Stormwater on
Murray Street and St
John Street- Phase 1

The project entails | R 12 908 695
the upgrading of
approximately

1.5km of
stormwater on
Murray street from
surface to
underground

drainage. The
project also

included  pothole i
| patching,  asphalt
overlay and side-
walk on Murray
street from Avenue
to Railway street
which is
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approximately
1.8km

C. Upgrading of
Extension 7 Roads
Phase 3

The project entails | R 6 603 067
the upgrading of
approximately
1.3km of gravel
roads to asphalt in
the Horseshoe area.
The project also
includes
stormwater
upgrade which is
both underground
and surface
drainage, road
furniture and traffic
signs.

Table 3.6.1

Gravel Road Infrastructure

Totalgravelroads | New gravel roads Gravel roads Gravel roads
! constructed upgraded to tar graded/maintained
2018/19 17.2km | Nil akm 4.6km
2019/20 17.2km Nil 5.5km Skm
2020/21 11.7km Nil 5.1km 6km
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Tarred Road Infrastructure

Total tarred New tar Existing tar roads re- Existing tar roads Tar roads maintained
roads roads tarred [ re-sheeted
2018/19 4km 4km Nil Nil 800 m?
2019/20 5.5km 3.3km 1.8km Nil 850 m?
2020/21 5.1km 5.1km Nil Nil 2200 m?

Cost of Construction/ Maintenance

R’000 |
Gravel : Tar |
Gravel-Tar Maintained ; Re-worked Maintained
2018/19 Nil R 15219 804.12 In-house R 6615 768.45 nil R 3 500 000
maintenance
2019/20 Nil R 9 279000 In-house R 4 000 000 R 3 500 000
maintenance
2020/21 Nil R 28 318 625 In-house Nil Nil R 3 600 000
maintenance

Top Three Service Delivery Priorities for Ward (Highest Priority First)

Priority Name and Detail Progress During 2020/21

7 Upgrade of Roads Extension 7 Phase 3 1.3km of road tared
3,5&9 Upgrading of Stormwater on Murray Street and St John Street- Phase 1 1.8km of road tared
1&9 Upgrade of Horseshoe Roads Phase 2 2.0km of road tared

D pend 020 oad e

R’000
D 020

» a AQ O
Total All %
Upgrade of Horseshoe Roads Phase 1 R 3 700 000 R 3337 400 -10%
Upgrading of Stormwater on Murray R 5620000 R5317920 -5%
Street and St John Street- Phase 1
Upgrade of Shayamoya Internal Roads R 4 600 000 R 4249928 -7%
Upgrading of Extension 7 Roads Phase 3 R 5380000 R 5548963 +3%
Rehabilitation of Kokstad CBD Roads R 3 600 000 R 3804 268 +5%
Phase 2

3.7. WASTEWATER (STORMWATER DRAINAGE)

The Municipality is responsible for the maintenance of storm water drainage, however the challenge that
is facing the Municipality is the shortage of staff or human resource to perform the required task. The areas
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that the Municipality tagerts are CBD, Bhongweni, Shayamoya, Horse-shoe, Extension 7. The municipality
has also procured a jetting machine which will assist in the clearing of blocked drainage system.

STORM WATER DRAIN CLEANING

JETTING MACHINE
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COMPONENT C: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND SPATIAL PLANNING

The 2017/2018 Policy decision of the Municipal Council which enabled the establishment of the Economic
Development and Spatial Planning Department, reinforced the emphasis of structured growth and
development whilst ensuring that the Council’'s development strategies and priorities are aligned with
provincial and national strategies.

The Department’s foci remain the progressive and holistic realisation of the developmental agenda whilst
simultaneously ensuring that it strives to realise a regional economic nexus thus mandating a synergy
between economic development and spatial planning, as key development initiatives, paramount as one
cannot function in the absence of the other.

Given the ever changing global economy and the emphasis on smarter approaches to providing services
within the developmental context, the Municipality in the 2020/2021 sought and was approved funding
from the Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs to the value of
R500,000.00 for the development of a Smart City Development Strategy.

EMPHASIS ON LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

All around the world, local governments, the private sector and civil society are demanding better ways to
achieve local economic development, a cornerstone to sustainable development. This is due to the fact that
local government faces increased democratic reforms and greater decentralisation while simultaneously
there are massive transformations taking place in the global economy resulting from trade liberalisation,
privatisation and enhanced communications. The significance of these changes is that citizens and local
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government face formidable challenges, greater opportunities, and growing responsibility to work together
to address the economic health of municipalities and the livelihood of their local citizens, many of whom
are under- or unemployed and living in poverty.

Achieving economic growth and staying competitive is a serious challenge in itself. Ensuring the benefits of
growth are spread widely such thai development becomes inclusive and impacting on the quality of life of
all citizens is even more challenging. We should therefore not only ask how we can make economic growth
a reality in our communities, but how can we make sure that economic growth benefits the margalised and
the poor.

This requires firmly placing LED within the broader framework of local sustainable development and
because LED is a particibatory process requiring people from all sectors to work together to stimulate local
commercial activity it is necessary to understand that LED is a process-orientated and non-prescriptive
endeavour incorperating:

¢ Local values [poverty reduction, basic needs, local jobs, integrating social and environmental
values);

¢ Economic drivers {value added resource use, local skills training, local income retention, regional
cooperative) and
¢ Development (the role of structural change, quality of development)

The above therefore suggesis that LED is not about “quick fixes” or generating wish lists. It requires a
practical understanding of what the local area does well and what is has to offer, where its weaknesses and

gaps lie, what outside threats and opportunities exist, and what the local area wants and needs.

The vision of the department, remained:

Through innovation and dedication, the EDSP department will advance, align and augment resource
capacity to realise the Municipality’s sustainable development trajectory by 2047.

In order to ensure alignment with the Municipal vision together with provincial and national strategies but
more importantly to initiate innovative ways to ensure authentic realisation of growth and development
perspectives.

The vision unpacked, mandates that we work towards:

Innovation: Improved methods / processes of translating strategic objectives into goods or services that
create or add value

Dedication: Quality of being dedicated and committed to realise the developmental agenda of the
Municipality through 5Year Legacy Projects and a 30Year Sustainable Development Plan

Advance: Through political and strategic decisions taken, to drive {{ead) economic development and growth
{overlay of planning processes, land use, business retention, etc.

Align: All planning, resource allocation, recruitment, etc to respond to intention of vision

Augment: Increase / Add Value to
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LA,

Resource Capacity: Land, human, assets, financial incl. renewable and non-renewable and assistance
obtained

Sustainable: Economic development that is conducted without the depletion of natural and man-made
resources

The revised vision and mission affirms the premise of ensuring that a consolidated approach through the
formulation and implementation of the Local Growth and Development Strategy is taken to realising and
advancing:

Competitive Advantage: Economic Hub of the District, Serviced Industrial Sites, Agriculture, agri-
processing, manufacturing, locality — Gateway into South Africa from Lesotho and into KZN from the
Eastern Cape.

GKM Responsiveness: Development of Smart City Development Strategy

Friendly and Safe Environment: Including Light Industrial expansion, Agri-processing potential, re-
commercialisation reinstituted land i.e. farms, dry port

GKM Responsiveness: GKM own funding investment into the economy in the form direct support
to primary agriculture

To Work: The Youth dominate the demographic and with influx of high school graduates into the pool
of unemployed school leavers places strong emphasis on initiatives for long term development of Youth
to allow them to actively engage in the labour market. Methods should focus on life-long learning
thereby providing the principle of providing bursaries for school leavers.

Consideration should also be given to the manner in which the Expanded Public Works Programme
{EPWP) is implemented. Initiatives to pariner with existing business will be explored to engage unskilled
labour with an cbligation on the Municipality to meet a portion of the labour cost thus providing the
opportunity to access work opportunities as a full-time equivalent.

GKM Responsiveness: Expansion of EPWP Programme to include semi-skilled and skilled
participants as a means to obtain experience or alternatively the completion of a qualification.

To do business: investment friendly initiatives to be unconventional and need to be inclusive of red
tape reduction. Whilst simultaneously attracting investment it becomes imperative that methods to
retain the existence and expand the operation of current business with focus on SMME’s and
Cooperatives as a means to adequately address the triple challenges.

In this regard, the current methodology of procurement with public funds needs to be innovative to
respond to set-aside procurement from targeted sectors {Youth, Women, Disabled and Military
Veterans) and should strive to build capacity and develop skills.

GKM Responsiveness: Introduction of the Strategic Projects Fund with 13 SMMEs identified for
assistance to the value of R2,1million.

A better life and access to guality service delivery: Revenue enhancement strategies need to be crafted
which do not increase the burden on those that can afford to meet the cost of services and
infrastructure plans regularly updated so as to identify critical infrastructure requirements. [n addition,
the Municipality needs to respond to infrastructure development as a means to attract investment,
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vi.

Vii.

viii.

especially in the nodal areas (e.g. CBD, proposed Developmental Node -
Franklin_Makhoba_Swartberg).

Stakeholder Relations: The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 assigns specific Powers
and Functions to the different spheres of government and categories of municipalities. In the Kokstad
context, as the only authority with all-inclusive authority within the local sphere, the municipality has
a fundamental role to play in strengthening stakeholder relations and engagements so as to address
backlogs and reduce possible repetition of services provided.

GKM Responsiveness: Support in the establishment and strengthening of forums.

Good Governance incl the Policy Environment: A constitutional mandate exists that requires that we
remain accountable and in so doing, the onus rests with us to facilitate participative governance as a
means to strengthen coordination and capacity. A policy environment which is pro-poor but
economically sustainable needs to be informed by all stakeholders and actively implemented.

GKM responsiveness: All policy are developed in-house and respond to the formal and informal
economy, EPWP, Red Tape Reduction, Military Veterans, and Investment attraction together with
business retention.

Improved livelihoods: The spatial inequity created by past imbalances continues to exist in
predominantly the rural areas. Pragmatic measures to redesign areas should have already occurred
however in the absence of this, this strategy through its catalytic projects needs to remain mindful of
the pressing need for spatial equity.

Success can only be realised in encouraging a business environment where markets can operate efficiently,
but appropriately, within the local context. Micro, Small and Medium-sized enterprises must be strongly
supported and encouraged to take the lead as they play a key role in creating new local employment, wealth
and tax generation. Visible results can help maintain momentum in the short term, and simply initiating a
single project focusing on one critical issue might pave the way for long term success. Ultimately LED is
about sustainable development in the long-term, for it takes time to change local conditions and mind sets,
building capacity, organise participatory processes and empower stakeholders, especially the poor.

3.8. SPATIAL PLANNING

SPATIAL PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT VISION AND OBJECTIVES

MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT VISION

The vision is a roadmap of a municipality’s future, the direction in which it is headed, the position it intends
to be at within a certain period of time and the capabilities it plans to develop. From this, the Municipality
is able to create an organizational purpose and identity.

All stakeholders must share a clear vision of what they want, and passionately believe in their ability to
achieve it. The vision, key principles, objectives and the role of each of the identified nodes must be drawn
up. This requires a great degree of participation on the part of the stakeholders.

The following vision was developed for the Greater Kokstad Municipality:
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“BY 2047, THE GREATER KOKSTAD MUNICIPALITY WILL BE THE MAIN LOGISTICS AND
COMMERCIAL HUB OF THE HARRY GWALA DISTRICT THROUGH THE DEVELOPMENT AND
SUSTAINABLE USE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND AGRICULTURAL RESOURCES FOR
ECONOMIC GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF ALL COMMUNITIES”

The vision is underpinned by the fellowing principles: -

= Systainable growth and development

= Quality, affordable services and service delivery,
= Financial health and fiscal discipline,

= Transformation and integration,

= Accountable and transparent local government,
= Respectful and fundamental rights,

= Equity,

»  Safe and secure living environment,

In support of the vision, the mission statement below aims to guide the political leadership and
administrative functionality: -

“PROVIDING SUSTAINABLE SERVICES TO COMMUNITIES THROUGH OPTIMAL AND
PROFESSIONAL DEPLOYMENT OF RESOURCES AND ENHANCING FECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT, SAFE AND HEALTHY ENVIRONMENT”

The vision will provide direction in the planning process and will ensure that the process is focused. In terms
of the vision, there certain fundamentals, which provide guidelines for, decision-making. These guidelines
for the basis for any decision making made by the Greater Kokstad Municipality, stakeholders, interested
and affected parties and potential investors.

DEVELOPMENT OBJECTIVES
in order to achieve the future vision, the following overall objectives have been formulated; -

There exist a multitude of principles, directives, and guidelines for spatial planning and development at
national and provincial level. In terms of the White Paper on Spatial Planning and Land Use Management,
2001, “The overall aim of the principles and norms is to achieve planning outcomes that:

»  Restructure spatially inefficient settlements;

»  Promote the sustainable use of the land resources in the country;

r»  Channel resources to areas of greatest need and development potential, thereby redressing the
inequitable historical treatment of marginalized areas;

= Consider the fiscal, institutional and administrative capacities of role players, the needs of
communities and the environment;

= Stimulate economic development opportunities in rural and urban areas; and

v Support an equitable protection of rights to and in land.

The various principles and directives can be translated into a set of collective development objectives in
accordance with the national agenda that forms the overarching objectives of the Spatial Development
Framework, namely -.

= To promoie sustainable development;

®  To promote efficient development;
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= To promote equitable development;
= Toensure integrated development, and
= Toimprove the quality and image of the physical environment.

Applications for Land Use Development

Formalization of Rezoning Built Environment
Townships
2019/2020 2020/2021 2019/2020 2020/2021 2019/2020 2020/2021
Planning application received 5 12 5 8 172 142
Determination made in year of receipt 5 12 5 8 172 142
Determination made in following year Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Applications withdrawn Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Applications outstanding at year end Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
2020-2021:

Total Operation Cost was R100 000.00 (adverting, registered mail and printing)
Total Revenue Received R122 313.09 on Development Applications
2020-2021:

Total Operation Cost was R100 000.00 (adverting, registered mail and printing)

Total Revenue Received R 148 387.31 on Development Applications

4-6 10 10 10 0 0%

7-9 0 0 0 0 0%

3.9. LOCALECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Local Economic Development as defined in adopted National LED Framework reads:

“LED will seek to create competitive, sustainable, diverse, innovation-driven inclusive local economies that

are vibrant places in which to live, invest, and work, which maximise local opportunities, address local

needs, and which contribute to South Africa’s national development objectives, including sustainable ways
of utilising local resources and expand learning capabilities”. (National LED Framework, 2018-2028)
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The following Table indicates the Thrusts along with the programmes, projects and development facilitation
actions identified to promote growth and development together with the status as realised in the

2019/2020 financial year:

PROGRAMMES

PROJECTS AND DEVELOPMENT FACILITATION

THRUST 1: LOCAL BUSINESS SUPPORT AND STIMULUS — ACHIEVEMENTS

Local  marketing | e
and promotion of
investment

opportunities °

Investment attraction through the facilitation of rates rebates enabled the |
securing of R240million investment to allow for the expansion of the Rolyats
Shopping Complex;

Release of Municipal owned vacant site for the retention (by consolidation) of |
3 x emerging businesses with an anticipated investment of R15million for |
expansion

Implementation of Integrated Centre (Franklin_Makoba Development Node) -
R2,8million — presently awaiting final adjudication for the development of the
Farmer Production Support Unit (DRDLR) — R5million

Partnerships with funding institutions, development agencies and sector
departments resulted in capacitation of emerging contractors, Community
Tourism Organisation (CTO), Suppliers Day to enable more active participation
in local economy.

Establish e
entrepreneurial °
and small business | o
support structures

Industrial e
strengthening and
trade development | o

Partnership with SEDA for the training and mentorship of local enterprise

Updated database for local businesses

Inclusive of locality in functionality to augment the retention of local spend
Establishment of Greater Kokstad Business Forum to enable information
dissemination, facilitate linkages between SMMEs and larger franchise groups

Reviewed Informal Economy Policy and adoption of Bylaw to allow for a more
formalised approach to the informal trade sector !
Various workshops and Bulk Buying initiatives in collaboration with the |
Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Services
Offtake agreements with local chain stores for primary production

Investment and Attraction to realise a Regional Economy — AfroZonke Chemical
Manufacturing

THRUST 2: RESTRUCTUING AND DIVERSIFYING THE RURAL ECONOMIC BASE |

Social
renewal

capital | o
and

Improved access to support services within wards and information in rural
areas
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improved access to
external markets

Sustainable farming | e  Established 10 x demonstration plots, distribution of seedlings together with

practices for mechanisation for 40 emerging enterprises
emerging farmers

and youth

e Supported economic collaboration amongst 50 farmers, especially smaller
producers, to form and develop cooperatives

o Provision of business support for co-operative, development advice and
linkages with intermediaries

¢ Facilitated the development of partnerships between emerging farmers,
commercial farmers, traditional leaders, etc

o Facilitate the development of supply/service contracts with local SMME ‘s and
agricultural enterprise

e Facilitated farmer support DARD and DRDLR — R300,000 fencing for
Cooperative in Franklin ]

THRUST 3: AGRICULTURE SECTOR EXPANSION AND PROMOTION OF LOCAL VALUE ADDING

Expansion and PROJECTS:
diversification of e Received funding approval for the development of a Farmer Production
existing agricultural

products

Support Unit {FPSU} in Franklin with committed funding of RSmillion —
currently considering a decentralised approach with mini-FPSU’s as collection
points in different wards within GKM

e  Through LED Unit, iocal farmers enabled to participate in the National School
Nutrition Scheme.

3.9.1. POLICY FORMULATION
The following policy documents were formulated and subsequently reviewed so as to inform the activities
of the Municipality in strengthening the realisation of the objectives of LED:

Business Registration and Licensing Policy — as per Powers and Functions of Constitution and
Business Act, 71 of 1991 - to regulate all trade within municipal jurisdiction

informal Economy Policy — in line with the KZN Informal Economy Policy — to be proactive in the
regulation but more importantly to augment the activities to sustain the entry level enterprises
Allocations Policy — to inform the criteria in considering the allocation of municipal owned trading
sites

Expanded Public Works Policy {(Phase IlI} —to augment realisation of Phase Ill Principles to increase
opportunities for Job Creation and to inform the processes to address the exit of participants from
the programme so as to ensure there is sustainable development

SMME / Enterprise Development Policy ~ as a means to strengthen emerging enterprise as a means
to retain local spend and provide means for the strengthening of emerging enterprise to graduate
from being emerging

Business Retention, Expansion and investment Attraction Policy — aimed at facilitating access to
financial and non-financial support and opportunities to aliow for the development of SMME’s and
local business enterprise based on the provise of a 1-Stop-Shop.

Marketing Strategy — as a means to attract investment into municipality as the preferred
destination to live, work and do business. Inclusive herein is the reduction of bureaucratic red tape
as a means to augment investment, retain and expand existing enterprise. The Municipality was
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invited by SALGA in October 2019 to present the status of the initial assessment undertaken in
terms of Red Tape Reduction.

Military Veterans Support Policy -~ as a means to provide direct assistance to one of governments
priority sectors in the form of economic opportunities, training, skills development and
employment opportunities through existing government programmes.

Pr

3.9.2. PARTNERSHIPS
To progress the objectives of local economic development, as LED is a partnership approach, partnerships

were concluded with the following:

fii.

GKM and Small Enterprise Development Agency (SEDA) — Mol of Collocation: Objectives:

e Toincrease presence of SEDA in Kokstad by establishing offices in Kokstad

o Placement of Municipal funded intern to ensure that the needs of SMME’s are coordinated
and fast-tracked

e The offices are anticipated for operation in the 2019/2020 financial year and will be based
on the Light Industrial Park as @ means to augment increased foot traffic in support of the
existing businesses in operation. The SEDA offices work in conjunction with the Greater
Kokstad Business Forum.

GKM and Private Sector together with sector departments and community structures

Establishment of EDGE {Economic Development, Growth and Enterprise Forum), launched in
November 2017 as a means to strengthen partnerships with Private Sector and Sector Departments
so as to align pricrities, align budgets and strengthen the coordinated approach to development

One of the limitations, due to human resources challenges, was the frequency of meetings of the
Forum. This however is determined to change, and its functionality and successful operation has
been included as a deliverable for the respective Unit.

Notwithstanding challenges in the functionality of the Forum, the Municipality engages with the
different sectors through the sub-fora {e.g Greater Kokstad Small Business Forum, Community
Tourism Organisationn)

Partnership with Durban Chamber of Commerce and KZN Growth Fund subsequent o the hosting
of the Growth and Development Summit — the partnership is intended to strengthen businesses
and attract investment

Partnership with the Moses Kotane institute (entity of EDTEA) for the realisation of the Innovation
ignition Programme and implementation of the ICT Hub. The Programme also seeks to train
enterprise on how to do business on different levels of technology.

Establishment of various Fora to augment economic sectors: The following forums were
established, have met frequently and continue to receive the support of the Municipality:

¢ (reater Kokstad Business Forum
e AgriForum
¢ Community Tourism Organisation

Page 93 of 353



e Llocal Informal Economy Chamber

vi. Development of Tourism and Investment Brochure as a means to market the Greater Kokstad
Municipality as the destination of economic possibilities and to advance the main economic sectors.

3.9.3. AGRICULTURE

The most important economic thrust realised for the agricultural sector was the prioritisation of
Franklin_Makoba_Swartberg triangulation as a development node for the Municipality and the decision of
the Council to direct investment into the area either through direct municipal own investment or the
channelling of grants to realise the development trajectory of the area.

The Franklin_Makoba_Swartberg Development Node has received the following investment:

e Cultural Village — R14,5million — CoGTA Funded: Status — Project complete — along with the
construction and the engagement of local labour as per mandatory requirements, local
cooperatives received diverse opportunities in the development (e.g. thatching of roofs)

e Integrated Centre — R2,8million — DRDLR funded: Status — Contractor appointed — completion was
extended for anticipated in March 2019 however with challenges and the subsequent onset of the
COVID19 pandemic, the completion has been staggered. It is intended that the Centre will be
repurposed for the establishment of a manufacturing facility.

e Farmer Production Support Unit (FPSU) — R5million — DRDLR Funded: Status — awaiting final
adjudication by DRDLR BAC

e 8 x Hydroponic Tunnels with internal drip irrigation system — R2,0million — GKM Funded: Status:
Project Close Out

e Borehole (Franklin) complete- R2million — Complete

A
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—

Tractor and implements in response to Farmer Production Support — initiatives to increase primary

production

3.9.4. JOB CREATION AND EXPANDED PUBLIC WORKS PROGRAMME (EPWP)

Job creation through Government Led interventions Projects

Job creation through EPWP* Projects

Details EPWP Projects NO. Jobs created through EPWP
Projects NO.
2018/19 CWP 500
EPWP 693
2019/2020 Cwp 600
EPWP 848
2020/2021 CWP
EPWP 938
TOTAL
2019/ 2019/ 2020/ 2020/ Status
2021/ | 2022/ | 2023/ FOR
2020 2020 2021 2021 To
Greater 2022 | 2023 | 2024 | PHASE
Target | Achieved | Target | Achieved Date
Kokstad v
Municipality [ o 382 718 388 938 395 | 401 | 408 1974 1656
FTE 128 324 130 322 132 134 136 660 646
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The LED Unit has remained committed to ensuring that EPWP is integrated into the internal processes of
the Municipality and with the support of Council and the administraticn, through the adoption of the EPWP
Policy — Phase IV the following has been realized:

Adoption of Policy — Phase IV

Adoption of Recruitment Guidelines in compliance with National and Provincial guidelines which
has now determined the process of recruitment to be fair and transparent

Adoption of Standard Operating Procedures —the first for the District

IMPLEMENTATION OF SHAYAMOYA INTERNAL ROADS — PHASE 1

In 2019, COGTA approved R10million for implementation of Shayamovya Internal Roads Project — Phase 1.
The project sought to address the trilemma facing communities, namely social protection {income),
employment together with skills transfer and infrastructure {provision of assets and services) whilst
simultaneously retaining local spend.

Rationale of implementation methodology:

a.

b.

An increased number of work opportunities — 74 {WOs) — Youth graduates, semi-skilled, unskilled

Provision of on-site working experience for graduates and learners to enable advancement of
qualification or completion of technical studies

Retention of local spend in directing procurement to local businesses

Enabling a wide scope of learning and capacity such as financial services to reduce dependence on
government social grants therein advancing sustainable development

Ownership of government led projects in that communities hold a sense of responsibility for their
own development as well as the rehabilitation of existing environment and infrastructure — 2,5km
internal road infrastructure
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0-3 1 1 1 0 0%
4-6 0 0 0 0 0%
10-13 2 2 2 0 0%
Total 3 3 3 0 0%

Total Operational 0 8 864 000.00 8 864 000.00 3227 031.50 36%
Revenue

Expenditure

Employees R3 226 606.39 9779829.00 9779 825.00 8719 606.13 89%
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Repairs and N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Maintenance

Other 2511725.00 2511725.00 1227 332.49 48%

Total Operational 12 291 554.00 12 291 554.00 9946 938.62 81%
Expenditure

3.9.5. POVERTY ALLEVIATION

i.  Partnership with Department of Small Business Development and SEDA — assistance to informal
economy actors

Through the IMEDP (Informal Micro Enterprise Development Programme) funded through the Department

of Small Business Development and implemented through SEDA, supported 20 (twenty) Informal Economy

actors to the value of R115, 696.00 for the supply and delivery of items in support of the type of businesses
in operation.

ii.  Assistance to Kransdraai Female Owned Cooperative

In support of rural based cooperatives, the Municipality assisted the Kransdraai Female owned cooperative
to the value of R90,000.00 for the supply and delivery of bakery equipment.

iii. Community Gardens — Assistance to Emerging Farmers.

150,000 seedlings (variety) were distributed to the various community gardens being supported across
Municipal jurisdiction .

3.10. RESPONSIVENESS TO COVID19 PANDEMIC

The Greater Kokstad Municipality acknowledges that the novel COVID-19 global pandemic has and will
continue to fundamentally reshape our lives. More than a health crisis, the pandemic has resulted in
devastating personal, social, economic, and educational disruptions.

The Economic Renewal, Growth and Transformation Plan seeks to devise a programme of action to address
the immediate, latent, and enduring socio-economic challenges caused by COVID-19. The overarching goal
is a concerted effort to resuscitate and strengthen economic activity whilst simultaneously realising the
development trajectory of the Municipality and its economic actors.

The prevailing COVID-19 global pandemic is equally unprecedented and unforeseen. To mitigate the likely
impact, the President announced lockdown measures The impact of the pandemic will manifest across the
socio-economic environment and at different levels across the social and income strata. The Presidential
Proclamation in March 2020 declaring a National State of Disaster and the subsequent legislative response
by government to flatten the infection curve has come at the expense of steepening the macroeconomic

recession curve. Arguably, the technical recession existed prior to the proclamation however has been
exacerbated.
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Without deflecting from the debilitating impact, the pandemic offers government an opportunity to assess
failing policy and structural positions. The development of immediate innovative programmes and the
complementary redirection or reprioritisation of budgets becomes critical.

Based on the above premise, the Municipality, having consciously reviewed its existing strategy
documentation, current financial and human resource capacity embraces a pragmatic and progressive
outcomes-based approach to economic recovery and transformation.

The plan, aligned to all spheres of government, is intended to recover and transform the economy to
address immediate challenges, devise a socio-economic agenda to averl a continuation and to
simultaneously realise growth.

1.1,

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on food security, safety and nutrition,
albeit in different ways. Currently, 135 million people globally face acute hunger, and it is
estimated that by the end of 2020, this figure will have almost doubled to 265 million, because
of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Continued contests such as limited revenue collection, poor consumer spending, low business
confidence and private sector investment, together with the impact of the pandemic, it is
forecasted that the country’s economy could likely contract by between 5 — 17%.

Notwithstanding business and household relief measures and without measuring the impact,
the shrinkage in the economy is further compounded hy:

e Business downsizing or shutting down operations.

o Government revenue declined as a result in disruptions in service payment and
reduced access to working capital.

o Unemployment and Poverty levels increased,

The above implies that while relief programmes are useful, they are not job creation policies
and are therefore not sustainable.

Key messages extracted from the South African United Nations Socio-Economic Impact
Assessment, 2020 reveal that about 54% of households pushed out of permanent employment
to informal jobs are likely to fall into poverty, about 34% of which are those categorized as
middle class. Higher incidences of poverty are likely to occur in female headed households,
rural dwellers, populations with education below secondary level, unskilled labour and the
informal sector.

Overall, it may take at least five (5) years for the economy to return to pre-2019 levels.
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The following presents the Municipality’s responsiveness to the COVID19 pandemic, specific to attempts

to sustain the economy:

OPPORTUNITIES

APPLICABILITY

ACTION TAKEN DURING
LOCKDOWN

CONTINUAL ACTION IN
ACCORBANCE WITH RISK
ADJUSTED STRATEGY

Government led

interventions:

*  South African
Future Trust
(SAFT)

*  Debt Relief
Finance Scheme

*  Business
Growth/Resilience
Facility

*  Spaza Shep Grant
Funding

«  Tourism Relief
Funding

+  COVID-19 SME
Fund

+ |DCCOVID~15
Essential Supplies
Funding

= COVID-19 UIF
Temporary
Employer/
Employee Relief
Scheme {TRS)

= COVID-1%9 Business
Rescue Assistance
(COBRA}

*  Training Lay - off
Scheme

«  COVID —-15 Tax
Relief

Promoticn and Development
of SMMEs and Cooperatives
—in the form of Funding
Opportunities and Debt Relief

+  Continual information
dissemination on the
availability of
oppaortunities to all
struciures / fora
within the
Municipality {i.e.
Greater Kokstad
Business Forum,
Kokstad Chamber of
Commerce, SMME
Database, Emerging
Enterprise Database
and interested
individuals not
registered on any LED
led database)

+  Verified database of
210 informal
Ecanomy Aciors as
per December 2019

94 Farmers telephonically

contacted and encouraged

to apply for funding
through DARD

+  Facilitate access to finance and
funding for business expansion
and growth

+  Provide business advisory
services, e.g. formalization of
business entities and
compliance with applicable
regulations.

*  Liaise with EDTEA, Ithala,
0SB0, DARD, DRDLR and other
funding institutions on status
of applications

STATUS OF ACCESS AND ASSISTANCE TO DATE:

* Registration of 163 business enterprise on SME government database (Spaza Shops — 88 and
Informal Economy Actors — 210

* Supplied Social Relief (Food Parcels) to 210 Informal Economy Actors as a means to alleviate
poverty prior to the amendments to the 06 April 2020 regulations — value of assistance

R286,000.00

* In collaboration with DARD and DRDLR — updated database of Farmers together with produce
immediately available and projected — submitted to RASET and given access to markets locally
and within the District
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AT
:

* Coordinated the submission of 44 applications from Greater Kokstad Municipality — each
application valued at the maximum of R50,000.00

+ Database of Spaza Shops (88) developed and submitted to SALGA, CoGTA — LED Unit and DSBD

*  Assisted 55 Spaza Shops with the completion of applications to enable accessing funding

Given the impact of the pandemic on the economy and the approach to a “new normal”
will need to device mechanisms to alleviate job shedding and a possible shrinkage in the economy. However
there existence an opportunity in every circumstance and it is the intention of the Municipality to augment

a buy local campaign.

Continued interventions per economic sector:

A. LAND AND AGRICULTURE
Agriculture is one of the main economic sectors within the Greater Kokstad Municipality and includes
existing commercial and micro farmers as well as emerging farmers. In considering the promaotion of
agriculture and value-chains with backward and forward linkages within the production and services
sector, the following challenges must be addressed:

¢ Climate change and resultant impact

e Llimited interest in agriculture by the youth and subsistence farming

e Access to formal markets together with supply and demand disparities

the Municipality

+ Infrastructure challenges, knowledge base, access to credit and innovation i.e. climate

resilient crops

Programme

Intervention

Responsibility

Status / Time Frame

Assessment of land potential and
ploughing schedule,

GKM and DARD

Ongoing

DARD and EDTEA

Increase and Strenethen Responsive mechanisation GKM September 2020
. . § Procure tractor and farming implements | GKM June 2021

Primary Production and - q ; c c 1

Mechanisation Establish 12 x Hydroponic Tunnels — | GKM omplete
Franklin
Establish tunnels — Bhongweni and | GKM December 2020
Pakkies
Access to RASET Programme GKM, HGDM, | Immediate based on

production avatlability

Market Support for Small
Scaie Farmers Off Take Agreements GKM and DARD
Mentorship programme through June 2021
partnership with commercial farmers
Value Add Refrigerated Shed and Vegetable | GKM December 2021
produce storage
Skills and Capacity identification of programmes for g All Ongoing
Development implementation including business
and marketing skiils
Programme Intervention Responsibility 1 Status f Time Frame [
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Revitalisation and | » Establishment of Borehole — Franklin GKM Complete
strengthening of irrigation | ¢ Establishment of Borehole — Pakkies GKM June 2021
systems
Farmer Production Support | e  Establishment of refrigerated shed and | GKM lune 2021
Unit (Franklin} vegetable packhouse
Agronomic  seeds  and | Development and operation of: GKM and DARD lune 2021
horticulture seedling | ¢ Nursery — Seedlings
production prograrmme to | ¢  Agronomic Seed Production — under
support  farmers, food irrigation and dry land
security and youth | ¢  Fruit tree propagation
empowerment
Unlock potential of milk | Facilitate development of dairy infrastructure
cluster and value chain

e Database of dairy farmers and status of

activities
° Invgstlgate needs (facilities, market, GKM, DARD,
equipment) Long Term
— DRDLR, ADA

Unlock red meat value | Facilitate development of beef out-grower
chain model and commercialisation of cattle across

value chain inclusive of textile industry

»  Black owned abattoir

e Supply into textile industry

B. INDUSTRY DEVELOPIMENT

Industrial development remains a key driver of economic growth. In the context of Greater Kokstad
Municipality, it is necessary to view industrial development in the regional context.

Programme

Intervention

Responsibility

Status / Time Frame

Access to Opportunities

Facilitate access to Relief Funds for the
different sectors i.e. formal, informal
economy (tuck shops, informal economy
actors), agriculture, tourism

GKM, Sector
Departments,
SEDA

Ongoing

Business Fora engagements

¢ Active  participation in  8-A-Side

discussions

e  Quarterly meetings with all Business Fora
i.e. Kokstad Chamber of Commerce,
Greater Kokstad Business Forum

+ Resuscitate and strengthen Cornmunity
Tourism Grganisation

GKM, EDTEA and
Business Fora

Ongoing and Quarterly

tand Availabitity
Business Expansion
Investment Attraction

for 5
and

‘e Lland Audit

inclusive of identifying
municipai owned land and structures

¢ Repurposing Community Halls to develop
business enterprise on a ward based level

GKM

December 2020

Programme

Intervention

Responsibility

| Status / Time Frame |

Page 102 of 353



o Market services and ensure proper
capacitation

GKM and Service

One Stop Shop Service ¢  Source funding for the establishment of a Prowlders . lune 2021
- appointed at risk
One Stop Service Centre
s Ensure compliance with legislative implemented with
Regulatory Compliance prescripts GKM ongeing review and
o Red Tape Reduction compliance
Private Sector Partnerships | Establish  partnership  with  Chemical | GKM, EDTEA and
for Investment Attraction | Manufacturer for establishment in Kokstad — | Private Sector
{Chemical Manufacture and | manufacture, supply and deliver sanitisers
Essential Qils) Establish partnership with essential oils | GKM, EDTEA June 2021
industry
identify land reform farms for planting of
essential oil trees (eucalyptus)
Bylaw Adoption and promulgation of Bylaw | GKM Bylaw in draft — June
regulating retail, tourism, etc 2021
Local content Ensure requirements as per DTIC Local | GKM BTO Immediate — Complete

Content for focally manufactured goods is
incorporated into all tender / bid documents

C. CLOTHING AND TEXTILE SECTOR

The clothing and textile sector has been in decline and has been greatest hit due to factory closure
in most instances due to the import of raw materials. The influx of counterfeit goods remains a
continual challenge especially in the informal economy.

In addition to the above, the uncoordinated approach to market access of cooperatives and limited
compliance with industry standards (SABS) poses a threat to the retention and expansion of

initiatives.
Programme Intervention Responsibility Status / Time Frame
Facilitat t i i i
N ° acilitate access to relief fu.ndl'ng 'eather GKM, SEDA, | Immediate and
Access to Opportunities to sustain jobs or for recapitalisation of .
. EDTEA Ongoing
eguipment
GKM and
Regulatory Compliance ° Busme;s ms.pectlc?ns . and e;lﬁsurmg Regula‘tory Quarterly and Ad Hoc
compliance with legislative prescripts Compliance
Forum

¢ Database of local producers inclusive of
readiness for market {inc! industry
standard compiiance}

GKM, EDTEA and

Stimulate Local Production - June 2021
o Develop training programmes SEDA
e  Partner with private sector to partner for
mentorship
Access to markers ® Pubh‘c/‘Goyernment institutions and the GKM, EDTEA June 2021
hospitality industry
Alternative source of raw | ¢ Investigate establishment of hemp | GKM, EDTEA,
. . R June 2022
material production — primary and processed DARD, MKI

Page 103 of 353




D. TOURISM

Tourism cuts across multiple sectors and has an impact thereon such as the hospitality industry,
food and beverage industry, transport, sporting events, retail outlets, etc. The active promotion of
Tourism within industry standards together with the impacted sectors requires strong
considerations and support.

Programme

Intervention

Responsibility

Status / Time Frame

Information  dissemination including
process of compliance with industry

GKM and EDTEA

Access to opporiunities . Immediate
PP norm and technical assistance {(Tourism | (Tourism}
BEE Charter)
Establishment of Visitor Information
Centre (Franklin} together with visual art | GKM and EDTEA
ga”ery( ) tog R700,000.00 secured
.. . - from EDTEA. In the
Visitor Information Centre Tourismm  and  Investment Brochure
together with active marketing process of
- GKM and CTO procurement.
Update database of outlets together with
places of interest
— Community Tourism Organisation and | GKM, Tourism | Immediate and
Institutional arrangements . . -
ensure membership of outlets outlets in Kokstad | ongoing
Currently under
. o . . implementation
Capacity build
pacity building Upskitt and reskitt GKM through EPWP LED
Learnership
. " December 2020 {upon
Tourism Programme and Lobby citizens to become travellers | GKM, HGDA, development { pof
Product Development within own municipality and district EDTEA P

tourism brochure)

Meetings and Conferences

Ensure functionality of Franklin Cultural
Village

GKM and private
service provider

December 2020

E. INFORMAL ECONOMY

The informal econemy contributes 18% of the total employment in the province and is likely to
increase given increased unemployment. In most instances the informal economy is underrated
and not properly assisted or supported. Further, the informal economy traders are the only actors
recognised whereas the informal economy is expansive to include the transport industry, home
based business, etc. Challenges in the sector include limited access to infrastructure and services,
excessive enforcement and exclusion from proper planning in the development of central business

districts.

Programme

Intervention

Responsibility

Status / Time Frame

Legislative compliance

Review of Informal Economy Policy

together with Allocations Policy in GKM Complete — adopted on

respect to Informal Trader Permits with 28 May 2020

emphasis on South African Citizens
Complete and

Informal Economy Bylaw GKM promuigated - no
changes

Trading Permits — advertisement and

renewal

. . Process commented for

Expansion of database to include all . .

actors within the informal economy GkM completion n
December 2020

(waste pickers, home based business, taxi
industry, etc)
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Review of Growth and Development

Strategy — Increase focus on informal | GKM March 2021
economy
Provided in Aprii 2020
Provision of Social Relief Measures GKM to the value of
R287,000.00
i | diat d
Relief and Support Facilitate access to opportunities GKM and SEDA mme. rate an
Measures Ongoing
Access to 1 Stop Service GKM Immediate
Access to free wifi GKM June 2020
N Strengthen Local Informal Economy GKM and Local Immediate and
Institutional Support Chamber and e o rterl Informal Economy Quarter!
mber and engage quarterly Chamber y
Promote  cooperative model  for
Localisation purchases and engage with private sector | GKM immediate
for discounts for informal economy
Analyse and review demarcated trading
areas including mapping of trading area
Consider review of Bylaws to enable GKM (Spatial
Trading Space trade from mobile or customized ready Planning) P December 2020
to use units 8
Integrated areas of trade — Taxi Rank
Development
Application for funding
informal Economy Trading Stalls GKM submitted to EDTEA
and DBSD
Access to services {water and sanitation) | GKM (IS} December 2020
Infrastructure Development -
Invesiigate development of cluster
development to accommodate informal | GKM {LED and
economy in all development | Spatiat Planning)
opportunities
Capacity building and skills Identify skills including reskilling and Becember 2020
development illi
pment upskilling — GKM,  EDTEA,
implementation of Identification of key personnel in SEDA
automated licensing Municipality
process Implementation of automated licensing
Actively develop and implement
awareness programmes 1.6, correct GKM LED, €SS and | December 2020
trading practices, waste management .
Awareness Programmes . Special
practices
. : . Programmes
Compliance with COVID19 regulations .
Immediate

i.e. social distancing, face masks, etc
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CREATIVE INDUSTRY, SPORTS AND CULTURE

The creative industry is defined as drama or theatre, music, film, creative writing,

photography and visual arts.

graphic design,

Programme Intervention Responsibility Status / Time Frame
Facilitate operation of Franklin Cultural ;
Ongoin
Village with usage of outdoor amphitheatre GKM gomng
Repurpose Community Halls to become GKM_ = (55 and
. . . Special June 2021
active centres with music hubs
Programmes
Music and Visual Arts Estabhshr‘nent of Visitor information Centre GKM LED December 2020
(see Tourism)
Strengthening of Arts and Crafts — including | GKM — LED and | Immediate and
skills and capacity building Css Ongoing
ediate and
Museums to run quarterly programmes GKM CSS tmmedi
guarterly
Fashion Design Faghtate Support to industry GKM Special Emmt?d:ate and
Skills Development Programmes ONngoing
Consider local radio station GKM N June 2021
Communications
Music Industry immediate and
Events, Concerts and Festivals GKM CS5 Ongoing as per events
calendar
¢ Free Wifi
Access to facilities GKM LED and CS June 2021
e Access to information
Club Development - development of
database for all sporting codes — provision of | GKM €55 Immediate
Sport and Recreation necessary support
Equine Industry — Programme together with GKM CSS June 2021

support to the supply and value chain

G.

INFRASTRUCTURE

Although not a specific economic sector, infrastructure development contributes to the economic
enhancement of assets, SMME development in participation to economic opportunities together
with investment. Whilst municipalities allocate budgets for development, a consolidated and fast
paced approach needs to unfold to ensure integration and stimulation of the economy.

It also becomes critical to prioritise catalytic project development together with nodal

development.
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Programme

Intervention

Responsibility

Status / Time Frame

Review and submit for inclusion in Provincial

Catalytic Project List . . . GKM September 2020
priority project list
Fast track implementation
Provision of Sub-contracting for SMME Immediate and
development ensuring compliance with ongoing — june 2021
GKM Capital Projects preferential procurement GKM

Application for funding to augment project
implementation for new projects which are
currently unfunded

June 2021

SANRAL
Interchange

Project -

Active participation on PLC to ensure that
30% basket of opportunities benefits
applicable SMMES in line with priority sectors

SANRAL and PLC

As per project duration

Capacity Building and Skills GKM, DOT and | Immediate and
C .

Development SMME / Contractor Development Programme DPW! Ongoing

Alternative methods of | Enhancement of EPWP Programme as a Dependent on project

project implementation

means to augment job creation

GKM

implementation model

Facilitate implementation of water projects

Water inclusive of new projects — Dam and | HGDM and GKM June 20201

exploration of water harvesting
. Facilitate impl i

Government precinct at:|} ate Imp emf'anta_t_lon of government GKM and DPWI December 2020

precinct — land availability processed
. Establish status and include on catalytic

iviega School —~ Franklin . ' . . - Y GKM December 2020

project list for Provincial prioritisation
. 'Unlock potential for increased private sector December 2020

Private Sector Development | investment GKM

Reduce red tape to enhance approval stages Immediate
. AKHA Doctors Private Hospital
Hospitals s ospta June 2021

o Facilitate partnership and licensing

H. ALTERNATIVE AND RENEWABLE ENERGY

The sector incorporates a host of both alternative and renewable solutions which could alleviate
demand on conventional systems and generate additional energy to ignite the possibility of
reducing cost of supply.

Programme Intervention Responsibility Status / Time Frame

Fmallsatlc-m of Policy and Bylaw for adoption | GKM — LED and March 2021
by Council ITS

Small Scale Embedded - " -

Generation Assessment of current solar installations in
Kokstad and the impact on conventional | GKM ITS December 2020
supply

Manufacturing of | Partner Wl.th private sector for Fhe training GKM LED june 2021

components and establishment of manufacturing

) Explore establishment of Solar Farm GKM and SALGA December 2020
Energy generation Business Plans for solar based projects GKM LED March 2021

. TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND DIGITAL ECONOMY

The increasing usage of ICT together with the advent of COVID-19 has caused an amplified urgency
in addressing the inequality of access together with the provision of reliable channels of
communication. ICT further enhances the manner in which business should be done in respect to
communication, online stores, web based training, etc. The implementation of ICT should always
remain mindful of the criteria of a smart city ensuring accessibility to alk.
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Programme

Intervention Responsibility Status / Time Frame

Innovation Ignition Hub

Implementation of ICT Hub at Kokstad Skills
Centre

Anticipated for
Responsive Training Programmes developed | gxm and MK completion in
responsive to 41R September 2020

Innovation Support

Community Wide
Broadhand

WiFi accessibility in all areas in a phased
approach

GKM LED and IT June 2021

Automated services

investigate and establish of fully automated

\ GKM
system in a phased approach

June 2021 (over 3
years)

1. INVESTMENT AND TRADE

To revive economic activity whilst responding to infrastructural development, the attraction of
investment as a stimulus for injection into the economy and job creation is crucial. Notwithstanding
the need to attract investment, existing business must be retained and given access to
opportunities to enable expansion. The contribution serves to retain existing jobs and providing
parameters for SMMEs to become employers.

Programme intervention Responsibility Status / Time Frame
Review Policy and ensure alignment with
Revenue Enhancement Strategy and Town | GKM March 2021
Planning Compliance
Strengthen 1 Stop Service Centre activities
. . and ensure 1 channel of communication for | GKM TIKZN June 2021
Business Retention, | ., . .
X investment — inclusive of SMME Desk
Expansion and Investment Farilitate accoes T Tunit ——
Attraction HIe © OPPOTLUNILEs INCRICE | wuny EDTEA and
financial support, skills development and TIKZN June 2021
regulatory compliance
Development of investment brochure
including information on land and service | GKM December 2020
availability
Strengthen local production responsive to
. export opportunities inclusive provision of
Value Chain and Export p PP eS| Ve p VISt GKM, EDTEA and
" skills and relevant regulatory compliance -~ June 2021
Opportunities . TIKZN
focus to women and youth owned business
for export

CONSIDERATIONS

ITEM

INTERVENTION

CONSIDERATION

and Transformation Plan

GKM Economic Renewal, Growth

As guided by the Provincial Plan the Municipality
is required to formulate a local plan. The Plan
however requires considerations in respect to:

e Current budget allocations for projects and
programmes versus projected to enable the
realisation of the Plan

e Human Resources to augment the
responsible departmental unit to facilitate
implementation of the plan

Amendment to Organogram to
cater for the implementation of
the Plan — requirement; 1 x
Experienced LED Officer

For consideration — 2020/2021
Budget Adjustment
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ITEM

Economic Relief

INTERVENTION

CONSIDERATION

The Provincial Plan requires that the Municipality

makes available:
o Specific budget provision to implement the

Municipal Plan
e Economic Relief Packages in respect to tax
holidays, interest on accounts due, etc

Proposed Projects

Herein, specific attention is made to unbudgeted
projects aimed at rejuvenating the economy
specific to rural and township economies.

Currently éhe LE{_) Unit Has
R2m for the implementation
of the Strategic Projects
Fund. Application is being
made to EDTEA to co-fund
the programme which may
only be applicablein
2021/2022.

Considerations for relief
packages is a Council
mandate and needs to be
considered in line with the
financial status of the
Municipality.

Adjustment Budget for
2020/2021 to consider
possible additions to capital
budget to cater for new
projects.

Amendment to Bylaws

To revive rural and township economies, current
limitations in respect to the infrastructure to
trade needs to be considered i.e. ready built /
customised containers

Council to consider possible
revisions to policy / bylaws

to possible regulations that
limit innovation

Community Halls

Proposed repurposing of Community Halls due to

| possible limited usage. The Community Halls
| could be considered as venues for business

related activities.

Council together with CSS,
Special Programmes and LED
to consider possible
repurposing of community
halls as areas of business
functionality.

COMPONENT D: COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL SERVICES

This component includes: libraries; community halls; cemeteries, stadiums, public toilets, parks, pound
management and Operation Sukuma Sakhe.

3.11. LIBRARIES, COMMUNITY FACILITIES

There are two libraries in Greater Kokstad Municipality, one in Kokstad Town and one in Bhongweni. The
Kokstad Library has a capacity of 50 persons seated, while Bhongweni Library has a capacity of 43 people
including computers with internet access. Library services offer career development activities with schools
and work in association with some sector departments in dissemination of information related to health,
HIV/Aids awareness and sports development. However, these two libraries are inadequate as they are too

small for the population served and do not have adequate study space for students.
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Kokstad Town Library Bhongweni Library

Franklin modular library

The Municipality together with Department of Arts and Culture has constructed Modular Library at Franklin
and in the process of constructing study library at Shaymoya.

Basic Computer Training

Libraries offer basic computer literacy course to community members and students to empower public on
how to operate computers and to be computer literate.

Library orientation/school visits

This programme includes incorporating local schools to be educated in all Library Services and the basic
and basic understanding library services including computer literacy. The benefits of Outreach programme
for promote library services include increased usage, increased value in the Library usage, education of
users and changed perceptions.

Literacy day

The main purpose to celebrate the Literacy Day is to encourage awareness towards literacy so that
everyone can know their social and individual rights. As we need food to be live, we need literacy for social
and personal development, considering the immensely increased rate of poverty, uncontrollable
population growth, gender inequality, etc. Kokstad libraries together with local school we decided to
celebrate the day with a goal to remove these problems. Eliminating them not only helps individuals to
grow, but also contributes to the overall growth and upliftment of the community.
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Library programme with the toddlers & juveniles

Libraries are filled with toys these days; the aim is to promote sharing between toddlers and juveniles,
and to improve the lifestyle of the children growing from township. Toys are tools that the little brain uses
to grow and the types of tools that children interact with shape their understanding of the world around
them.

'Eﬁiﬁloyees: Libraries; Archives; Museums; Galleries; Community Facilities; Other

Job Level 2019/20 2020/21
Employees No. Posts No. Employees No. Vacancies (fulltime Vacancies (as a % of
equivalents) total posts) %
0-3 0 0 0 0 0%
4-6 2 1 2 0 0%
7-9 2 5 2 2 50%
10-12 2 2 2 1 50%
13-15 0 16 0 0 0%
T16-18 5 5 2 0 0%
19-20 0 0 0 0 0%
Total 9 27 8 3 30%

Financial Performance 2020/21: Libraries; Archives; Museums; Galleries; Community Facilities; Other '
R’000 |
2019/20 5

Details 2020/21

Actual

Original
Budget

Adjustment
Budget

Actual

Vacancies to
Budget % |

Total Operational - R2 898 000.00 | R2 898 000.00 R2 261 300.00 78%
Revenue
Expenditure
Employees R2344 71461 | R2512320.00 | R2 512 320.00 R2 452 722.50 97%
Repairs and R83.00 R165 000.00 R165 000.00 R150 500.00 91%
Maintenance
Other 0 R355 066.00 R355 066.00 R112 807.44 32%
Total Operational R2491809.42 |0 0 0 0
Expenditure

3.12. CEMETERIES AND CREMATORIUMS

INTRODUCTION

The Greater Kokstad Municipality has investigated and allocated land for establishing cemetery and
crematoria in ward 10 under its jurisdiction as part of its critical infrastructure provision and commitment
toservice delivery, construction of this new cemetery is complete and ready for use. The old town cemetery
will be closed by February 2022.
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Employees: Cemeteries and Crematoriums

Joh Level 2019/20 2020/21
Employees No. Posts No. Employees No. Vacancies (fulltime Vacancies (as a % of
equivalents) total posts) %
0-3 0 0 0 0 0%
4-6 0 0 0 0 0%
7-9 0] 0 1 1 100%
10-12 1 1 1 1 100%
13-15 0 0 0 0 0%
16-18 6 6 6 6 0%
19-20 0 0 0 0 0%
Total 7 7 8 8 100%

Financial Performance 2020/21: Cemeteries and Crematoriums
R’000

Details 2019/20 2020/21

Actual Original Budget = Adjustment Budget Actual Vacancies to
Budget %

Total Operational 300 000.00 300 000.00 285773.29
Revenue
Expenditure
Employees | 1545170.48 1228776.00 1228776.00 1251038.68 100%
Repairsand | O 0 0 0 0

Maintenance

Other 810 247.00 810 247.00 622 669.27 77%
Total Operational | 1555 526.04 2039023.00 2039023.00 1873707.95 91%
Expenditure

3.13. CHILD CARE, AGED CARE, SOCIAL PROGRAMMES

INTRODUCTION

The Special Programmes Division is located in the Office of the Municipal Manager responsible for
advocacy on behalf of vulnerable groups i.e. youth development, gender, children, senior citizens
and people with disabilities.

The mandate of the Special Programmes division is to promote, facilitate, coordinate and monitor
the recognition of the rights of women, men, youth, children, senior citizens and people with
disabilities.

Youth Development

The Municipality has in 2020/21 financial year revive of re-launched the Greater Kokstad
Municipality Youth Council which is the supreme youth structure in the Municipality. Being
established by organised youth structures within the municipal area; the structure represent the
voice of the youth in the youth struggle for socio-economic transformation.
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On the 19 June 2021, a Youth Dialogue was held in Youth Centre under strict Covid 19 regulation,
Alert level 4. The dialogue platform was addressed by youth local businessperson and a guest
speaker Mr A Makayi who is also a United Nation Youth Ambassador.

Women Empowerment

The Municipality on the 20" August 2020 hosted the GKM Women'’s Virtual Workshop conducted through
Microsoft Teams with audience hosting in different venues due to Covid19 Lockdown Regulations. The

workshop was addressed by the Honourable Minister of Communications and Digital Technologies,

Page 113 of 353



Minister Stella Ndabeni-Abrahams, who imparted the value of the 4™ Industrial Revolution to the audience
and how it is a useful tool in helping women realize their rights, create their own normal and take up space
in society. The Women’s Day 2020 was celebrated under the National Theme: Generation Equality:
Realizing Women'’s Rights for an Equal Future #lamGenerationEquality

S WOMEN'S
KORETAD MONTH

[ SUNIOIRALITY

WOMEN'S
VIRTUAL WORKSHOP

Diate s 20 Vst 2028, Tharsday
ez 10600 1o 12530

Send Favaid lo;
EsethuNkaule@Kokstad.gov.za |

Fir REQEEST LINK or €all: (29 797 6759

KEY XOTE ADBRESS

Generation Equality:
Realising Women's Rights
for an Equal Future

#GenerationEquality

DISABILITY

The Municipality has continue leading by example by ensuring all municipal facilities are accessible by the

people with disabilities including ensuring designated parking areas. We have also support a disabled
person with a mobile wheelchair.
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4-6

7-9 0 0 0
Total

COMPONENT E: SECURITY AND SAFETY

This component includes: Traffic Oficers, fire, disaster management, licensing, and control of animals, and
control of public nuisances etc.

INTRODUCTION

The community safety component has a mandate to ensure that a safe and healthy environment is
established and maintained within the jurisdiction of the municipality. This mandate is executed through
the continuous enforcement and monitoring of municipal by-laws. Our area is an economic hub and services
a wide range of communities. This has a direct bearing on mobility with routes including the N2, R56 and
R617 providing means to get to Kokstad. As a result, we engage on traffic law enforcement initiatives which
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include the certification of vehicles for roadworthiness, driver’s license testing and general traffic law
enforcement. An integrated approach has been adopted through engaging with relevant stakeholders on
matters pertaining to road safety awareness and crime reduction initiatives.

The municipality has made provision for cameras to be installed within the CBD and enhanced police
visibility to combat crimes which seek to hinder a progressive city. Security personnel have been made
available to safeguard municipal property. The COVD-19 pandemic that engulfed the global community has
further stretched available resources as the municipality took a conscious decision to adopt all Disaster
Management Regulations as Municipal By Laws. Specific plans were placed in terms of limiting mobility and
implementing non pharmaceutical interventions with an intention to slow down the rate of infection.

3.13. POLICE

INTRODUCTION

The Community Safety deduces its mandate from Section 152 (d) of the Constitutional Act of the Republic
of South Africa where it is prescribed that municipalities are to ensure a safe and healthy environment for
its citizens. Further, the municipality has developed a Safety Plan which eloquently ventilates the roles that
sister departments along other internal municipal divisions need to play in ensuring that the area of Greater
Kokstad Municipality maintains relative safety and security. The number of guarded sites has increased
significantly due to infrastructure development throughout the wards in Kokstad.

The core foundation in terms of Traffic Law Enforcement remains the following five {5) pillars...

Pillar_1: Road Safety Management — through various awareness campaigns some of which was in
partnership with other stakeholders, the component advocated for veluntary compliance. Visibility was
greatly enhanced when an additional 10 members joined the component. Approximately 93 programs were
put in place throughout the year which focused on various areas of law enforcement. Additionally there
were 16 Awareness campaigns that were conducted for the period under review.

Pillar 2: Safer Roads & Mobility — through programs championed by other departments, the municipality
saw a plethora of programs being implemented that would have contributed towards ensuring that the
road infrastructure was improved which paved the way for enhanced mobility, Through our technical staff

the municipality was able to ensure that the correct signage was placed accordingly, and the relevant road
markings renewed. The engineering aspect is a shared responsibility, the roads infrastructure budget and
expenditure has contributed towards ensuring that our roads are safe in terms of design and aesthetics.

Pillar 3: Safer Vehicles — the municipality runs a Grade A vehicle testing facility which is well equipped and
adequately staffed. We have been able to maintain this status. Our Vehicle Testing Station is a conduit

towards our contribution towards ensuring that vehicles on our roads are fit and roadworthy. The vehicle
testing station boasts state of the art equipment which bodes well for the credibility of the testing process.
Various programs that have sought to target RTQS (Road Transport Quality System) vehicles and ensure
that these vehicles remain in a roadworthy condition at all material times. The public transport operators
have been invited on a few occasions to participate in programs aimed at assisting them in ensuring that
their vehicles are kept in good mechanical condition at alf times.
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Pillar 4: Safe Road Users — We continue to run a Grade A Driving License Testing Centre. Our Centre is well
equipped with the necessary equipment and experienced staff members. Our aim is staunchly entrenched

in values which seek to produce quality and knowledgeable drivers through implementing fair testing
processes. Again through our partnership with the Department of Transport we have implemented a
technologically advanced testing system which has allowed for the use of Tablets capable of recording audio
as well as visuals. The benefits are prevalent in that we can minimize instances of fraud and corruption.
Our public awareness drives have further targeted pedestrians who are the most vulnerable group of road
users and part of this was encouraging pedestrians to remain visible at night through donning bright
clothing and avoiding jay-walking.

Pillar 5: Post-Crash Response — a vibrant team of Traffic Officers is always immediately available to respond

to any motor vehicle incidents that may occur. Response times can be the difference between life and death
and through simulation exercises we were able to determine where we needed to improve our response
times.

The subsequent waves of the Corona Virus insurgence further compelled Law enforcement to continue with
the vigorous approach aimed at flattening the curve. Hot spots were identified which included shopping
centers, public transport facilities as well as various gatherings deemed as potential super spreaders
received the necessary attention.

4-6 6 7 6 i 14%
7-9 21 25 22 3 12%
10-18 6 6 |6 0 0
Total 33 38 |34 | 4 10.5%

3.14. POLICE

A conscious and deliberate decision was taken pertaining to the approach towards law
enforcement. This approach sort to be a proactive approach seeking to avoid the occurrence of
any wanton disregard of any form of legislation that prevailed. Top amongst the priorities was
to advocate and encourage voluntary compliance. The integration of Law Enforcement activities
has also led to strengthened relations and allowed the dipping into various and widespread skills.
Our Law Enforcement personnel is well trained and experienced enough to be able to manage all
law enforcement activities that require attention within Kokstad.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE TRAFFIC DEPARTMENT

\
|
DETAILS 2018/19 \ 2019/20 2020/2021

ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL
TOTAL R4 157 496,00 | R3 532 015, 40 R6 871 172.86
OPERATIONAL
REVENUE |
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TOTAL
CAPITAL
BUDGET

R500 000.00

R 1150 000.00

R500 000.00

LAW ENFORCE

MENT INITIATIVES

WAL

AWARENESS CAMPAIGNS
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3.13. FIRE SERVICES AND DISASTER RISK MANAGEMENT

Greater Kokstad Municipality has a mandate to perform Fire & Rescue Services and Disaster Management
within the Kokstad area of jurisdiction, although there are financial constraints in order render services
more effectively and efficiently, but the municipality has intention of establishing a fully-fledged Disaster

Management Centre in line with spirit of Disaster Management Act amendments of 2015.

A Policy Framework for Disaster Risk Management mandates municipality to provide appropriate
mechanisms to allow the application of cooperative governance to facilitate both intergovernmental and
municipal interdepartmental relations as well as community participation for the purpose of disaster risk

management.

3.14.1. STATUS OF MUNICIPAL INTEGRATED AND INSTITUTIONAL CAPACITY

3.14.1.1. Municipal Disaster Management Inter-Departmental Committee

Greater Kokstad Municipality Top Management consisting of Municipal Manager, Executive Manager
Corporate Services, Executive Manager Community and Social Services, Executive Manager Infrastructure
and Technical Services, Executive Manager Economic Development and Planning and Chief Financial Officer.
They are the members of Municipal Disaster Management Inter-Departmental Committee and the

committee seat once a month and is functioning well.

3.14.1.2. Operational Capacity of the Disaster Management Centre

The Disaster Management Act No.57 of 2002 requires municipalities to establish functional Disaster
Management Centre in their areas of jurisdiction; Greater Kokstad Municipality in compliance with the legal
prescripts has established Disaster Management, Fire & Rescue Services Section within Community and

Social Services Department. According to organogram the section is headed by sectional Manager:
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Community Services and Head of Disaster Centre. However, the position of Chief Fire and Disaster

Management Officer is still vacant.

The section is operating on four shifts system for the service to be available 24/7. The section has 18

qualified Fire Fighters, Fire Station Officer, Disaster Management Officer, Disaster Management & Fire

Services Clerk and 5 EPWP beneficiaries under Disaster Management Learnership.

The municipality has also 26 working on Fire Team deployed at municipal Fire Station.

To be pro-actively and optimally perform all statutory responsibilities the Greater Kokstad Satellite

Municipal Disaster Risk Management Centre has established satellite Fire Station at Franklin in order to

cover the whole municipal area in terms of SANS 10090. However, the Satellite Station is not functioning

due to the shortage of operational resources.

Disaster Management Fire & Rescue Services Organogram

Chief Fire & Disaster
Management Officer

Fire Services Station
Officer

leading Fire Fighter
A Shift

Leading Fire Fighter Leading Fire Fighter ' Leading Fire Fighter Leading Fire Fighter
B Shift C Shift D Shift . Franklin

Fire Fighterx 3

Job Level

Employees for 2020/21: Fire Services
‘ 2019/20
| No. of
‘ Employees

2020/21
No. of
Vacancies (%)

No. of Posts No. of Vacancy rate

Employees

Chief Fire Officer & 100%
Deputy
Other Fire Officers 19 22 19 4 20%
0-3 01 0 01 100%
4-6 1 01 01 100%
7-9 05 05 6 10%
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10-12 15 16 15 01 0.1%
13-15
16-18
19-20
Total 20 23 19 3 9%

As the means to capacitate personnel in order to perform their duties to the best of their

abilities

e |n February and March 2021, the Head of Disaster Management Centre registered for

Masters Degree in Disaster Management with University of Free State and Disaster

Management Officer registered for Postgraduate Diploma (NQF Level 8) in Disaster

Management with University of Free State.

e During the month of March 2021, 12 of the 17 Fire Fighters completed their assessments

in Disaster Management Certificates (NQF Level 4).
e Also in the month of March 2021, 10 of 17 Fire Fighters attended First Aid Course as First

Aid is a requirement for all Fire Fighters

3.14.1.3. Status of Infrastructure Requirements

Greater Kokstad Municipality has a mandate to perform Fire & Rescue Services and Disaster Management

within the Kokstad area of jurisdiction , although there are financial constraints in order render services

more effectively and effeciently but the municipality has intetion of establising a fully fleged Disaster

Management Centre in line with spirit of Disaster Management Act amendments of 2015.

The physical location of a permanent Disaster Management Centre had been identified and fenced.
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Fire, Rescue and Disaster Management functions are currently performed from the temporal centre at 11

St Johns Stree. The temporal centre is fenced and equiped with basic operational facilities.

Equipment and tools
e 2 xFire Engines
e 1xRescueVan

e 1 xFireFighting Van
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3.14.1.4. Municipal Disaster Management Advisory Forum

e Disaster relief material in the form of blankets, sponges, Box B relief material and temporal

Fire Fighting equipment

e Old Jaws of Life (the municipality is in the process of procuring new one.

Greater Kokstad Municipality has launched Community Safety and Disaster Risk Management Advisory

forum in July 2018 and seating on a quarterly basis or when need arise (when there is major incident which

need formation Joint Operation Centre). There is a challenge of inconsistence attending of meetings; the

committee resolved that departments must appoint focal point to be permanent members of the

committee.

Schedule of meetings for 2020/21 Financial Year

No | Activity Date Venue
01 | Community Safety & Disaster Management | 13 November 2020 Council Chamber
Forum
02 | Community Safety & Disaster Management | 23 March 2021 Council Chamber .
Forum |
03 = Community Safety & Disaster Management | 28 June 2021 Council Chamber
Forum
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3.14.1.5. Municipal Disaster Risk Management Planning

Disaster Risk Management Capacity Assessment

Average Capacity Ratings

2.5 +

2.0 - Sufficient

1.5

1.7 1.5 1.5

1.5 e 4‘%—‘_\-;13 S e T "
¢ . 1.2
——
05
Staff / HR Expertise, Vehicles Equipment Funding/ Budget Facilities / Plans: Prevention Plans: Response
Experience Buildings

Based on the above results, it can be stated that:

e The average Capacity Rating achieved for the entire municipality were calculated to be 1.5.

This value relates to a classification of between insufficient and enough resources.

o The resources rated as being in greatest need were Facilities/buildings, followed by

Funding/Budget and Prevention/Risk Reduction Plans.

e The highest rated available resources included the level of expertise/experience as well as
human resource. Even though these resources were rated the highest, they were still

classified below the ‘sufficient’ level,

Status of Municipal Disaster Management Policy Framework

Disaster management legislative compliance
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Disaster Management
Framework
(Section 42)

Disaster Management
Plan
(Section 53)

Advisory Forum
(Section §1)

Disaster Management
Centre
(Section 43)

Head of Disaster
Management Centre
(Section 45)

Prorty

| Staus

| Stalus

Pro

b s SRR KL e H SR e e ] I

Fire Prevention Bylaw has been promulgated and implemented.

L]

The municipality adopted Disaster Management Plan

Disaster Management Advisory forum is seating on quarterly basis.

Disaster Management Volunteer Policy
e Winter season plan

e Summer season plan

Disaster Management matters form part of Operation Sukuma Sakhe agenda items.

Status of Municipal Disaster Management Plan

Greater Kokstad Municipality Disaster Management plan (level) has been adopted by council on the 28 June

2018 and was last reviewed in 2020/21 financial year.

Disaster Management & Fire Services Swot Analysis

Provide strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats

Strengths Weaknesses
e Responsive organisational structure to e Vacancy on critical posts (Chief Fire & Disaster
implement Disaster Management, Fire & Management Officer and Leading Fire Fighter

Rescue mandate.

Budget to perform Disaster Management, Fire
& Rescue mandate.

Trained disaster management , fire & rescue

operational staff

for Franklin).

Limited budget

No formal disaster management centre
risk reduction

Slow implementation of

programs
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Fire Engines and Firefighting equipment
procured

Dedicated disaster management site
Comprehensive integrated awareness
campaigns

24/7 Fire & Rescue shift system

Adopted bylaws and policies

No Ecosystem-based Disaster Risk Reduction
(EcoDRR) program in place, as a means to

minimize climate-related disasters.

Opportunities

Informed community — due to intergraded
awareness campaigns

Development of town and housing projects
reduce vulnerability.
Ecosystem-based Disaster Risk Reduction
(EcoDRR) is partial promoted to minimize

climate-related disasters and more can be

done in this regard.

Threats

Climate change adaptation challenges i.e. late
fire season which delay fire breaks program
Socio-economic challenges which lead to
houses which does not comply with building
code and exposed to hazards

Mushrooming of informal settlement which
are exposed to fires and limited access by fire
engines

Drug abuse
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Challenges for Disaster Management and Fire Services as per SWOT Analysis

CHALLENGES

INITIATIVES

Vacancy on critical posts (Chief Fire & Disaster
Management Officer and Leading Fire Fighter for

Franklin).

Filling of Chief Fire & Disaster Management Officer by
2021/22 financial year. Filling Leading Fire Fighter
(Franklin) by 2021/22 financial year.

Limited budget

Increase disaster risk reduction budget in 2021/22

financial year.

No formal disaster management center

{fencing completed)

Establishment of disaster management center (phase

1) by 2022/23 financial year.,

Slow implementation of risk reduction programs

implementation of risk reduction programs

Climate change adaptation challenges i.e. late fire

season which delay fire breaks program

Implementation of climate change adaptation strategy

Socio-economic challenges which lead to houses which

does not comply with building code and exposed to

Implementation of local economic development

programs which improve economic development of the

hazards town.
Drug abuse Community safety awareness programs and support of
drug rehabilitation centres
13.15.2. DISASTER RISK ASSESSMENT

13.15.2.1. List of Priority Risks {Hazards)

The Greater Kokstad Local Municipality just like any other municipality in the province of KwaZulu-Natal is
prone to several natural and human induced hazards. The vulnerability varies, which mainly depends on

socio-economic status as weil as the exposure of a household or community to a specific hazard.
The different types of hazards were identified in wards.

The table below outlines the list of priority hazards that are affecting the municipal area. The
spatiotemporal characteristics of these hazards are well known since they have been observed and

recorded continuously.

The municipality has conducted risk assessment during the review of the disaster management plan in

2020/21 FY and here are the top 10 priority risks:
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Greater Kokstad Local Municipality

Risk Likelihood Impact

No. | Prevalent Hazards and Threats |
High Priority | Annual Recurrence Interval (ARI) |

1 Structural Fires ARI 10 (100%) Major Risk |

2 Veld Fires ARI 10 (100%) Major Risk

3 Snow Strong winds ARI 10 (100%) Major Risk

4 | mvas AR 10 (100%) Major Risk

5 Drought ARI 10 (100%) Moderate Risk

6 Floods (River, urban, dam failure) ARI 10 (50%) Moderate Risk

7 Heavy rainfall ARI 5 (50%) Moderate Risk

8 Mist ARI 5 (50%) Moderate Risk

9 Animal diseases ARI 5 (50%) Moderate Risk

10 | Lightning ARI 5 (50%) Moderate Risk

Hazard Maps

AR IMD

(GGroatadK ok stac)

4
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Map 2: Structural Fire Risk Map
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Map 4: Lightning Risk Map
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13.15.2.2. Community-based disaster risk assessment

In the 2020/21 Financial Year, community-based disaster risk assessment was conducted in the informal
settlements at Mphela and Horsehoe informal settlements. The assessment was conducted in colleboration
with University of Witwatersrand, Johannesburg. The findings and recommendations are to be published

at the University (Masters Level) and be made available in the GKM libraries and Achieves.

The Municipality Disaster Management Centre has also developed the Fire Risk Model for the Greater
Kokstad Municipality. The model is focusing on making use of community capitals to prevent and mitigate
the risk of fire and strengthening preparedness, response, recovery, rehabilitation and reconstruction for
resilience. In this model the municipality is working with University of Free State, Disaster Management

Training and Education Centre for Africa (DIMTEC).

13.15.3. DISASTER RISK REDUCTION FOR GKM

The municipality is mandated to ensure all disaster risk management stakeholders develop and implement
integrated disaster risk management plans and risk reduction programmes in accordance with approved
frameworks. On disaster risk reduction, Greater Kokstad Municipality gives attention to the planning for
and integration of the core disaster risk reduction principles of prevention and mitigation into ongoing

programmes and initiatives.

13.15.3.1. Prevention Programmes/initiatives

The December 2019 Floods in the Province of KwaZulu-Natal left thousands of people homeless.
The people residing in a floodplain in Mphela informal settlement in Kokstad were severely
affected. Uponreconstruction, as the means to build back better in reconstruction the municipality

together with Department of Human Settlement set aside budget to construct temporal shelters

in another area that is suitable for the construction of houses.
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Affected area | Ward No. | Relocating to No of Assessments | No of Approved

Mphela & | 18&9 Shayamoya Ward 10 | 300 89

Horseshoe |

el e T —

L aareeiy

I
= ]

Prevention initiatives

DESCRIPTION Jul | Aug | Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec | Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr | May | Jun | Total
Fire breaks program 08 |05 00 |00 |00 00 |00 |00 |00 00 |04 08 | 25
Fire Patrols 14 16 14 ir 23 i 23 |13 10 10 12 15 189
Water Supply 07 |08 |09 |11 |11 00 |02 |00 |00 04 | 08 04 | 62

13.15.3.2. Mitigation Programmes/initiatives (JULY 2020 till JUNE 2021)
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DESCRIPTION Jul | Aug | Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec | Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr | May | Jun | Total
Business Inspection and | 00 | 00 03 ‘ 01 |07 08 |03 (02 |02 05 | 04 03 | 34
Awareness 5

i
Hydrant Inspection 00 (o0 (02 |01 |05 |04 [03 |01 |02 |04 [02 |00 |22

e ——————

\ el -A
&Y --h}:

Provision of Fire Beaters and Knapsacks to community structure as means to strengthen their capacity

against fire risk.

No Area Ward No of Fire beaters No of Knapsacks
1 Pakkies Farm 06 | 10 02
2 Thuthukani 06 | 10 02
3 Nyanisweni 02 10 02
4 Bhongweni 08 10 02
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Handing over of Fire
Beaters and
Knapsacks to the
following areas;

1. Thuthukani A/A

2. Pakkies A/A

3. Nyanisweni A/A

4. Bhongweni (Ward 8)

A St

Basic Fire Fighting skills
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13.15.4.

KPA 4-RESPONSE & RECOVERY

During 2020/21 financial year there was no declared disaster although the municipality has responded to a
few incidences as per the following Disaster Management, Fire & Rescue Services activities.

DESCRIPTION Jul | Aug | Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec | Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr | May | Jun | Total
Structural Fires 04 |03 |10 |04 |02 |01 [01 (00 |01 02 |02 04 | 34
Motor Vehicle Accidents 10 (08 |09 |08 |07 12 |04 |03 |06 04 | 00 02 |73
Other: 18 23 15 04 05 04 05 04 04 05 15 23 125
(Road-0il  spillage,  Fire

extinguisher (burning tree),
Cleaning of road, Fire
inspection, Delivering of
water to various wards, Fire
drills.
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Relief Material Issued

1%t Quarter 3" Quarter
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Details

Budget for Disaster Management, Fire and Rescue

Financial Performance for 2020/21: Fire Services

2019/20
Actual

Original Budget

2020/21
Adjustment
Budget

Variance to
Budget (%)

Total Operational 1563 159.35 970 725.00 970 725.00 818 850.06 84%
Revenue
Expenditure:
Employees 3563 291.66 7 667 482.00 7 667 482.00 8 064 808.11 100%
Repairs & 87 360.87 170 000.00 170 000.00 74 652.30 44%
Maintenance |
Total Operational 3 650 652.53 7 837 482.00 7 837 482.00 8139 460.41 100% ?

Expenditure

Page 139 of 353



3.16. OTHER (DISASTER MANAGEMENT, ANIMAL LICENSING AND CONTROL, CONTROL OF
PUBLIC NUISANCE AND OTHER)

The municipality has reviewed disaster Management, Disaster Management Volunteer Policy. Disaster

Management Advisory Forum has been launched. The rest of the information is articulated under fire
information.

COMPONENT F: SPORT AND RECREATION

3.17. SPORT AND RECREATION

Greater Kokstad Municipality in working relationship with Department of Sport and Recreation, District
Sport Confederation, Greater Kokstad Local Sport Confederation and Federations are trying to maintain the
sport through this Covid-19 pandemic by organising online games, yet the challenge is data to the
participants.

Greater Kokstad Municipality has zero budget in unit of sport, arts and culture to assist community,
meaning no activities to develop sport in our community. Our stakeholders (departments and Confed) assist
by organizing events to keep community active, and municipality assist with facilities transport and doing
administration requesting the stakeholders to assist local federations with equipment.

Level of community members living a healthy lifestyle is growing through the help of municipality interms
of using facilities to train. The whole district use Greater Kokstad as place to play leagues eg. Netball, Soccer,
Volley ball and Indigeniuos Games Federation.

4-6 0 0 0 ‘ 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

On the 19" June 2021 Greater Kokstad Municipality, Department of Sport and Recreation, District Sport
Confederation and Athletic Federation had an event (District Youth Run 10km) which was at Oval Cricket
Field, where participants were coming from all 4 locals.
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10km hg district youth run GREATER KOKSTAD/ DSR EPWP COMMUNITY MEMBERS

4-6 0 0
Total 0 0 0 | 0 0

COMPONENT G: CORPORATE POLICY OFFICES AND OTHER SERVICES

3.18. FINANCE

All our financial policies were reviewed for the 2020/2021 financial year. The municipality initiated a data
cleansing exercise of the billing information as one of the initiatives to ensure an improved revenue
collection and also to curb abuse of the Indigent subsidy.

The proportion of account value hilled is calculated by taking the total value of the year’s revenues
collected against the bills raised in the year by the year’s billed revenues.

0-3 5 5 0 0%
4-6 10 10 0 0%
7-9 3 3 0 0%
10-12 15 15 0 0%
Total 32 32 0 0%
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Total Operational Revenue | R400 131 558 406 714 648 3342968 381124727
Expenditure:
Employees R134 202 824 140 358 256 2 081302 145553 524
Repairs & Maintenance R9 982 298 31226498 8972 700 23396 225
General expenses R58 907 111 45934 631 3428 652 39087036
Bulk Purchases R98 433 057 123 009 771 596 497 109 282 374
Other R78 908 962 79544 317 3537717 94 535 063
Total Operational R380 434 252 420073 473 18 616 868 411 854 222
Expenditure ’
Net Operational R19 697 306 (13 358 825) (15 273 900) (30 729 495)
Expenditure

3.19. HUMAN RESOURCES SERVICES

The Human Resource Section supports the Municipality’s six Departments. Working collaboratively with
the Municipality’s Council, Management Team and Employees, the Section coordinates the following:

KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 1: WORKFORCE PLANNING

Workforce planning is a core process of human resources management which is linked to business
processes aimed at ensuring that human capital is in place to deliver short and long-term objectives.

KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 2: RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION

The recruitment and selection process are primarily aimed at procuring staff with the necessary
competencies, thus enabling the organization to deliver on its strategic and operational priorities. The
municipality, after having had a moratorium placed on recruitment, engaged in a recruitment drive in the
18/19 financial year. This allowed it to fill its executive management posts as well as other posts in the post
establishment.

KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 3: EDUCATION, TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT OF STAFF

Education Training and Development in the Greater Kokstad Municipality is focused on the enhancement
of knowledge, skills and behavioural competencies of employees and Councillors so that they can deliver
and exceed organizational requirements in line with the Organizational Strategy / Integrated Development
Plan and legislative prescripts. In order to support this initiative, bursaries have been made available to staff
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for them to undertake further education and training. The leave policy also affords them the time to
complete their qualifications.

Skill development also plays a crucial component of development of employees. To this end the Workplace
Skills Plan (WSP}) is the blue print for skills development of employees. The Municipality provides a budget
for employees to obtain critical skills and makes use of the mandatory grant as well as discretionary grants
to ensure skills attainment for better service delivery.

KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 4: EMPLOYMENT EQUITY & DIVERSITY MANAGEMENT

As an employer designated in terms of the Employment Equity Act (Act 55 of 1998), the Greater Kokstad
Municipality is under legal obligation, in terms of Section 20(1) of the Act, to draft an Employment Equity
Plan, for a period between 1 and 5 years to address underrepresentation in employment. In this financial
year the EE Plan was reviewed and approved by Council.

KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 5: OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Occupational Health and Safety function is primarily focused on (i) Creating and maintaining a safe
working environment and (ii) Preventing workplace accidents. This has been lacking in the municipality
because of, amongst others, lack of expertise. An Occupational Health and Safety Officer was appointed,
and great strides have been made in addressing OHS issues at a strategic as well as operational levels.

KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 6: LABOUR RELATIONS

Labour relations relates to the management of employer/employee relations, negotiating collective
agreements/bargaining for better conditions of service, managing the grievance procedure, managing
discipline, representing the Municipality during arbitration, educating management and employees on
labour relations and keeping up to date on pertinent labour laws.

KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 7: EMPLOYEE WELLNESS

Employee wellness is based on the premise that “People who are well work well”, In this context, employee
weliness entails all the strategies, action plans and methods used to promote physical, emotional and
mental health of employees. A Wellness Officer was appointed, and the Wellness Centre is functioning,
Employees are assisted and given skills to deal with life problems, social and work issues. Where required,
they are referred-to specialist for further assistance.

KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 8: PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATION

Personnel Administration relates to the administration of all employee contracts, benefits and conditions
of service, leave administration, as well as all administration and procedures incidental to human resources
information system, inciusive of employee appointments and terminations. All these services allow for
employees and Councillors to receive correct salaries and benefits at the end of every month. This has been
achieved in this financial year.

KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 9: HUMAN RESCQURCES RELATED POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

Human Resources policies and procedures provide guidelines on employer-employee relationships which
impart acceptable norms of behaviour and create a conducive working environment. Policies are reviewed
every financial year in order to identify gaps and to decide on new policies. The process was undertaken for
all policies with them being reviewed and adopted by Council on 27 June 2019.
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Below is a table that illustrates the GKM staff compliment:

0-3 17 19 18 1 5.26%
4-6 65 68 68 0 0%
7-9 77 78 77 1 1.28%
10-12 73 73 73 0 0%
13-18 169 177 155 18 10.16%
Total 401 415 3395 20 4.8% ‘

Besides the payment of salaries, HR has invested in the internship programme with the budget having been
made available for the recruitment of 5 interns per department.

The supply of protective clothing to employees also plays a crucial role in the effective supply of services.
The municipality supplies protective clothing on an annual basis and this year was no different. A budget is
allocation for this activity.

INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY (ICT) SERVICES

ICT has become the cornerstone of every organization, including the Municipality. This financial year meant
that ICT had to focus on the implementation of effective projects after rising from a preceding financial year
of firefighting. The projects were mainly related to ICT infrastructure and systems, such as the network
infrastructure and the server environment. Investment in the infrastructure has yielded results as the

internal network and systems are more stable thus enhancing communication, connectivity, and integration
within the organization.

0-3 0 0 0 0 0%
4-6 3 3 3 0 0%
7-9 2 2 2 0 0%
Total 5 5 5 0 0%

Financial Performance for 2020/21: ICT Services
Details 2020/21

Original Budget Adjustment Actual Variance to
Budget Budget (%)
Total Operational Revenue

Expenditure:
Employees YR S5 TR 1,554,067.00 e
Repairs & Maintenance —— £20,000.00 373,720.00 %
Other 4108, 8551000 4,109,855.00 4,146,700.00 0%

Page 144 of 353



Net Operational Expenditure 6,319,065.00 6,319,065.00 6,074,487.00 19%

Capital Expenditure for 2020/21: ICT Services

R’000
| Capital Projects 2020/21
Adjustment Actual ]Variance from | Total Project
R ek | | Expenditure Original Budget J Value
Total
Public WilFI 500,000.00 345,000.00 295,538.00 49 462
New Computers 654,309.00 654,309.00 654,309.00 0

Two major capital projects which were budgeted for were the upgrading of the ICT infrastructure servers
as well as the general upgrade of the ICT network infrastructure. The adjustment/budget was spent. The
Municipality moved from using Telkom services to using Brilliantel. After the movement an improvement
has been registered in the availability of the internet, quality of calls as well as the monthly expenditure for
telephone costs.

The ICT Security Policy and ICT Governance Framework, ICT Master Plan / Strategy and ICT Infrastructure
policies were reviewed. This exercise ensured, amongst others, the safety of municipal data and the proper
use of infrastructure and ICT equipment. The Business Continuity Policy was also formulated thus ensuring
continuity in service delivery in instances of disaster.

The utilization of service providers for ICT has proven to be a challenge with two contracts having been
terminated as a result of non-performance. The vision for ICT is to be totally self-sufficient and improve
internal capacity so that it does not require external service providers. In the 2020/21 financial year that
was the focus and investment was made in the training of ICT staff.

3.20. LEGAL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND PROCUREMENT SERVICES
3.20.1.LEGAL SERVICES

The Legal Services Unit is located within the Office of the Municipal Manager and is responsible for:

¢ Managing the provision of a comprehensive, efficient and effective legal services to the
Municipality,

e Safeguarding Municipality's interests in all legally related matters and to ensure that all the
Municipality’s operations are conducted within the parameters of the law.

e Strengthening the capacity of the Municipality to fulfil its mandate as stipulated in terms of Sections
152 and 153 of the Constitution of South Africa, 1996 and other applicable legislations.

e Providing a supportive and advisory role to the Municipality in order to fulfill its objectives

However, other legal services are outsourced as and when required, due to capacitation challenges in terms
of warm bodies, which is currently run by an intern. The following table depicts all the legal matters
together with the instructed law firms that are dealt with by the Legal Services Unit for the Financial Year
of 2020/2021 (covering the period July 2020 to June 2021).
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GKM/ TORGOS

Torgos is the private developer of Ext.7.
They abandoned the road construction
topping and road maintenance
unattended, the municipality had to
finish up the development.

MATTHEW
FRANCICS INC.

Municipality was advised not to
pursue this claim because the
witnesses which municipality
can rely on they are working on
Torgos and base on the
investigations conducted by our
attorneys they discovered that
Torgos does not have
executable property should
Municipality decided to
proceed with the matter.
Therefore, it would be its only
the Academic exercise should
municipality decide to proceed
with the matter in the costs of
Municipality’'s Budget,

GREATER
KOKSTAD
MUNICIPALITY /
WISE TRAINING
CENTRE

Review of the Municipality’s decision to
award a tender.

MATTHEW
FRANCIS
ATTORNEYS

Our Attorneys filed the
Municipality's answering
affidavit on 7 April 2021. The
Applicant has not filed a
replying affidavit. The Second
Respondent had previously
requested an extension to file
its answering affidavit by 30
April 2021 which it failed te do.
In the circumstances,
Municipality is recommended
that the Municipality not push
the matter forward, in the time
being, as the delay in finalizing
the matter only serves to
diminish the Applicant’s
prospects of success

tkamva
architects/GKM

On the 8t of December 2011 the parties
concluded a professional services
agreement for the rendering of
architectural professional services for
upgrading of traffic station, and the
service provider claiming for the
outstanding payments.

JULA
MSHIKILANA
ATTORNEYS

Arbitration Award was granted
against the Municipality.
Municipality has paid judgment
amount plus costs, But there
are remaining costs which has
not yet been paid due to its
unctearness of them which
amount - + R245 §00.00.
Claimants Attorneys has
approached High Court to force
award to be an order of the
court, we are waiting them to
set the matter down for
taxation of their bill of costs,

Pursuant to WRIT OF
EXECUTION which was granted
onthe 11 May 2021, Sheriff's
attached 7 (Seven}
Municipality’s Motor Vehicles
which intended to sold such in
Auction for recovering
judsment amount of R422
282.21, therefore Municipality
had to bring urgent application

for rescission Judgment in
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protecting Municipality’s
Property which was heard and
granted on the 27 May 2021.

In terms of the Court Order
dated 27 May 2021, the 1*tand
2 Respondents were required
to show cause on 14 July why
the order should not be made
final.

There were no papers served
on our Attorneys before the
date in guestion. Despite the
above, it should be noted that
even though the 1% and 2
respondents had withdrawn as
attorneys of record in the
matter and there was no way
that they would have
participated further in this
litigation. Even if parties had
wished that the above matter
be brought to its finality on the
14 July 2021 that would no
have materialized due to recent
unrests that tock place from
the 11 July 2021 in the
Province. All Motion Court rolls
were suspended and our
Attorneys are waiting Register
regarding re-instatement of the
matter.

Ndabankulu/GKM

auction, but the Municipality released a
rates clearance certificate to Mrs.
Mabandla and the house was resold.

4 GKM/ Fez Building | Fez construction breached the Matthew Francis | We are awaiting counsil’s final
Construction agreement of building the Bhongweni Inc. advice regarding instituting
Youth Centre and the municipality had to action against the replacement
hire a new service provider to finish up service provider for time delay
the construction. penalties in order to mitigate
the claim for losses.
Turf Inc. installed an incorrect turn turf at Conducted a meeting with
R the Bhongweni Stadium which is not Sabela Attorneys for a way
3 Upgrading c.af suitable for soccer fields {the turf that Sabela Attorneys forward and it was suggested
Bhongweni . .
Stadium was supplied was 25mm whereas on that Mir Shandu shall provide
quotation was 40mm), and the Attorneys with Payments
installation of the turf was left invoices and/or receipts which
incomplete. were paid to the Service
providers thereafter report to
the Council to be drafted
proposing to take Management
Consguences to the involved
Municipality’s Representatives
as per National Treasury’s
Directives of 2018.
6 TF Ms. Ndabankulu bought a house on Sabela Attorneys | There was a Council resolution

to reimburse Ms. Ndabankulu
but it was rescinded by the
Council.
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Trading
Enterprise-Sports
Complex

claiming alleged unpaid invoices,
contractual Dispute.

NO | 'PARTIES ©* - " { 'CAUSE OF ACTION . " REPRESENTATIVE .
7 Kokstad Private The Municipality evaluated two Mhianga Inc. Counsels are not in a rush to
Hospital and oroperties and the Plaintiff alleged that get these papers out because
Yellow Paper the property was over evaluated the the Kokstad Private Hospital
JGKM claiming the residue. (pty) Ltd has not prosecuted
their claim expeditiously.

8 Zuko Mani Appticant applied for the position of AM: Matthew Francis | We are awaiting the court’s
Supply Chain and he was scored as the Inc. decision on the application for
second-best candidate but after the first leave to appeal.

did not take the offer, the third was
appointed due to the bad credibility of
the 2™ candidate.
9. Bayethe Basil The Provincial Traffic collided with our SM MIBATHA Pleadings are partial closed but
Mbangi/ traffic and our traffic lost controf and ATTORNEYS due covid19 level the matter is
Thamsanga collided with the taxi. stack and there is no hearing
Shasha, Shoniso date has been arranged yet.
Gumede and GKM Once there are any
deveiopments we shall report
on that.

10 Transfer of Conveyancing the land that was donated Maseko Mbatha | Matter was finalized and Title

Willowdale by Rural Development to the attorneys deed was endorsed, and the file
housing project Municipality was closed.

11 GKM/Andimahle | The claimant deserted the site and Venns Attorneys | Our attorneys briefed Advocate

Andrea Gabriel SC a well-
respected member of the
Durban Bar who has extensive
experience in local government
and construction matters.

On the 4th june 2021, Our
Attorneys met with the refevant
representatives of the
municipality (MM Mr Zwane,
CFO Mr Miketsu, Mr Shandu
Acting EXM:ITS & Mr Mkusane
Legal Office), Buyeye Consulting
and |Qhayiysa Design Workshop
(PTY) Itd. The meeting was
extremely insightful for both
our legal team and our expert
witness.

Our Attorneys requested a
number of documents from the
principal agent and quantity
surveyor and same were
received. Based on the volume
of documents received, an
extension to submit GKM
statement of defence on 5 July
2021 was requested and
granted.

Lastly, RS.1 Miilion is still in our
attorneys trust account. As
instructed, they wilt continue to
hold onto these monies for as
long as reasonable possible

despite the municipality being
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in contempt of the Court Order
dated 3 February 2021, should
any issues arise, our attorneys
are in a position to pay the sum
over to immediately on GKM’s
instructions.

12 GKM/ Dolly Bihi Dolly 8ihl was dismissed by the Mhlanga The dismissal was found to be
municipality and the municipality evicted Attorneys both substantively and
her claiming unpaid services whilst under procedurally by the Bargaining
the employ of the Municipality. Council. Miss D Bihi has
however filed a review
application wherein she seeks
to have the arbitration award
reviewed and set aside, she
further seeks to be reinstated
with fuli back pay (Miss d Bihi’s
salary from the date of
dismissal to date of a possible
order reinstating her should she
succeeds).
The matter is still pending.
13 Sifiso Sydney Mr. M Mduzuiwana was the driver of the Collin Mciki Matter was finalized therefore
Mbuthuma/GKM | Municipal truck and he collided with the Attorneys file closed.
Plaintiff and the matter was settled out
of Court
14 GKM/ Mr. Mkhize | Forensic Investigation was conducted, SM Mbatha Summons were issued and
and Ms. Ggola and it was discovered that there was a Attorneys served to the Defendants, they
Fruitless expenditure committed and the entered their intention to
Municipality is trying to recoup the defend the matter and we are
fruitless expenditures from Mr. Mkhize on stilt pleadings stage.
and Ms. Ggola
15 Ward 4 and ward | The service provider is claiming the Mhlanga Inc. The mandate has been
8 hall unpaid invoices terminated from the atforneys
and the matter is dealt with
internally.
16 Bawinile V A motor vehicle bumped into a pothole Sabela Attorneys | Discovery in terms of Rule 35 of
bambela & between Franklin and Swaartburg and the High Court Rules was done
others/others collided with another car and there were demanding the Applicants to
&GKM people who died therefore the loss of disclose all the documents they
support is claimed have against us as GKM. We are
also waiting for the Plaintiff's to
exonerate us and pursue the
National Minister of Transport
and MEC for Transport Kwazulu
Natal for remedy.
17 P.P.NMNGOMA v | Phumza Primrose Ntebe Mngoma was SM MBATHA On the 04,/05/2021 SM Mbatha
GKM employed by GKM on the 1st October ATTORNEYS Attorneys sent Discovery

2015 as an Executive Manager Cerporate
Services and her employement contract
was terminated by GKM on the 30th
September 2018.

The sum of R74 393.15 was deducted
i from her salary which deductions was

Affidavit for the Municipal
Manager to sign and
commission it.

THE PARTIES NEED TO DATE
FOR PRE-TRIAL CONFERENCE
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alleged to be for 20 days which was not and the date for hearing shall
accounted for in the leave book. be arranged after.
on the 6th October 2017 GKM wrote to
PPN Mngoma advising her of the
anaccounted leave days and
subseguently she responded by way of
email on the 27th November 2017.

On the 26th September 2018 PPN
Mngoma wrote a letter of demand to
GKM demanding payment of the money
deducted to her salary.

an around July 2020, GKM received
Summons and instructed SM Mbatha
Attorneys to defend the matter,

19 Sibiya/GKM Accident occurred in Nolangeni road Ndumndum The matter was finalised on the
between unknown alleged car 1o belong Attarneys 18t June 2021 in favour of the
te the Municipality Municipality. And the file

closed.

20 SINKSHAW Sinkshaw alleged that they left their Ndumndum QOur Attorneys who are handiing

CONSTRUCTIONS | construction equipment in the Premises Attorneys this matter are in a process of
/ GKM of the GKM for safe keeping and same setting down the matter in
was lost and the GKM is to be blamed. order to convince Magistrate to
They claimed for R1L00 0C0.Q0 or the dismiss the rn:a-tter with costs
return of construction equipment beca lfse -Plamt;ff has no longer
estimated at R100 000.00 showing interest en the matter.
o i The matter was finalised on the
Municipality appointed Ndumnd.urn 18th December 2020 but issue
Attorneys to defend the matter in 2012 of Legal Costs were unfinalised.
On the 5th March 2021, MM
and Legal Officer had a briefing
session with Mr Ndumndum of
Ndumndum Attorneys and it
was discussed that the matter
has long pending, therefore
Ndumndum Attorneys should
try by all means to finalise the
matter as soon as possible, in
which Ndumndum Attorneys
promised that they just waiting
for the reserved judgment to
formally closed the file in that
there will be no further service
will be rendered by them in this
matter.

21 Cebo Mr. Matshayana appropriated the Sabela Attorneys | tiguidation and Distribution

Matshayana/GKM | Municipal property and developed it also Account done and submitted to
claiming another property that is the Master of High Court as
registered under his name but occupied well as the Redistribution

Erf 127 & Erf 60 by Ms. Bhabha who also claim the Agreement, Renunciation
transfers. ¢ property was given to her by the Certificates and Waivers for the

;. Municipality.

Descendants of the late
Veronica Masizane. Estate has
been duly advertised in terms

of Section 29 of the Estate Act.
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All documents will be filed with
the Registrar of Deeds for final

registration and receipt of Title
Deeds.

Out attorneys have completed
all the transfer documents of
ERF 127 and their Jodgment
attorneys are busy with
lodgment.

The property is being
transferred from Cebo
Matshayana and Estate late
Veronica Masizane to Miss
Nomazizi Mlaza.

Out Attorneys recently
discovered that ERF 60 Kokstad
is registered in the name of the
Provincial Government and not
Greater Kokstad Municipality.

On the 6" July 2021 Greater
Kokstad Municipality
terminated mandate to the
attorneys on the transfers of
ERF 60 because of delays onthe
Attorneys in finalizing the
matter and for costs fees
consequences, ERF 60 will be
taken and transferred through
GKM program knowns as Title
Deed Restoration program
which is current on process,

22

DELVIN MARK
MASTROSS & WYK
vs GKM

GKM received surnmons and instructed
Collin Nciki Attorney to defend the
matter.

The alleged incident occurred on the
25th January 2020 in Shayamoya Area
Kokstad. 1t is afleged that the storm
water was left open and water
subsequently filled up and the child fell
into the un-attended storm water thus
suffering damages worth R200 $00.00.

Summens were issued against the GKM
on the 29th October 2020 and
subsequently filled our Notice to defend
on the 11th November 2020. We also
filed our Ptea on the 18th December
2020.

Upon censultation with Acting MM (Mr
Mketsu) and Legal Services Officer {Mr
Mkusane} it was resolved that the matter
would be referred to GKM's Insurance

; company to take the matter forward and

the matter was referred on the Febraury

GKM INSURANCE

Pending.

The parties are exchanging
pleadings documents and the
actual status sgqou is that on the
22n July 2021 Our Attorneys
prepared, sent Discovery
affidavit which was deposed
and commissioned by the MM

Now GKM Waiting Insurer’s
Attorneys to keep us on track
for the matter as they promised
to update Legal Officer with
the new developments should
raises.
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2021 for insuraﬁce to handle the matter. .
Then we requested our attorneys of
record to withdraw on this matter as our
attorneys of record
23 Legality of the EDSP had a meeting with Makhoba Trust COLLIN NCIKQ Attorneys has request
Makhoba Trust. Members, GKM delegates and Collin ATTORNEYS Municipality’s approval to move
Neiki Attorneys on 09 March 2021 to an Application to Compel
discuss the legality and compliance of the delivery of the requested
Trust Deed. documents,
The meeting agreed that the Makhoba NBH ]
Trust will furnish the GKM attorney with -
the Trust Deed together with letters of mr Neiki who was handle the
authority as amended, copy of the Deed atter pass away.
of Transfer of the Property) commonly therefore MM should instruct
known as the title deed), Governance other Attorneys to take over
documents, minutes of meetings of the the matters of Collin Nciki
Trusi and the list beneficiaries, minutes Attorneys ASAP.
of the Trustees meetings, beneficiary list,
and audited AFS of the Trust by 12 March
2021.
GKM lawyers received an emaii dated 23
March 2021 from the lawyers of
Makhoba Trust requesting clarity on the
direct interest of GKM on the matter in
which GKM Lawyers replied on the letter
15" Jupe 2021
Please be advised that the 30 day period
that was given to the Makhoba Trust in
terms of |legislation to provide
documentation has lapsed.
By law we could not bring the Application
without first giving them the 30 day
Notice which we have done.
24 GKM v lllegal Municipal Quarry was occupied illegai COLLIN NCIKI NBE I ! Pending Matter.
Occupiers ERF 1 d i h ted t t (0] S
pi and occupiers when rfaques e o_vaca ] ATTORNEY Mr Nciki who was handle the
the land they refused; therefore, it led Matt theref
the GKM to Institute application against atter passlawav, eretore
. . . R viM should instruct other
the iHlegal occupiers which seek to evict
. i Attorneys to take over the
and demolish the erected illegal tters of Collin Nciki
e matters o in Nciki
structures on the Municipality land.
reson umcipality fan Attorneys ASAP
25 99 YEARS LEASES | The purpose for the exercise is to identify COLLIN NCIKI PENDING
all Municipal owned peripteries to ATTORNEYS

ensure they are all included in the
valuation roll and to determine the

. current use of each property. Currently

EDSP is undertaking audit of all Municipal
owned properties. Process to be
completed by 30 june 2021.

ESDP fo submit a report to Council by 30
July 2021 for consideration.

NBII ]

Mr Nciki who was handle the
Matter pass away, therefore
MM should instruct other
Attorneys to take over the
matters of Collin Nciki
Attorneys ASAP.
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Thereafter, the report will be submitted
to the attorneys to proceed with the
matter to it finality.

26

GKM // Taxi Rank | Proving legal transaction advice
Development regarding the project of the Taxi Rank
development and multipurpose centre.

COLLIN NCIKI
ATTORNEYS

PENDING
NBIffT1

Mr Nciki who was handle the
Matter pass away, therefore
MM should instruct other
Attorneys to take over the
matters of Collin Nciki
Attorneys ASAP.

Kokstad Taxi Association was
approved by Council to enter
into a lease agreement with
GKM to develop 2 taxi rank and
multipurpose centre. In-Touch
Developers are therefore their
preferred developers.

Our attorneys have represanted
the Municipality in the
negotiations, drafting and
conclusion of the [ease
agreement. The development
{ease agreement was signed in
October 2020.

There have been two meetings
held in 2021 to discuss
implementation of the project
as well as monitor contract
compliance.

Our Attorneys have further
drafted a contract compliance
checklist to closely monitor the
terms of contract, Furthermore
they have drafted
confidentiality and non-
disclosure agreements for all
the task term members to
protect the integrity and
distribution of information.

going forward various work
streams will commence with
their activities and report to the
task team on a guarterly basis.

27

GKMvS Review Application for Unfair Dismissal
MADLUDLA (Labour Court). S Madlula was dismissed
by the Municipality and at Bargaining
Council such dismissal Order was granted
* in fovour of the Municipality.

viadludla take the Matter to Labour

i Court for Review.
|

MATTHEW
FRANCIS
ATTORNEYS

We will keep abreast with
developments in the matter as
they arise.
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The Record filed by the Applicants was
incomplete and it was served out of time.
Our Attorneys thus required the
Applicant to file a reinstatement
application for the review application to
be revived before it could prosecute the
review any further.

The Applicant has since filed its
reinstatement application to have the
review application revived and we have
filed an affidavit opposing the relief
sought in terms of that application.

The Applicant has served GKM with his
replying affidavit in the reinstatement
application, however, this was filed out
of time. Qur Attorneys have filed a notice
of objection objecting to the late delivery
of the affidavit and requesting that the
Applicant applies for condonation for the
late delivery of the replying affidavit in
the reinstatement application. The
Applicant’s attorneys have confirmed
receipt of this notification and our
attorneys wait for the applicant to
prosecute the matter further.

1 In the interim, the review application
remains lapsed until such time that the
labour court sets the reinstatement
application down for hearing and also
orders that the review application is, in
fact, revived. In the event that happens,
we will then be required to file our
answering affidavit in the review
application. |

3.20.2.RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Management and Procurement are crucial aspects at Greater Kokstad Municipality to ensure an
effective, efficient and transparent system of risk management and financial management

3.14.2. PROCUREMENT SERVICES

Section 110 of the MFMA provides that municipality must act in accordance with the supply chain
management policy when —procuring goods or services; disposing of goods no longer needed selecting
contractors to provide assistance in the provision of municipal services otherwise than in circumstances
where Chapter 8 of the Municipal Systems Act applies; or(d) in the case of a municipality, selecting external
mechanisms referred to in section 80 (1) (b) of the Municipal Systems Act for the provision of municipal
services in circumstances contemplated in section 83 of that Act.

Page 154 of 353



The Council of the Municipality has approved the procurement plan which is in line with the SDBIP. The
procurement plan was implemented during the 2019/2020 Financial Year however, there have been some
delays which a result of Appeals and Objections was, Bids being re-advertised as result bids not meeting
the bidding requirements. In fast-tracking service delivery and minimise the timeframe to acquire the
services of different professions. A panel of Service Providers was successfully established in the fields of
Civil Engineering Consultants, Electrical Engineering Consultants, Planning Consultants and Lawyers. Since
the establishment of these panels, its has improved the procurement turnaround time.

The members of Bid Committee who were appointed at the start of the FY were trained twice in the year
to ensure that members are aware of their duties with the assistance of Provincial Treasury and this trend
is to continue with the newly appointed members to undergo training annually. A strong relationship has
been established with Provincial Treasury who has continuously provided support and advice on SCM
related matters include a periodic review of all SCM process.

To ensure that SCM plays a role in SMME deveilopment in collaboration with LED unit conducted Local
SMME Training and identified challenges especially in the bidding process which was an attempt to increase
their participation in the competitive bidding sphere because these Local SMME are dominant in the
quotations sphere but have poor participation in bidding sphere. Local SMME have also been invited to
enlist on the municipal database to that they can take advantages of the 30% compulsory subcontracting
passed by Council on projects that are 5 Million and above. The has been numerous engagements with
Local SMME to ensure their participation in the SCM process.

Challenges encountered during the course of the year includes amongst others.

a) A poor understanding of the procurement process by bidders in general but more especially
the Assessment of Functionality where we identified numerous bidders who fail this critical
step in the SCM process
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CHAPTER 4 - ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE

(PERFORMANCE REPORT PART I1)

The Greater Kokstad Municipality has an organizational structure which is reviewed annually to ensure that
the human capital respond to the municipal strategic objectives. The organizational structure was last
adopted on 27 June 2019. The structure currently consists of six (6) departments, namely, Office of the
Municipal Manager, Corporate Services, Budget and Treasury Department, Community and Social Services,
Economic Development and Spatial Planning as well as the Infrastructure and Technical Services. The
organizational structure has 421 positions spread across all departments of which 400 of those positions are
filled while 21 positions remain vacant. However, annually the Municipality develops a recruitment plan
which is informed by the provisions of the budget to ensure that the vacancy rate is minimized.

COMPONENT A: INTRODUCTION TO THE MUNICIPAL PERSONNEL

4.1. EMPLOYEE TOTAL, TURNOVER AND VACANCIES

Electricity 37 37 37 0 0% 35 2 5.71%
Waste 72 77 72 5 6.49% 114 9 7.89%
Management |

Roads 33 33 33 0 0% 45 4 8.88%
Transport 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Planning 11 11 11 0 0 12 0

Local Economic 3 3 3 0 0% 3 0 0%
Development

Community & 2 2 2 | 0 0% 8 0 0%
Social Services

Health 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
Safety & Security | 31 30 30 i 3.22% 48 47 0%
Traffic and Fire

Sports & 2 2 2 0 0% 2 0 0%
Recreation

Youth Gender

Disability |

Corporate | 50 51 50 1 1.96% 50 1 2%
Section 56 6 6 6 0 0% 6 0 0%
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Municipal Manager i) 0 0% 1 0 0
CFO 1 0 0% 1 0 0
Other s56 Managers 4 4 0% 4 0 0
Middle Managers 18 1 5.5% 18 1 5.5%
(Excluding Finance

Services)

Middle Managers 4 0 0% 4 0 0%
(Finance Services)

Supervisors (Excluding 6 0 0% 6 0 0%
Finance Services)

Supervisors (Finance N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Services) |
Traffic Officers 6 0% 6 0 | 0%
Fire Fighters 19 0% 19 0 0%
Total 57 5.5% 59 1 5,5%

2018/2019 69 35 56.52%
2019/2020 30 17
2020/2021 19 25 76%

In terms of the Regulations for the Conditions of Employment and Appointment of Senior Managers,
municipalities are required to ensure that every senior manager vacancy is filled within 70 days from the
date of the closure of the advert. During the 2019/2020 financial year the municipality has been successful
in filling the positions of EXMs: Community and Social Services and Economic Development and Spatial
Planning.

COMPONENT B: MANAGING THE WORKFORCE

The Municipality has developed and adopted human resources policies, procedures and systems which allow
for fair, efficient and transparent personnel administration. The Municipality ensures enforcement and
compliance to the said policies. Furthermore, the Employment Equity Plan which provides information on
numerical goals and target is in place. During the 2019/20 financial year the Municipality achieved 100% in
the target set in the EEP as a result targets in the Plan have been revised and adopted by Council on 30
August 2019. The focus will be on the employment of Whites, Indians and Coloured’s as well as the disabled.
Municipality is also striving to maintain the appointment of females particularly at senior management level
which is currently at 50%.
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4.2.

POLICIES

1 Recruitment of Senior Managers N/A N/A Utilise regulations gazetted by
COGTA
Sexual Harassment 100% 100% The policy is in place
Acting Allowance Policy 100% 100% The Policy is in place and
followed
4 Bereavement Policy 100% 100% 27 June 2019
5 Induction Policy 100% 100% The Induction Policy has not
been implemented in this
financial year
6 Probation policy 100% 100% The Prohation Policy is
implemented
7 Private Work & Declaration of 100% 100% The Code of Conduct is
interest policy implemented without fail
8 Protective clothing policy 100% 100% The Policy is in place and
followed
9 Smoking Policy 100% N/A The Policy is in place and
followed
10 Internship Policy 100% 100% The Policy is in place and
followed
11 Leave Policy 100% 100% The Policy is in place and
followed
12 Recruitment and selection Policy 100% 100% The Policy is in place and
followed
13 Exit Interview Policy ' N/A N/A Part of Employment Policy
14 Termination of Services Policy N/A N/A Part of Employment Policy
15 Disciplinary Code for Councillors 0% 0% 25 June 2021
16 Legal representation N/A N/A Legal representation in
discipline is done in line with
the Collective Agreement
il Dress Code 100% 100% The Policy is in place and
followed
18 HIV/Aids | 0% 0% 25 June 2021
19 Promotion and Transfer/ 100% 100% The Policy is in place and is
Placement being implemented
20 Benefits and allowances N/A N/A Part of the Collective agreement
21 Employment Equity plan 100% 100% The Policy is in place and
followed
22 Human Resources plan . 100% 100% 25 June 2021
23 Workplace Skills Plan ‘ 100% 100% 25 June 2021
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24 Bursary Policy 100% 100% The Policy is in place and
l implemented
25 Employee relocation Policy 100% 100% The Policy is being
implemented
26 Membership of Professional Body 100% 100% The Policy is in place and
[ followed
27 Housing Policy 100% 100% The Policy is in place and
followed
28 Overtime Policy 100% 100% The Policy is being
‘ implemented
29 Training and Development 100% 100% The Policy is in place and
followed
30 Student Trainees in Rare skills 100% 100% The Policy is in place and
followed
31 TASK Job Evaluation Policy 100% 100% The Policy is in place

4.3. INJURIES, SICKNESS AND SUSPENSIONS

For all the injuries that have been sustained by employees, necessary processes are followed to ensure that
firstly, the employee receives assistance, following which, all necessary documentation required by
Workmen Compensation is filled. After receiving the final report from the medical doctors, the Municipality
then waits for the Department of Labour to process these injuries accordingly. Plans have however enfolded
to ensure that these reports are obtained and that there is movement into finalizing the cases.

Below is the table which provides figures pertaining to the injuries on duty that were sustained by employees
during the 2020/21 Financial Year

Required basic medical 0 6 0% 0 0
attention

Temporary total disablement | 0 0 0 0 0
Permanent disablement 0 0 0 0 0
Fatalities 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 6 0 0 0
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Below is the table with the number of sick leave taken and the cost thereof during the 2020/2021 Financial
Year:

Unskilled {Levels 17-18) 970 143 0 145 6.7 383 150.00
Semi-Skilled (Levels 13- 16) 104 24 17 31 6.1 46 085.70
Junior Management (7- 12) 942 99 100 137 6.87 700 141.50
Middle Management (levels 664 73 69 76 8.74 1838835.12
2-6)

Senior management (Section 79 T 4 5 15.8 339 180.18
56)

Top Management S54 0 0 0 1 0 0

Total 2759 346 280 395 44.21 3307 392.50

Below is a table that illustrates the number and period of suspensions during the 2020/21 financial year.

EXM ITS Attempted 30 March 2021 Internal hearing Matter not finalized
Misconduct

Supervisor Theft 04 June 2021 Waiting for the report from Dept | Matter not finalized

Motor of Transport and Absa Bank

Licensing

Below is the table which illustrates the disciplinary action taken as a result of financial misconduct during
2020/21 Financial Year.
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Document Theft
Management

Assistant

Gender Officer Theft

Internal Disciplinary —refer the
matter to Bargaining Council-
dismissed

Matter referred to labour court

Internal Disciplinary Hearing —
Dismissed-refer the matter to
Bargaining Council-dismissed
Matter referred to labour court

Matter in labour court not
finalised

Matter in labour court not yet
finalised

Superintendent

Attempted Fraud

Internal Disciplinary Hearing —

Matter finalised

Parks & Suspension for 10 days without

Amenities pay

Electrician Attempted Fraud Leave without pay for 10 days Matter finalized

Electrician Attempted Fraud Leave without pay for 10 days. Matter not finalized waiting for

Appeal the sanction

the Appeal Outcome

Artisan Assistant

Attempted Fraud

Leave without pay for 10 days

Matter finalized

Artisan Assistant

Attempted Fraud

Leave without pay for 10 days

Matter finalized

4.4. PERFORMANCE REWARDS

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) Male N/A N/A N/A N/A
Female N/A N/A N/A N/A
Skilled (Levels 3-5) Male N/A N/A N/A N/A
Female N/A N/A N/A N/A
Highly skilled (Levels 6-8) Male N/A N/A N/A N/A
Female N/A N/A N/A N/A
Highly skilled supervisors (Levels Male 6 0 Nil 0%
9-12) Female 4 0 Nil 0%
Middle Managers (Levels 13-15) Male 5 0 Nil 0%
Female 3 0 Nil 0%
MM and s56 Managers Male 3 0 Nil 0%
Female 3 0 Nil 0%
Total 24 0 Nil 0%

3 T &
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The Managers signed performance contract and are remunerated a performance bonus based on the
percentage of what has been achieved in the financial year in question following assessment where
presentation of portfolio of evidence is done. The calculation is in accordance with the Performance
Management Policy adopted by Council.

COMPONENT C: CAPACITATING THE MUNICIPAL WORKFORCE

The Municipality conducts the skills audit which enables an employee and supervisor to discuss performance
and identify possible gap. The information is then consolidated into a Workplace Skills Plan which has a
budget allocation. The challenge is the financial constraints and lack of full participation by employees within
the Municipality which then does not permit that all training intervention that have been proposed to be
initiated. In 2020/21 the focus will be to make interventions in ensuring that at last 40% of employees who
do not meet minimum requirements as set out in IDS are met.

4.5, SKILLS DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Greater Kokstad Municipality’s focus is to improve knowledge, ability, skills and other talents for
employees. This is achieved through training and development. The training and development initiatives aim
to improve the performance and focuses on three main areas, namely, human resources management,
quality improvement and career development. While training focuses on providing the knowledge and skills
required for doing a job, it also increases an employee’s capabilities. Furthermore, the Municipality is
committed to a continuous process of individual progression. Such progression focuses on mainly two areas,
namely, career planning which involves activities to be performed by the employee as well as career
management which generally focuses on the steps that the Municipality is taking to foster career
development. This career development is forged through a bursary scheme and this financial year 21
beneficiaries (Municipal Employees) were offered study grants and 1 University student received a Municipal
bursary.

A total of 58 employees were trained during 2020/21 financial year and 4 unemployed youth were granted
apprenticeships by the Greater Kokstad Municipality in conjunction with the Artisan Training Institute.

Below is the table which illustrates the skills development interventions during 2020/21 financial year.
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Female | 3 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Male 3 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Female |5 16 3 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Male 15 10 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Female 18 4 3 2 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Male 15 N/A N/A N/A N/A 2 2 2 2
Female | 65 N/A 2 2 2 2 N/A N/A
Male 40 N/A 2 2 2 pi N/A N/A
Female | 135 N/A 3 2 2 2 2 N/A N/A
Male 101 N/A 3 2 2 2 2 N/A N/A
Total 400 30 21 17 10 8 8 2 2
omp D op Prog o
De P A B 0 olid d 0 olid 0 s 0 .
Financial Officials
Accounting Officer 1 1 1 1 1 1
Chief Financial Officer 1 1 1 1 1 1
Middle Managers 10 10 10 10 10 10
Any other financial officials | N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Supply Chain Management Officials
Heads of Supply Chain 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Management unit
Manager: Supply Chain 1 7 8 1 1 1
Management
Total 13 19 20 13 13 13

Note: This is a statutory report under the National Treasury, Local Government: MFMA Competency Regulations (2007)
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Financial Officials

Accounting Officer 1 1 1 1 1 1

Chief Financial Officer 1 1 1 a 1

Middle Managers 4 10 10 10 10 10

Any other financial officials | N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Supply Chain Management Officials

Heads of Supply Chain 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Management unit

Manager: Supply Chain 1 7 8 1 i [ 1

Management

Total 13 15 20 13 13 13

Financial Officials

Note: This is a statutory report under the National Treasury, Local Government: MFMA Competency Regulations (2007)

Accounting Officer 1 1 1 1 1 I 1

Chief Financial Officer 1 1 i 1 1 1

Middle Managers 10 10 10 10 10 10

Any other financial officials | N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Supply Chain Management Officials

Heads of Supply Chain 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Management unit

Manager: Supply Chain 1 7 8 1 1 1

Management

Total 13 19 20 13 13 | 13

Note: This is a statutory report under the National Treasury, Local Government: MFMA Competency Regulations (2007)

The Municipality had budgeted an amount of R1.2m which was aimed at funding training interventions. The
said funding was 100% utilized and further to that the Municipality tapped on stakeholders to benefit from
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trainings that they provided at no charge. To meet the competency levels as prescribed by National Treasury,
the Municipality had received funding through LGSETA to assist in funding the program. The Municipality
endeavours to explore all avenues made available to secure further funding for skills and development of its
employees.

COMPONENT D: MANAGING THE WORKFORCE EXPENDITURE

The Municipality has placed strict controls in ensuring that workforce expenditure is in accordance with the
budgetary provisions, amongst others, the positions that are filled are those that are budgeted for; the
overtime is strictly monitored and kept at 40 hours per months as per BCEA unless when there are
emergencies. Leave is monitored closely, and controls are in place to ensure proper usage.

‘4.6. EMPLOYEE EXPENDITURE

Number of Employees Whose Salaries Were increased Due to Their Positions Being Upgraded

‘ Beneficiaries Gender Total
Lower Skilled (Levels 1-2) Female
Male N/A
Skilled (Levels 3-5) Female N/A
Male N/A
Highly Skilled (Levels 6-8) Female N/A
Male N/A
Highly Skilled supervision (Levels 9-11) | Female N/A
Male N/A
Management (Levels 13-16) Female N/A
Male N/A
MM and s56 Managers Female N/A
Male N/A
Total N/A

Employees Whose Salary Levels Exceed the Grade Determined by Job Evaluation

| M Occupation = Number of Job Evaluation | Remuneration Reason for Deviation
’ employees Level Level
NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE
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Job evaluation has been completed for Managers below S56 Managers and Assistant Managers. The process
offering permanent employment to these managers is underway with 1 Manager and 3 Assistant Managers
having accepted offers of permanent employment. Ultimately all Managers and Assistant Managers will be
offered permanent employment.

The drafting of job descriptions has been finalized for all positions below assistant managers. The
Municipality has approached SALGA to evaluate its jobs in the Region 2 Job Evaluation Committee.
Municipality anticipates submission of JDs at the beginning of first quarter in the 2018/19 financial year. The
Municipality has not upgraded any positions in the 2019/20 Financial Year.

The Municipality ensures that declaration of interest by employees and Councillors are conducted at the
end/beginning of each financial year. For the 2019/20 FY this process was undertaken in July 2019. In
instances where it has come to the Municipality’s attention that the declaration was not made by the
employee, disciplinary measures will take place.

CHAPTER 5 - FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Chapter 5 contains information regarding financial performance and highlights specific accomplishments.
The chapter comprises of three components:

Component A: Statement of Financial Performance

Component B: Spending Against Capital Budget

Component C: Other Financial Matters

COMPONENT A: STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

5.1. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Refer to the 2020/2021 Annual Financial Statements (Volume 2)
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5.2. GRANTS

_ Grant Performance
| Description 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21 Variance

Actual Budget Adjustment Original =~ Adjustments
Budget Budget Budget (%)
(%)

: Operating transfers and grants
National government:
Equitable share 55 683 000 65878000 77 456 000 77 546 000 100% 100%
Housing 2 447 340 427 000.00 37511000 23428 099 100% 62%
FMG 1,800 000 1800 000 1800000 1800000 100% 100%
MIG 22 591 000 17 229 000 17 229000 17 229 000 100% 100%
Sports and recreation 0 0 0 0 0 0
Arts and Culture 2070000 2898 000 2898 000 2 261000 78% 78%
EPWP 1311000 3164 000 3164000 3164 000 100% 100%
SETA 0 0 0 85 231.00 0 0
Shayamoya Eco-Park 0 0 0 0 0 0
Industrial Park 0 0 0 0 0 0
Furniture World 0 0 0 0 0 0
INEP 17 914 000 360 000.00 360 000.00 360 000.00 100% 100%
Small Town Rehabilitation 0 0 4 500 000 28 560.00 0 1%

5.3. ASSET MANAGEMENT

Asset management ensures the safeguarding, effective and optimal use of assets and that they are
properly accounted for. Internal controls have been developed and communicated to all management and
staff through clear and comprehensive written documentation.

Name Horseshoe Early child development
Description ECD

Asset type Pre School

Key staff involved ITS
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Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

Assets value

R3 350 166.08

Name Small Towns Rehabilitation Phase 3
Description Tarred road

Assets type Road

Key staff involved ITS

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value

R397 767.89

Name Electrification of Riverview and Murray Park
Description Electrification

Asset type Electrical

Key staff involved ITS

Assets value

R765 000.00

Name Qhingalendlela Community Hall
Description Hall

Assets type Infrastructure

Key staff involved ITS

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value R4 552 163.67
Name Thuthukani Community Hall

Description Hall

Assets type Infrastructure

Key staff involved ITS

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value

Name

Fencing of Waste Transfer station Franklin

R2 419 167.73

Description

Fencing
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Assets type

Fencing

Key staff involved

Electrical

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value

R179 700.00

Name Jim Payne Sport Complex
Description Sport complex
Assets type Sport complex

Key staff involved

ITS

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value

R9 405 651.00

Name Cultural Village Ward 6
Description Infrastructure

Assets type Infrastructure

Key staff involved ITS

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value

R622 750.56

Name Borehole
Description Borehole
Assets type Infrastructure
Key staff involved LED

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value

R1 029 600.00

Name Hydroponic tunnels
Description Hydroponic tunnels
Asset type Community Asset

Key staff involved

LED

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

Assets value

R1725 630.00
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Name Hawker Stalls -Turnkey
Description Stalls
Assets type Hawker Stalls

Key staff involved

LED

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value

R70932.40

Name Fencing of Parks
Description Fencing of Parks
Assets type Community Assets

Key staff involved

Css

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value

R1 059 582.45

Name Town Entrance Upgrade
Description Upgrade of town Entrance
Assets type Road

Key staff involved

€SS

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value

R209 800.00

Name CRU Housing Project ward3
Description Housing Project

Assets type Housing

Key staff involved ITS

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value

R21 933 239.67
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Name Upgrading Shayamoya Roads
Description Upgrading Shayamoya Roads
Asset type Roads Infrastructure

Key staff involved

ITS

Assets value

R4 264 970.10

Name Upgrade of extension 7 Roads Phase 3
Description Upgrade of extension 7 Roads Phase 3
Assets type Infrastructure

Key staff involved ITS

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value

R5 982 771.22

Name Kokstad CBD Roads Phase 2
Description Kokstad CBD Roads Phase 2
Assets type Roads Infrastructure

Key staff involved

ITS

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value

R3 807 197.61

Name Kokstad CBD Roads Phase 2
Description Roads
Assets type Roads Infrastructure

Key staff involved

ITS

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value

R406 602.45

Name Murray Street and St johns Street stormwater Upgrade
Description Plant Equipment
Assets type Plant Equipment

Key staff involved

Corporate services
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Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value

R5 317 920.28

Name Landfill site ward 6
Description Solid waste infrastructure
Assets type Infrastructure PPE

Key staff involved

Roads IPD

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value

R536 695.04

Name Electrification of Willowdale
Description Electrification of Willowdale
Assets type Electrical infrastructure PPE

Key staff involved

Electrical ITS

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value R1 799 475.50
Name Electrification of Informal settlement

Description Electrification of informal settlement

Assets type Electrical infrastructure PPE

Key staff involved Electrical ITS

Staff responsibilities Maintenance

assets value R10 842.40
Name Upgrading of brick Mini substation

Description Upgrading of substation switch gear phasel

Assets type Electrical Infrastructure PPE

Key staff involved ITS

Staff responsibilities - Maintenance

assets value R820 412.77
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Name

Horseshoe Roads upgrade phasel

Description

Horseshoe Roads upgrade phasel

Assets type

Roads PPE

Key staff involved

ITS

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value

R4 016 029.64

Name Small town
Description Small towns upgrade
Assets type PPE Small towns upgrade

Key staff involved

ITS

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value

R397 767.89

Name Fencing of municipal buildings
Description Fencing

Assets type Fencing

Key staff involved CSS

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value

R971299.80

Name Upgrade sports field horseshoe
Description Upgrade sports field horseshoe
Assets type Sports Field

Key staff involved Css

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value

R943 442.80

Name Upgrade Mini substations
Description Upgrade Mini substations
Assets type Mini substations

Key staff involved

Electrical

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance
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assets value

R2 301 567.19

Name Installation of streetlights and high masts phasel

Description Installation of streetlights and high masts phasel

Assets type IPD PPE

Key staff involved IPD

Staff responsibilities Maintenance

assets value R761 920.45
Name MV cable upgrade Phase 4

Description MV Networks

Assets type MV cable upgrade Phase 4

Key staff involved ITS

Staff responsibilities Maintenance

assets value R3 481 466.02
Name Upgrading of substation switch gear phase2

Description Upgrading of substation switch gear phase2

Assets type Electrical Infrastructure

Key staff involved ITS

Staff responsibilities Maintenance

assets value R2 390412.88

Name Cemetery Development
Description Cemetery Development
Assets type Community Assets

Key staff involved

Css

Staff responsibilities

| Maintenance

assets value

R1 785 714.82

Name Bulk Infrastructure
Description Electrical Infrastructure
Assets type Electrical Infrastructure
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Key staff involved

ESS

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value

R18 091 024.11

Name Emergency Housing Project
Description Housing Project
Assets type Housing Project

Key staff involved

EDSP

Staff responsibilities

Maintenance

assets value

R1511513.06

Name Transport Assets
Description Plant and Equipment
Assets type Tractors

Key staff involved LED

Staff responsibilities LED

assets value

R1 217 391.30

Name Transport Assets
Description Plant and Equipment
Assets type Motor Vehicle

Key staff involved Electrical

Staff responsibilities Electrical

assets value

R611 464.58

Name

Computer Equipment

Description

Computer Equipment
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Assets type Computer
Key staff involved ICT
Staff responsibilities ICT

assets value

R654 309.12

Name Furniture and Fittings
Description Furniture and fittings
Assets type Furniture and fittings

Key staff involved

BTO

Staff responsibilities

BTO

assets value

R540 320.69

Name Skip Bins110
Description Skip Bins110
Assets type PPE
Key staff involved CSss
Staff responsibilities Css

assets value

R1 001 864.26

Name Jetting Machine
Description Jetting Machine
Assets type PPE

Key staff involved ITS

Staff responsibilities ITS

assets value

R782721.77

Name

Fire Fighting Equipment
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Description Fire Fighting Equipment

Assets type PPE

Key staff involved G585

Staff responsibilities Css

assets value R 189 990.95
Name Firearms and safes

Description Firearms and safes

Assets type PPE

Key staff involved CSS

Staff responsibilities CSS

assets value R 23 980.00

Repairs and maintenance expenditure 31226 000.00 22 258 000.00 8058 260.00 36%

5.4. FINANCIAL RATIOS BASED ON KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

All data used is from SA8 of MBRR.

i. Liquidity Ratios = 3.40 (Current Assets 191 435 462.00; Current Liabilities 56 263 445.00)
Measure the Municipality’s ability to pay its bill and is calculated by dividing the monetary assets
(due within 1 yr.) by the municipality’s current liabilities. (Higher ratio Is better)

ii.  Cost Coverage =4 MONTHS

It explains how many months the expenditure can be covered by the cash and other liquid assets
available to the municipality excluding utilization of grants.
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iii.

vi.

vii.

viii.

Total outstanding service debtors = 60%

Measures how much is still owed by the municipality for water, electricity, waste removal and
sanitation compared to how much money has been paid for these services. Calculated by dividing
the outstanding debtors by the total revenue. (lower score is better)

Debt coverage = N/A

The number of times debt payments can be accommodated within operating revenue (excludes
grants). This in turn represents the ease with which debt payment can be accommodated by the
municipality

Creditor’s system efficiency = 6 DAYS

The proportion of creditors paid within terms (i.e., 30 days). This ratio is calculated by outstanding
trade creditors divided by credit purchases.

Capital charges to Operating expenditure = 0%

Ratio is calculated by dividing the sum capital interest and principle paid by the total operating
expenditure

Employee costs = 32.8%

Measures what portion of the revenue was spent on paying employee costs. Calculated by dividing
the total employee cost by the difference between total revenue and capital revenue.

Repairs & maintenance = 5.6%

This represents the portion of operating expenditure spent

5.5.

DEBTORS

Net outstanding consumer debtors amounted to R 47,525,052 million as at 30 June 2021 [2020: 41,200,620
million], Service charges debtors account for 61% of the total net consumers debtors balance. The
municipality granted incentives of 15% and 10% to ratepayers for annual rates paid before August 2020 and
November 2020 respectively. The municipality has implemented debt collection processes including both
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legal process and electricity cut-offs to debtors with the account balances outstanding for more than 30
days.

Debtors per category

Organs of State 3,542,836.00 3,388,329.00
Commercial 24,496,871.00 18,815,749.00
Households 35,178,954.00 28,694,392.00
Farms 9,711,103.00 10,317,339.00
Total by Customer 72,929,764.00 61,815,809.00
Group
Chart Title
40 000 000,00
35000 000,00

30000 000,00
25000 000,00

20000 000,00
15000 000,00
106 000 000,00
5 000 000,00 . .
oo N NN

Organs of State Commercial Households Farms

m2021 m2020

The table below illustrates the debt which is categorized by nature and compared to the prior year. The de
bt below is reflected after considering for Debt Impairment.

Rates 31,349,076 30 636 410
Electricity 22,668,665 16 676 837
Refuse 20,018,383 15 494 860
Fire levy 6,587,838 6171163
:j:i:;";’:;‘:: (33,098,910) (27,778,650)
Total 47,525,052.00 41,200,620.00




|

'5.6.  ASSESSMENT BY THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER ON ANY ARREARS ON MUNICIPAL TAXES
AND SERVICE CHARGES

The municipality levies rates to all properties that are reflected in the municipal valuation roll. A
supplementary valuation rolls were submitted to council and implemented in September 2020 and January
2021. The rates policy was reviewed and adopted by the municipality in this regard. The municipality further
ensured that a gazette is promulgated for the levying of property rates. A tariff policy was also adopted by
council and further gazette for the levying of property rates. Properties are charged a tariff based of the
tariffs as approved by council.

The municipality has developed and implemented a debt recovery strategies and revenue in order to reduce
the debtor’s book and enhance revenue collection.

The municipality has employed and is utilizing the services of the Debt Collector in order to eliminate long
outstanding debts. More than 52% of the outstanding debtors are more than 180 days in age. We have
continued to encourage customers experiencing cash flow challenges to enter into alternative payment
arrangements in order to improve the collection rate.

COMPONENT B: SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGET

5.7. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The 2020/2021 financial year capital budget marked a significant milestone once again with an approved
adjusted capital budget of R154.2 million. Capital expenditure, as expressed by the additions capitalised in
the current year amounted to R95 million and work in progress amounting to R171.7 million (74.6% of
approved capital budget).

This Graph representing the percentage of capital expenditure and operating expenditure.
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Capital Expenditure
180 000 000,00
160 000 000,00 154 200 000,00
140 000 000,00
120 000 000,00
100 000 000,00 95 000 000,00
80 000 000,00
60 000 000,00
40 000 000,00

20 000 000,00

Capital Budget Capital expenditure

5.8. CAPITAL SPENDING ON 5 LARGEST PROJECTS

o~

Bulk infrastructure R 1 500 000 R 18 385 000 R18 091 024 1106% 2%
Jim Payne R5 600 000 R10 018 000 R9 405 651 68% 6%
Storm Water Upgrade Murray R5 600 000 R5 620 000 R5 317920 -5% 5%
Qhingalendlela R 5 500 000 R5 040 000 R 4552163 -17% 10%
Upgrade of Shayamoya R 4 600 000 R4 600 000 7%
inszmal Roads . R264.370 4

*Projects with the highest capital expenditure

5.9. BASIC SERVICE AND INFRASTRUCTURE BACKLOGS - OVERVIEW

Greater Kokstad Municipality has achieved universal access to electricity for its residents and has also
electrified the informal settlements to reduce illegal connections. The only backlog is upgrading the gravel
roads to asphalt paving using the MIG grant. As for Water Services the HGDM is addressing these backlogs
which are basically to concert most of the high-density residential areas from Pit Latrines to water borne
sanitation. Greater Kokstad Municipality used part of the MIG grant for upgrading of gravel roads to asphalt
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paving during the 2020/2021 financial year. Otherwise, there is no backlogs to talk about in the Municipal

area of Kokstad.

Infrastructure — Road N/A N/A N/A % % N/A
Transport

Roads, Pavements & N/A N/A N/A 0% 0% N/A
Bridges .

Storm water N/A N/A N/A % % N/A
Infrastructure — Electricity | N/A N/A N/A % % N/A
Generation N/A N/A N/A % % N/A
Transmission & N/A N/A N/A % % N/A
Reticulation

Street Lighting N/A N/A N/A % % N/A
Infrastructure — Water N/A N/A N/A % % N/A
Dams & Reservoirs N/A N/A N/A % % N/A
Water purification N/A N/A N/A % % N/A
Reticulation N/A N/A N/A % % N/A
Infrastructure — Sanitation | N/A N/A N/A % % N/A
Reticulation N/A N/A N/A % % N/A
Sewerage purification N/A N/A N/A % % N/A
Infrastructure — Other N/A N/A N/A % % N/A
Waste Management N/A N/A N/A % % N/A
Transportation N/A N/A N/A % % N/A
Gas N/A N/A N/A % % N/A
Other - Specify: N/A N/A N/A % % N/A
Total N/A N/A N/A % % N/A

COMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTS

5.10. CASH FLOW

Refer to 2020/2021 Annual Financial Statements (Volume 2)



‘5.11. BORROWING AND INVESTMENTS

|

Municipality

Long- term loans (annuity/reducing balance) 0
Financial Leases 0
Municipal Total 0
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CHAPTER 6 - AUDITOR GENERAL FINDINGS AND ACTION PLAN

COMPONENT B: ACTION PLAN 2020/2021

During 2019/2020 action plan has been implemented fully, and all issue addressed by the AG were
addressed. However, during the 2020/2021 financial year, the new issue emerged during the audit
processes, the following action plan seeks to address that:
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Auditor-General

Greater Kokstad Municipality

Audit Report 2020-21



Report of the auditor-general to KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Legislature
and the council on Greater Kokstad Municipality

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

TEs

| have audited the financial statements of the Greater Kokstad Municipality set out on pages ...
to ..., which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021, the statement of
financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flow and
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, as well as
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Greater Kokstad Municipality as at 30 June 2021, and its financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with South African Standards of
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of
the Municipal Finance Management Act of South Africa, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003) (MFMA)
and Division of Revenue Act of South Africa, 2020 (Act No. 4 of 2020) (Dora).

Basis for opinion

3.

| conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-general's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of my report.

| am independent of the municipality in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Pprofessional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA code) as well as other ethical requirements that
are relevant to my audit in South Africa. | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the |IE SBA code.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion.




L p—

Emphasis of matter

6. |draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Material impairment: Trade receivables from exchange transactions

7. As disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements, the municipality increased the allowance for
impairment on trade receivables from exchange transactions to R18,33 million (2019-20:
R13,01 million) as the recoverability of these amounts was considered to be doubtful.

Other matter

8. | draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Unaudited disclosure notes

9. In terms of section 125(2)(e) of the MFMA, the municipality is required to disclose particulars of
non-compliance with the MFMA in the financial statements. This disclosure requirement did not
form part of the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on it.

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements

10. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the MFMA
and Dora, and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

11. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the
municipality’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate
governance structure either intends to liquidate the municipality or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

12. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

13. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in
the annexure to this auditor’'s report.



Report on the audit of the annual performance report

Introduction and scope

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and
the general notice issued in terms thereof, | have a responsibility to report on the usefulness
and reliability of the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for the
selected development priority presented in the annual performance report. | performed
procedures to identify material findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

My procedures address the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information,
which must be based on the municipality's approved performance planning documents. | have
not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the performance indicators included in
the planning documents. My procedures do not examine whether the actions taken by the
municipality enabled service delivery. My procedures do not extend to any disclosures or
assertions relating to the extent of achievements in the current year or planned performance
strategies and information in respect of future periods that may be included as part of the
reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.

| evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance
with the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting framework, as
defined in the general notice, for the basic service delivery and infrastructure development
priority presented in the municipality’s annual performance report on pages xx to xx for the year
ended 30 June 2021.

| performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was
properly presented and whether performance was consistent with the approved performance
planning documents. | performed further procedures to determine whether the indicators and
related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the reported
performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

| did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information for the basic service delivery and infrastructure development priority.

Other matters

19.

| draw attention to the matters below.

Achievement of planned targets

20.

The annual performance report on pages ... to ... sets out information on the achievement of
planned targets for the year.




Adjustment of material misstatements

21. | identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing.
These material misstatements were in the reported performance information of basic service
delivery and infrastructure development. As management subsequently corrected the
misstatements, | did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the
reported performance information.

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation

Introduction and scope

22. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, | have a
responsibility to report material findings on the municipality’s compliance with specific matters
in key legislation. | performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to
express assurance.

23. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation are as follows:
Consequence management

24. Some of the losses resulting from fruitless and wasteful expenditure were written-off as
irrecoverable without being certified by council as irrecoverable, in contravention of section
32(2)(b) of the MFMA.

Procurement and contract management

25. Some of the invitation to tender for procurement of commodities designated for local content
and production, did not stipulate the minimum threshold for local production and content as
required by the 2017 Preferential Procurement Regulation 8(2).

26. Some of the commaodities designated for local content and production, were procured from
suppliers who did not meet the prescribed minimum threshold for local production and content,
as required by the 2017 Preferential Procurement Regulation 8(5).

Strategic planning and performance management

27. Amendments to the Integrated Development Plan (IDP) were made without making the
proposed amendments available for public comment, as required by section 34(b) of the MSA
and municipal planning and performance management regulation 3(4)(b).

Expenditure management

28. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure of R49,71 million as
disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements, as required by section 62(1)(d) of the
Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA). The majority of the irregular expenditure was
caused by non-compliance with SCM regulations.




Other information

29.

30.

21

32

The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the annual report. The other information does not include the
financial statements, the auditor's report and the selected development priority presented in the
annual performance report that has been specifically reported in this auditor's report.

My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information
and compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and | do not express an
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion on it.

In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
and the selected development priorities presented in the annual performance report, or my
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

| did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor’s report. When | do (
receive and read this information, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, |
am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the
other information be corrected. If the other information is not corrected, | may have to retract
this auditor’s report and re-issue an amended report as appropriate. However, if it is corrected
this will not be necessary.

Internal control deficiencies

33.

| considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported
performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective
was not to express any form of assurance on it. The matters reported below are limited to the
significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the findings on compliance with
legislation included in this report.

34. Leadership did not perform effective oversight and monitoring to ensure that delegated officials (

consistently applied policies and procedures and related internal controls to compliance with
applicable legislation.

“ \(}\L@< /(AQ\/\Q‘/C)\
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Annexure — Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, | exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements and the
procedures performed on reported performance information for the selected development
priority and on the municipality's compliance with respect to the selected subject matters.

Financial statements

2.

In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this
auditor's report, | also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate lo provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the municipality's internal control

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the accounting officer

¢ conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting officer's use of the going concern basis
of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements. | also conclude, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Greater Kokstad Municipality
to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a malerial unceriainty exists, | am
required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, fo modify
my opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the information
available to me at the date of this auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause a municipality to cease operating as a going concern

¢ evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner thal achieves fair presentation

Communication with those charged with governance

3.

I communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

I also provide the accounting officer with a statement that | have complied with retevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and



other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and, where
applicable, actions taken {o eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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APPENDICES

APPENDIX A: AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE PERFORMANCE AND RISK AUDIT COMMITTEE
for the year ended 30 June 2021
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The Greater Kokstad Municipality

The Performance and Risk Audit Committee report for the year ended 30 June 2021

The Performance and Risk Audit Commitiee, hereafter referred to as the audit committee is pleased to
present its report for the fiscal year ended 30 June 2021 as required by Section 166 of the Municipal Finance
Management Act, 56 of 2003, hereinafter referred to as the MFMA..

Audit cormmitiee members and attendance

The audit committee consists of the following members listed hereunder and should meet 4 times per annum
as per ifs approved terms of reference.

Name of member

Mr. A.D. Gonzalves (Chairperson)
Ms. S, Gumbi

Ms. C. Jugnarayan

Mr. D. Mpanza

Each member has sufficient qualifications and experience in the areas of financial management and financial
reporting, internal and external auditing, risk management, performance management, legal and compliance.

The qualifications and term of office the members are as follows:

Name Qualifications Term of office
Mr. AD Gonzalves . Professional Accountant {SA) 01.06.2015 - 30.09.2018
Certified Internal Auditor (SA) 01.10.2018 - 30.09.2021

Master's degree in commerce (S.A tax and
international tax)

Honours degree in commerce {accounting})
Bachelor’ degree in accounting

Ms. S. Gumbi . Certificate in management development in 01.06.2015 - 30.09.2018
municipal finance 01.10.2018 — 30.09.2021

Master's degree in business administration
Bachelor’s degree in arts and culture (Economics
and industrial relations)

Ms C. Jugnarayan . Chartered Accountant (SA) 01.10,2018 — 30.09.2021
National diploma in accountancy
Bachelor's degree in accountancy

Mr. D. Mpanza . Master's degree in law 01.10.2018 —30.09.2021
Master's degree in business administration
Bachelor's degree in law

Audit committee meetings

During the financial year the audit committee held ordinary meetings and special meetings as follows:

No. Date Type of meeting
1. 27 July 2020 Ordinary

2. 18 August 2020 Special

3. 12 October 2020 Special

4, 26 October 2020 Ordinary

5. 20 November 2020 Special

6. 25 January 2021 Special




No. Date Type of meeting

7. 22 February 2021 Ordinary
8. 26 April 2021 Ordinary
9. 24 May 2021 Special
10. 28 June 2021 Special
11. 29 June 2021 Special

Some of the special meetings held during the year were joint sittings with MPAC. Members of the audit
committee also attended AGSA audit steering committees to engage on matters relating to the external
statutory audit of the fiscail year ended 30 June 2021. The AGSA, CoGTA and KZN Provincial Treasury have
standing invitations to all Audit Committee meetings. No conflicts of interest were reported by members of
the audit committee during the fiscal year ended 30 June 2021.

Audit committee responsibility

Section 166 of the MFMA, Act No. 56 of 2003, requires every municipality to establish an independent audit
committee, which must advise the municipal council, political coffice-bearers, Accounting Officer and
management staff of the municipality on matters relating to internal financial controls and internal audits, risk
management, accounting policies, adequacy, reliability and accuracy of financial reparting and information,
performance management, effective governance, compliance with the MFMA and any other applicable
legislation and any other issues referred to it by the municipality. The municipal planning and performance
management regulations, section 14(2){(c} makes provision for the establishment of a performance audit
committee (the role of which can be fulfilled by the audit committee) that must include at least one persan
who has expertise in performance management. The performance audit committee is required to review the
guarterly reports submitted by the internal audit function on performance management, review the
municipality’s performance management system, and make recommendations in this regard to council. The
performance and risk audit committee presented its quarterly reports to council,

The audit committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 166 of the
MFMA,

The audit committee also reports that it has adopted formal terms of reference as its audit committee charter,
has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained
therein.

The effectiveness of internal controls

In line with the MFMA, the internal audit function provides the audit committee and management with
assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of the risk
management process, as well as the identification of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the
controls and processes. From the in-year reports of the internal audit function, it was noted that there was a
marginal improvement within the municipality’s control environment as compared to prior years however
room for improvement exists.

The quality of the in-year management and monthly/quarterly reports submitied in terms of the MFMA, MSA,
and the Division of Revenue act improved in comparison to prior years. Management is encouraged to
implement continual focus on the recoverability of outstanding statutory and trade receivables to avoid the
potential burden on future cashflows from operating activities. Management must guard against individuals
that may purport their indigent status to exploit the municipality and for this purpose the effectiveness of
internal controls must be improved in terms of the recommendations of internal audit.

The audit commitiee recommends that management diligently implement preventative controls to ensure
compliance with year-end financial reporting GRAP standards to avoid potential material audit adjustments.
Management is encouraged to implement adequate and proper oversight over the effective implementation
of preventative controls with respect to supply chain management to prevent unauthorized, irregular, and
wasteful expenditure. It is further recommended that management continue to place acute focus on the
preventative controls to ensure that the performance management in-year reporting is credible.
Consequence management must continually be implemented fo ensure thatinternal controls remain effective
throughout the year.




Internal audit
The audit committee executed the following functions in respect of the internal audit function:

- reviewed and approved the internal audit charter and the risk based annual internal audit plan,
- evaluated the independence and effectiveness and performance of the internal audit function, and

- Reviewed the work performed by internal audit on a guarterly basis and the implementation of
internal audit recommendations.

The audit committee is satisfied that the internal audit function is operating effectively and that it has
endeavored to assist management to address some of the risks pertinent to the municipality. From the in-
year reports of the internal audit function, it was noted that there was some improvement within the
municipaiity's control environment as compared to prior years however management is encouraged to
implement internal audit recommendations in a timely manner to improve its current status.

The following management disciplines were reviewed by internal audit during the year:

z
o

Description

Electricity management

Expendiiure management

Internal audits follow up reviews of prior reported findings

Internal audits follow up reviews of prior reported findings by the AGSA
l.ocal economic development

Overtime management

Performance management

Project management

Public participation

10. Revenue management

11. Risk Management

12.  Supply chain management

13.  Value for money

14. Year-end reporting: annual financial statements and annual performance report
15.  Year-end reporting: annual performance report

LOoNDOE WM 2

The audit committee will continue to monitor implementation of management corrective action and the
enhancement of the cantrol environment in the 2021/2022 financial year. The audit commitiee is satisfied
that the internat audit function maintained its independence and objectivity throughout the year under review.

Risk management

During the period under review quarterly reports from the chairperson of the risk management committee
were presented to the audit committee. Detailed strategic and operational risk registers were also submitted
by internal audit to the audit committee. The Audit Commitiee will continue to exercise its advisory and
oversight function with respect to risk management.

Performance management

The audit committee reviewed the in-year performance reports and performance results reported
by management. Considerable improvements were noted in the effectiveness of the processes and the
quality of information reported however room for improvement exists. The Accounting Officer must ensure
that senior managers submit in-year reports and supporting portfolios of evidence to the performance
management unit within the prescribed time frames by implementing consequence management actions
against those officials that consistently do not comply with the policy timeframes.

External audit

The audit commitiee reviewed, and discussed the audit repart, management letter and engaged the AGSA
on the audit report and management letter. The audit committee is satisfied with the independence of the
Auditor General (South Africa).




Evaluation of the annual financizal statements

The audit commitiee:

reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements to be included in the annual report, with
the AGSA,

reviewed the AGSA's management report and managements responses thereto,

reviewed the municipality's compliance with legal and regulatory provisions, and

reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit.

The audit committee concurs with and accepted the AGSA’s audit report on the annual financial statements
and is of the opinion that the audited annual financial statements should be accepted and read together with
the report of the AGSA.

Conclusion

The audit committee thanks council, the mayor, the chairperson of MPAC, the Municipal Manager, the Chief
financial officer, senior management and the administrative staff for their commitment and cooperation with
the audit committee. The audit commitiee relies extensively on the work of internal audit. The audit committee
expresses its gratitude to the Manager: Internal Audit and her team for their assistance and cooperation,

CHAIRPERSON OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
15 January 2022

A,




APPENDIX B: FIRST TO THIRD TIER ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURE

MUNICIPAL MANAGER

Communications
Integrated Development Plan
| Audit i

Executive Executive Manager: Executive Manager: Execvutive Manager: Executive Manager:
Corporate Services Int Community & Social Infrastructure &

Services Technical Services

Manager: Budget
and Treasury Office

; Manager Administration

Manager - Manager Local - Manager Community  Manager: Civil
Revenue & - & Customer Care Economic | corutcas; ik
Expenditure ervice : lopm: tas _ ; Lk

.~ Mr. W Dotye

. Manager:

- Recruitment and Economic Growth and . |
Selection Development Incl: ' Environmental Health | Electricity Distribution,
Staff establishment Research and | Parks Technical Services,
HR Support Services Development - Facilities Roads, Storm-water
Benefits Administration = SMME and Enterprise | Libraries Drainage System
- Employee Relations Development | Disaster Management Infrastructure
- Occupational Fire and Emergency Building control
7 . Health, Safety and ‘ < . PMU :
Budget & s ; : e R :
Financial P aya o
Control
Expenditure
. Management
. and Financial
~ Control
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APPENDIX C: WARD INFORMATION

Construction of Kokstad Sports Complex to include soccer pitch, TBC TBC R13,900,000.00

swimming pool, ablution block and parking Phase 1

1. Upgrading of Extension 7 Roads: Phase 2 | Practical Completion
2 Upgrading of Bhongweni Area 5&6 Roads | Practical Completion
3. Upgrading of Mid-Block Roads & Street Completed
Lights
4. Energy Master Plan Completed and Adopted
5. Upgrading of Mini Sub-Stations & Completed
Transformers
Electrification of Informal Settlements Ongoing
High Mast Lights-Horseshoe, Marikana & | Completed
Shayamoya
8. Cultural Village at Franklin Fencing completed. Working on Phase 1
9. Roads & Stormwater Master Plan Ongoing
10. | Development of Kranzfontein Landfill Site | Phase 1 of fencing completed. Phase 2 of cell, leachate pond
and stormwater pond.
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APPENDIX D: REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE AND BY SOURCE

jfAz’DPEI\!DI)( D (1): REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE

Vote 1-Vote 1- - 4 084 000 3950000 21648 000
EXECUTIVE & g
COUNCIL

Vote 2 - Vote 2 - 201602 000 | 206 478 000 207 496 000 212 669 000 | 101844000
Finance and -
administration
Vote 3 - Vote 3 - 13337000 29 065 000 20425000 28253000 | 20416000
Community and -
public safety
Vote 4 - Vote 4 - 31397 000 25099 000 29973000 40640000 | 91426000
Economic and -
environmental

services

Vote 5- Vote 5 - 149 840000 | 174 768 000 174 698 000 152 635000 | 173 600 000 -
Trading services

Total Revenue By | 396215000 | 439 494 000 ' 436 542 000 434 197 000 | 408995000

Vote | -
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APPENDIX D (I}: REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY SOURCE

Property rates 115 300 131 746 - 122492352 124375000 (290 332)
Service Charges —

electricity revenue 118 491 135932 -

Service Charges - refuse

TS 19948 25 487 -

Service Charges — other 2401 )

revenue

Rentals of facilities 1876 1329 400- 1893 386 1601 406 300 000
Interest earned - external

investments 9105 8972 B (
Interest earned — -
eutstardinia debitors 3795 4809 - 5235431 4 500 000

Fines 2803 1850 - 2373175 1450 000 -
License and permits 3097 4380 - 4557646 4 500 000 (3 8785 000)
Transfers recognized - 117 592 69 940 226- 84858564 73 740 000 12 168 000
operational

Other revenue 5723 4729 2540- 666 573 4 683 335 450 300
Total Revenue (excluding

capital transfers and 400 131 389176 - 296266163 332974648 (8 825 032)

contributions)

Variances are calculated by dividing the difference between actual and original/ adjustments budget by the actual. This table is aligned
to MBRR table A4
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APPENDIX E - FUNCTIONS OF MUNICIPALITY

Constitution Scheduled 4, Part B functions:

Air pollution No
Building regulations Yes
Child care facilities No
Electricity and gas reticulation Yes
Firefighting services Yes
Local tourism Yes
Municipal airports No
Municipal planning Yes
Municipal health services No
Municipal public transport No
Municipal public works only in respect of the needs of No
municipalities in the discharge of their responsibilities to

administer functions specifically assigned to them under this
Constitution or any other law.

Pontoons, ferries, jetties, piers and harbours, excluding the No
regulation of international and national shipping and matters

related thereto.

Storm water management systems in the built-up areas Yes
Trading regulations Yes
Water and sanitation services limited to portable water supply | No
system and domestic waste-water and sewage disposal

systems

Beaches and amusement facilities No
Billboards and the display of advertisements in public places No
Cemeteries, funeral parlours and crematoria Yes
Cleansing No
Control of public nuisances Yes
Control of undertakings that sell liquor to the public. No
Facilities for the accommodation, care and burial of animals. No
Fencing and fences No
Licensing of dogs No
Licensing and control of undertakings that sell food to the No
public.

Local amenities Yes
Local sport facilities Yes
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Markets Yes
Municipal abattoirs No
Municipal parks and recreation Yes
Municipal roads Yes
Noise pollution Yes
Pounds Yes
Public places No
Refuse removal, refuse dumps and solid waste disposal. Yes
Street trading Yes
Street lighting Yes
Traffic and parking Yes
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Greater Kokstad Local Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021

Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval

The accounting officer is required by the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003}, to maintain adequate
accounting records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial
information included in this report. I is the responsibility of the accounting officer to ensure that the annual financial
staterments fairly present the state of affairs of the municipality as at the end of the financial year and the resuits of its
operations and cash flows for the peried then ended. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion
on the annual financial statements and was given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.

| am responsible for the preparation of these annual financial statements, which are set out on pages 4 to 71, in terms of
section 126(1) of the Municipa! Finance Management Act and which 1 have signed on behalf of the municipality.

| certify that the salaries, benefits and allowances as disclosed in note 29 of these annual financial statements are within
the upper limits of the framework envisaged in section 219 of the constitution, read with the Remuneration of Public Officers
Bearers Act and the Minister of Provincial and Local Government's determination in accordance with this Act.

The annual financial statemenis are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The accounting officer acknowledges that he is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established

by the municipality and placed considerable importance on maintaining a strong conirol environment. To enable the 7
accounting officer to meet these responsibilities, the set standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or e
deficit in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined

framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk.

These controls are monitored throughout the municipality and alt employees are required to maintain the highest ethical

standards in ensuring the municipality’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above

reproach. The focus of risk management in the municipality is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known

forms of risk across the municipality. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the municipality endeavours to

minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed

within predetermined procedures and constraints,

The accounting officer has reviewed the municipality’s cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2022 and, in the light of
this review and the current financial position, he is satisfied that the municipality has or has access to adequate resources
o continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The a Kﬂnanc‘lal statements set out on pages 4 to 70, are prepared on the basis that the municipality is a going concern
and has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of the municipality.

LA

Accblntiag Officer
MR S R ZWANE

P




Greater Kokstad Local Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021

Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2021

2021 2020
Restated*
Note(s) R R
Assets
Current Assets
Inventories 4 1,117,098 1,985,542
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 5&5.1 37,734,308 35,264,604
Prepayments 6 1,683,233 527,307
Receivables from exchange transactions 7 30,943,653 25,772,944
Cash and cash equivalents 8 60,045,032 117,336,921
132,424,224 180,887,318
Non-Current Assets
investment property g 102,284,133 100,033,382
Property, plant and equipment 10 682,478,590 597,930,007
Intangible Assets 11 1,615,332 1,508,909
Heritage assets 12 2,066,400 2,066,400
788,444,455 701,538,608
Total Assets 920,868,679 882,426,016
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Payables from exchange transactions 13 60,507,790 53,337,302
VAT payable 14 3,042,581 4,705,589
Consumer deposits 15 4 503,508 4,524,843
Employee benefit obligation 16 1,260,320 1,312,600
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 17 10,202,845 11,021,358
Provisions 18 2,082,395 2,001,718
Deferred income 19 2,687,708 4,066,121
Bank overdraft 8 10,371,289 -
94,658,435 80,968,931
Non-Current Liabilities
Employee benefit obligation 16 28,535,684 23,327,004
Provisions 18 16,433,545 12,212,617
44,969,229 35,539,621
Total Liabiiities 139,627,664 116,508,552
Net Assets 781,241,015 765,917,464
Accumulated surplus 765,917,464

781,241,012

* See Note 51
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Statement of Financial Performance

2021 2020
Restated*
Note(s) R R

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Service charges 20 153,201,304 140,479,129
Rental of facilities and equipment 21 1,893,386 1,876,336
Licences and permits 22 4 557 646 3,006,644
Other income 23 666,573 2,960,382
Interest earned - external investments 24 3,047,824 8,520,941
Total revenue from exchange transactions 164,356,823 156,933,432
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Taxation revenue
Property rates 25 122,492,352 115,356,018
inierest earned - outstanding receivables 25 5,235,431 3,794,507
Transfer revenue
Government grants and subsidies 26 131,142,941 128,542,768
Recovery for provision debtors - 3,297,307
Fines, Penalties and Forfeits 27 2,373,175 2,803,051
Provision for performance recovery of bonuses 18 1,808,382 1,644,452
Total revenue from non-exchange fransactions 263,052,281 253,438,103
Total revenue 28 427,409,104 410,371,535
Expenditure
Employee costs 29 (145,553,524} (134,202,824)
Remuneration of councillors 30 (7.600,859)  (7,582,079)
Repairs and maintenance (8,058,260) (9,982,208}
Depreciation and amortisation 31 (35,953,968) (36,365,584)
Provision expense Landfillsite (4,220,928) -
Debt written off 32 (4,159,622} (16,345553)
Bulk purchases 33 (109,282,374) (98,433,057)
Provision of impairment of debtors expense 7 (5,609,885) (12,704,984)
Confracted services 34 (36,989,601} (24,636,851)
General expenses 35 (54,432,085) (54,010,565)
Total expenditure (411,861,306} (394,263,795}
Gain / (loss) on actuarial 16 (2,475,000) (1.294,754)
Fair value adjustments 9 2,250,751 3,382,771

(224,249) 2,088,017
Surplus for the year 15,323,549 18,195,767

* See Note 51

i



Greater Kokstad Local Municipality

Annual Financial Statermnents for the year ended 30 June 2021

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Accumulated Total net
surplus assets
R R

Balance at 01 July 2019 Restated 747,721,734 747,721,734
Changes in net assets

Surplus for the year 18,195,732 18,195,732
Total changes 18,195,732 18,195,732
Restated* Balance at 01 July 2020 765,917,463 765,917,463
Changes in net assets

Surplus for the year 15,323,549 15,323,549
Total changes 15,323,549 15,323,549
Balance at 30 June 2021 781,241,012 781,241,012
Note(s}

*See Note 51



Greater Kokstad Local Municipality

Annugl Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021

Statement of Cash Flow

2021 2020
Restated®
Note(s) R R
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Taxes 170,487,730 77,956,827
Sale of goods and services 160,150,423 147,136,663
Grants 131,142,841 160,233,841
Interest income 3,947,824 8,520,941
Other receipts 2,373,178 4,447,503
468,102,094 398,205,775
Payments
Employee costs (143,897,777) (132,807,003)
Suppliers (270,257,624) (174,478,760) Q _
(414,255,401) (307,286,763)
Net cash flows from operating activities 36 53,846,693 91,008,012
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 10 {120,220,971) (898,610,135)
Purchase of cther intangible assets 11 {388,000) (133,218)
Net cash flows from investing activities (120,608,971) (8%,743,353)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents {66,762,278) 1,265,659
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 117,336,821 116,071,263
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8 50,574,643 117,336,922

* See Note 51
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Greater Kokstad Local Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amocunts Difference Reference
budget on comparable between final
basis budget and
actual
R R R R R

Statement of Financijal Performance
Revenue

Revenue from exchange
transactions

Service charges 182,864,903 - 182,864,903 153,291,394 (29,573,509) 38
Rental of facilities and 1,601,408 300,000 1,901,406 1,803,386 {8,020) 38
equipment

Licences and permits 4,500,000 (3,785,000) 715,000 4,557,646 3,842,646 38
Other income 4,683,339 450,300 5,133,639 666,573 (4,467,0686) 38
Investment revenue 9,000,000 (5,500,000 3,500,000 3,847,824 447,824 38

Total revenue from exchange 202,649,648 {8,534,700) 194,114,948 164,356,823 (29,758,125)
transactions

Revenue from non-exchange
transactions

Taxation revenue

Property rates 124,375,000 {290,332) 124,084,668 122 402 352 (1,592,316) 38
Interest earned - outstanding 4,500,000 - 4,500,000 5,235,431 735,431 48
receivables

Transfer revenue

Transfer recognised - 73,740,000 12,168,000 85,908,000 384858564  (1,049,436) 38
Operational & Capital

Fines, Penalties and Forfeits 1,450,000 - 1,450,000 2,373,175 923,175 38
Provision for performance bonus - - - 1,808,382 1,808,382 38
recovery

Total revenue from non- 204,065,000 11,877,668 215,942,668 216,767,904 825,236
exchange transactions

Total revenue 406,714,648 3,342,968 410,057,616 381,124,727 (28,932,889}

Expenditure

Employee costs (140,358,256) 2,081,302 (138,276,954) (145 553,524) (7,276,570) 38

Remuneration of councillors {8,851,499) {(3,000) (8,854,499) (7 500,059) 1,253,540 38

Repairs and maintainance (31,226,498  (8,972,700) (40,199,198) (23 305,225) 16,802,973 38

Depreciation and asset (36,000,000} - {36,000,000) (35953968) 46,032 38

impairment

Provision expense Landfillsite - - - (4,220,928)  (4,220,928)

Debt impairment (9,000,000) - (9,000,000) (4,159,622) 4,840,378 38

Material & bulk purchases (123,009,771 506,497 (122,413,274) (109,282,3574) 13,130,900 38

Provision of impairment of - - - (5.609,985) {5,609,985) 38

debtors

Contracted services (25,692,818)  (8,890,315) (34,583,133) (36,989,601) (2,406,468) 38

General expenses (45,934,631}  (3,428852) (49,363,283) (39,087,036) 10,276,247 38

Total expenditure (420,073,473} (18,616,868) (438,690,341) (411,854,222) 26,836,119

Surplus/(Deficit) (13,358,825} (15,273,800} (28,632,725) (30,729,495) (2,096,770}

Gain / (loss) on actuarial - - - (24750000 (2,475,000) 38

Fair value adjusiments - - - 2,250,751 2,250,751 38
. - . (224,249) (224,249)

Surplus (13,358,825) (15,273,900) (28,632,725) (30,953,744) (2,321,019)
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Cash Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference

budget on comparable between final
basis budget and
actual
R R R R R
Surplus for the year from (13,358,825) (15,273,900) (28,632,725) (30,953,744} (2,321,019)

continuing operations

Transfers and subsidies - capital 18,016,000 41,583,503 59,599,593 45284377 (13,315,216) 38
(monetary allocations) (National

! Provincial and District)

Actual Amount on Comparable 4,657,175 26,309,693 30,966,868 15,330,633  {15,636,235)
Basis as Presented in the

Budget and Actual

Comparative Statement

The basis of determining the materiality is anything above 10%.

3/(%\



Greater Kokstad Local Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021

Accounting Policies

1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal
Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003),

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with
historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, uniess specified otherwise.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by a
Standard of GRAP.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.
1.1 Presentation currency

These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the municipality.
1.2 Going concern assumption

These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the municipality will continue to
operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months.

1.3 Critical judgements, estimates and assumptions

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these
estimates which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements inciude:

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as trading and available-for-sale securities) is based
on quoted maiket prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
municipality is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. The municipality uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are
based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments are used for long-term debt. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine
fair value for the remaining financial instruments. The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of
the estimated future cash flows. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using quoted forward
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair
values, The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the municipality for similar financial instruments.

Impairment testing

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of
value-in-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and
assumptions. It is reasonably possible that the [name a key assumption] assumption may change which may then impact
our estimations and may then require a materiai adjustment to the carrying value of goodwill and tangible assets.

The municipality reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. In addition, goodwill is tested on an annual basis for impairment. Assets are
grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of cash flows of other assets and
liabilities. |f there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows
for each group of assets. Expected future cash flows used to determine the value in use of goodwill and tangible assets are
inherently uncertain and could materially change over time, They are significantly affected by a number of factors including
[list entity specific variables, i.e. production estimates, supply demand), together with economic factors such as {list
economic factors such as exchange rates inflation interest].

10
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021

Accounting Policies

1.3 Critical judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosure
of these estimates of provisions are included in note 18 - Provisions,

Useful life assessment of PPE and intangible assets

The municipality's management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges
for its property, plant and equipment and other assets. This estimate involves a matter of industry norms and on the pattern
in which an asset's future economic benefit or service potential is expected to be consumed by the municipality.
Management will increase the depreciation and amortisation charges where useful lives are less than previously estimated
useful lives and decrease the depreciation and armotisation charges where useful lives are more than previously estimated
useful lives.

11
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021

Accounting Policies

1.3 Critical judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)
Allowance for doubtful debts

On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The
impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.

Pension and other post — employment benefits

The cost of defined-benefit pension plans and other employment medical benefits is determined using actuarial valuations.
The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary
increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates are
subject to significant uncertainty.

Cash-generating assets

The Municipality is not a profit-oriented entity as its primary objective is service delivery. Tariffs and charges are cost-
reflective to ensure continuedfinancial sustainability. No profit element is included in the determination of the tariff.
As such, management has determined that the Municipality does not control assets that meet the definition of cash-
generating assets, and that the

GRAP standard for the impairment of non-cash-generating assets will apply to all assets of the Municipality.

Impairment of receivables

The calculation in respect of the impairment of receivables is based on an assessment of the extent to which debtors have
defaulted on payments already due, and an assessment of their ability o make payments. The Municipalily first assesses
whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and
individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. Accordingly, management believes no
further credit provisions are required in excess of the present allowance for doubtful debts.

impairment of property, piant and eguipment

The calculation in respect of the impairment of property, plant and equipment is based on an assessment of the extent to
which the recoverable amount of the asset has declined below the carrying amount. This was performed across all classes
of property, plant and equipment.

Residual value of property, plant and equipment

Management has determined that none of its infrastructure assets have an active market value, and the value of the
amount at the end of their useful lives would therefore be insignificant.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and investment property held at cost

The useful lives of assets are based on management's estimates. Management considers the impact of technology, service
requirements and required return on assets to determine the optimum useful-life expectation, where appropriate. The
estimated residual values of assets are alsc based on management judgements on whether the assets will be sold or used
to the end of their useful lives, and what their condition will be at that time.

Significant delays in assets under construction

The Miunicipality regards delays in assets under construction of more than three years as significant. Further disciosures
are made in notes 2 {o 5 to the financial statements.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Management's judgement is required when recognising and measuring provisions, as well as when measuring contingent
liabilities and assets.Provisions are discounted, where the effect of discounting is material, using cost of capital.

Traffic Fines

12
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021

Accounting Policies

1.3 Critical judgements, estimates and assumptions {continued)

Fines are recognised as revenue when the receivable meets the definition of an asset and satisfies the criteria for
recognition as an asset. Assets arising from fines are measured at the best estimate of the inflow of resources to the
Municipality.

Budget information

A difference of 5% or more between budget and actual amounts is regarded as material. All material differences are
explained in the notes to the consolidated annual financial statements.

Material losses

Material losses are losses that occur due to factors other than normal production and utilisation, and are regarded as
material if their omission or misstaterment will affect the decisions made by users of the information. The iosses disclosed
include that of technical losses and nontechnical losses related to water and electriMunicipality.

Losses that ocour due to normal production and utilisation are classified as production costs and factored info the
Municipality's tariffs. They, therefore,do not constitute material losses. if actual production and utilsation losses exceed the
normal budgeted production and utilisation losses factored into the tariff, this difference is considered material losses. ( _

Service charges

Service charges relating to electriMunicipality, are based on consumptuion. Waste removal is based on the size of the bin
and thenumber of times it is collected. Meters are read and billed on a menthily basis and revenue is recognised when
invoiced. Estimates of consumption are made monthly when meler readings have not been performed. The estimates of
consumption are recognised as revenue when invoiced. Adjustments to estimates of consumption are made in the invoicing
period when meters have been read. These adjustments are recognised as revenue in the invoicing period. Waste removal
services are billed on a monthly basis,

Services provided on a prepaid basis

Various services are provided on a prepaid basis in which case no formal billing 'takes place and revenue associated with
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instrurents traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. The quoted market price used for financial assets is the current bid price.

1.4 Investment property

Investment property is property {land or a building - or part of a building - or both) held to earn rentals or for capital (
appreciation or both, rather than for: h
. use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
*  administrative purposes, or
*  sale in the ordinary course of operations.

At initial recognition, the municipality measures investment property at cost including transaction cost once it meets the
definition of investment property. Investment Property is initially recognised when future economic benefits or service
potential are probable and the cost or fair value can be determined reliably,

The cost of self-constructed investment property is the cost at date of completion.

Subsequent measurement - Fair value model

Investment property is measured using the fair value model. Under the fair value model, investment property is carried af its

fair value at the reporting date. Any gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of the property is included in surpius
or deficit for the period in which it arises.
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1.4 Investment property {(continued)

Derecognition

Investment property is derecognised on disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its disposai.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of investment property is the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of financial performance in the period of
retirement or disposal.

Investment property is derecognised on disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its disposal.

Al transfers will be as per GRAP 16.
1.5 Property, piant and equipment
Initial recognition

Property, plant and equiprment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used
during more than ene period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
’ it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the
municipality; and
. the cost of the item can be measured reliably,

Initial measurement

ltems of property plant and eguipmeni are initially recognised as assets on acquisition date and are initially recorded at
cost. The cost of property, piant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the municipality. Trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. The cost also includes the necessary costs of dismantling and
removing the asset and restoring the site in which it is located.

Where an asset is acquired is acquired by the municipality for no or nominal consideration (i.e a non-exchange transaction),
the cost is deemed to be equal to the fair value of that asset on the date acquired.

Where an itemn of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for & non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a
combination of menetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for
as separate items {major components) of property, plant and eguipment.

Major spare parts and servicing equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment when the municipality expects to use
them during more than one period. Similarly, if the major spare parts and servicing equipment can be used only in
connection with an item of property, plant and equipment, they are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Subseguent measurement - Cost Model
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1.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Where the municipality replaces parts of an asset, it derecognises the part of the asset
being replaced and capitalises the new component. Subsequent expenditure incurred on an asset is capitalised when it
increases the capacity or future economic benefits associated with the asset.

Depreciation and impairment

Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. Components of assets that are significant in relation to the whole asset and that have useful lives that are

depreciated separately.

Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have indefinite useful life.

Capital work in progress is not depreciable until it is transferred to the applicable property, plant and equipment category

once it is ready and availakle for its infended use.

The residual value, the useful life of an asset and the depreciation method is reviewed annually and any changes are (K
recognised as a change in accounting estimates in the Statement of Financial Performance.

The municipality tests for impairment where there is an indication that an asset maybe impaired. An assessment of whether
there is an indication of possible impairment is done at each reporting date where the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment is greater than the estimated recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount) and an
impairment amount is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

ltem Depreciation method Average useful life
Buildings Straight line 80 years

Motor vehicles Straight line 5-7 years
Infrastructure Straight line

. Roads and pavings 12 years

. Bridges 30 years

. Storm water 15 years

. Gravel 20 years

. Substation and Transformers 30 years

. Poles, Cables and Lights 15-25 years

. Robots 10 years
Community Straight line

. Buildings 80 years (-» .
. Recreationai facilities 5 years o
. Security system 5 years

» Dams 1-15 years

. Libraries 15-20 years

. Parks and Gardens 15 years

. Cemeteries 15-20 years

. Community centres 5-20 years

. Sports fercilities 30 years

Other property, plant and equipment Straight line

. Emergency equipment 5 years

. Landfill sites 15 years

. Office equipment 5 years

. Furniture and fittings 5 years

. Bins and containers 5 years

. Computers equipment 5.8 years
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1.6 Heritage Assetls
Initial Recognition

Heritage assets are assets that have a cultural, environmental, historical, natural, scientific, technological or artistic
significance and are held indefinitely for the benefit of present and future generations. A heritage asset shali be recognised
as an asset if, and only if:

(a) it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the entity, and

{b) the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Initial Measurement

An asset that has met the recognition reguirement criteria for heritage assets shall be measured at its cost if such an asset
has been acquired through an exchange fransaction.

Where a heritage asset has been acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost shall be measured at its fair value
as at the date of acquisition.

Subsequent Measurement

Heritage assets are not depreciated based on their nature however the municipality assesses at each reporting date
whether there is a need for impairment.

The class of heritage assets are carried at its cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Derecognition

The carrying amount of a heritage asset is derecognised:
(a) on disposal, or
(b) when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of a heritage asset shall be determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the heritage asset. Such difference is recognised in surplus or deficit
when the heritage asset is derecognised.

1.7 Intangible Assets
Initial Recognition

An intangibie asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance, Examples include computer software,
licences, and development costs. The municipality recognises an intangible asset in its Statement of Financial Position only
when it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are altributable to the asset will flow
to the municipality and the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Internally
generated intangible assets are subject to strict recognition criteria before they are capitalised.
Researchffeasibility expenditure is never capitalised, while development expenditure is only capitalised to the extent that:

« the municipality intends to complete the intangible asset for use or sale;

« it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset;

« the municipality has the resources to complete the project; and

« it is probable that the municipality will receive future economic benefits or service potential;
+ the municipality has the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.”
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1.7 Intangible Assets (continued)

Initial measurement

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

Where an
intangible asset is acquired by the municipality for no or nominal consideration (i.e. a non-exchange transaction), the cost is
deemed to be equal to the fair value of that asset on the date acquired.

Where an
intangible asset is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a combination of monetary and
non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item's fair value was
not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

Subsequent measurement

Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairments. The cost of an
intangible assef is amortised over the useful life where that useful life is finite. Residual value of intangible assets is
estimated to be zero. Fully depreciated assets which are still in use are not written off.

Amortisation

Amortisation is charged 50 as to write off the cost or valuation of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using the
straight line method. The annual amortisation rates are based on the following estimated average asset lives:

Computer
software 3 -8years

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at each
reporting date and any changes are recognised as a change in accounting estimate in the Statement of Financial
Performance.

The
municipality test intangible assets with finite useful lives for impairment where there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. An assessment of whether there is an indication of possible impairment is done at each reporting date. Where the
carrying amount of an item of an intangible asset is greater than the estimated recoverable amount (or recoverable service
amount), it is written down immediately 1o its recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount) and an impairment loss is
charged to the Statement of Financial Performance.

Derecognition

Intangible assets are derecognised when the assets are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no
further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an intangible asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value and is
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.8 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to & financial asset of one entity and a financial liabitity or a residual
interest of another entity.
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1.8 Financial instruments (continued)
Classification

The entity has the following types of financial assets {classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Recievables from non-exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Receivables from exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash eqguivalents Financial asset measured at amortised cost

The eniity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Consumer deposits Financial liability measured at amoriised cost
Trade and other payables from exchange fransactions Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Deffered Income Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Unspent conditional grant Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Employee benefit obligation Firancial liability measured at amortised cost

The entity has the following types of residual interests (classes and category) as refiected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

Inttial recognition

The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures a financial asset and financial fiability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
aftributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial fiability.

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value [if subsequently measured at fair value].

The entity first assesses whether the substance of a concessionary loan is in fact a loan. On initial recognition, the entity
analyses a concessionary loan into its component parts and accounts for each component separately. The entity accounts
for that part of a concessionary [oan that is:
. a social benefit in accordance with the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements,
where it is the issuer of the loan; or
. non-exchange revenue, in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions
(Taxes and Transfers), where it is the recipient of the loan.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures all financial assets and financiai liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:
. Financial instruments at fair value.
. Financial instruments at amortised cost.
. Financial instruments at cost,

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.
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1.8 Financial instruments {continued)

Darecognition

Financial assets

The entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

The entity derecognises a financial asset only when:

. the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;

» the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset;
or

» the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has
transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its
entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity
- derecognise the asset; and
- recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those transferred
on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair
values at that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is
recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

If the entity transfers a financial asset in a fransfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to
service the financial asset for a fee, it recognise either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract. If
the fee to be received is not expected to compensate the entity adegustely for performing the servicing, a servicing liability
for the servicing obligation is recognised at its fair value. If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate
compensation for the servicing, a servicing asset is recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis
of an allocation of the carrying amount of the larger financial asset.

I, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity obtaining a
new financial asset or assuming a new financiat liability, or a servicing lability, the entity recognise the new financial asset,
financial liability or servicing liability at fair value.

On derecegnition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial assef and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the
previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer. For this purpose, a
retained servicing asset is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part derecognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised is recognised in
surplus or deficit.

If a transfer does not result in derecognition because the entity has retained substantially atl the risks and rewards of
ownership of the transferred asset, the entity continue to recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and recognise a
financial liability for the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the entity recognises any revenue on the transferred
asset and any expense incurred on the financial liability. Neither the asset, and the associated liability nor the revenue, and
the associated expenses are offset.

Financial liabilities

The entity removes a financial fiability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is
extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelied, expires or waived.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted
for as having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability is recognised. Similarly, a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the original
financial liability and having recognised a new financial liability.
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1.8 Financial instruments {continued)

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability {or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred
to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by ancther entity by way of a non-exchange
transaction are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions
(Taxes and Transfers).

1.9 Trade and other receivables
Consumer Debtors per impairment category

Category A
. Regular payers and Government Accounts - 0%
. Consumers with accounts not older than 60 days, and;
. Government.

Category B
. Regular payers (50% less than 180 days and 100% on rest); and
. Amounis owing but do pay.

Category C
. Doubtful 100% all amounts;
. Consumers with no payment history;
. Owing longer than 60 days with no payments for 8§ months; and
, Inactive accounts.

The municipality individually asseses the debtors.
1.10 Leases

The Municipality as lessee

Recognition

L eases are classified as finance leases where substantially all the risks and rewards associated with ownership of an asset
are fransferred to the municipality. Property, plant and equipment or intangible assets subject to finance lease agreements
are initially recognised at the lower of the asset's fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments, The
corresponding liabilities are initially recognised at the inception of the lease and are measured as the sum of the minimum
lease payment due in ferms of the lease agreement, discounted for the effect of interest. In discounting the lease payment,
the municipality uses the interest rate that exactly discounts the lease payments and unguarenteed residual value to the fair
value of the asset plus any direct costs incurred.

Measurement

Subseguent 1o initial recognition, the leased assets are accounted for in accordance with the stated accounting policies
application to property, plant and equipment or intangibles. The lease liability is reduced by the lease payments, which are
allocated betwaen the lease finance cost and the capital repayments using the effective interest rate method. Lease finance
cosis are expensed when incurred. The accounting policies refated to derecognition of financial instruments are applied to
lease payables. The lease asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful lives or the lease term.

Derecognition

The finance lease liabilities are derecognised when the entity's obligation to settle the liability is extinguished. The assets
capitalised under the finance lease are derecognised when the entity no longer expects any economic benefits or service
potential to flow from the asset.

The operating lease lisbility is derecognised when the entity's obligation to setile the liability is extinguished. The operating
lease asset is derecognised when the entity no longer anticipates economic benefits to flow from the asset.
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1.10 Leases (continued)
Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Initiaf direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue.

The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

Income for |eases is disclosed under revenue in statement of financial performance.
The Municipality as Lessor

For those leases that meet the definition of a finance lease, where the entity is the lessor, the entity derecognises the asset
subject to the lease at the inception of the lease. Along with the derecognition of the asset the entity recognises a finance
lease receivable. Finance lease income is allocated to between the finance lease receivable and finance income using the
effective interest rate method and the resulting finance income is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance as
it accrues.

For those leases classified as operating leases the asset subject to the lease is not derecognised and no lease receivable
is recognised at the inception of the lease. Lease payments received under an operating iease are recognised as income,
in the Statement of Financial Performance, in the peried that the income accrues.

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at
inception date; namely, whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Measurement

Finance lease receivables are recognised at an amount equal to the entity’s net investment in the lease. This net
investment in the lease is calculated as the sum of the minimum future lease payments and unguaranteed residual value
discounted over the lease term at the rate implicit in the lease.

Rental Income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. The
difference between the straight-lined lease payments and the contractual lease payments are recognised as either an
operating lease asset or operating lease liability. An operating lease liability is raised to the extent that lease payments are
received in advance (i.e. the straight-line lease payments are more than the contractual lease payments). The operating
lease asset and / or operating lease liability are measured as the undiscounted difference between the straight-line lease
receipts and the contractual lease receipts.

Derecognition

Finance lease receivables are derecognised when the entity’s right to the underlying cash flows expire or when the entity no
longer expects economic benefits to flow from the finance lease receivable.

Operating lease liabilities are derecognised when the entity’s obligation to provide economic benefits or service potential
under the lease agreement expires. Operating lease assets are derecognised when the entity’s right to the underlying cash
flows expire or the entity no longer expects economic benefits to flow from the operating lease asset.

1.11 Inventories
Initial recogition and measurement

Inventeries comprise current assets not held for sale, consumption or distribution during the ordinary course of business.
Inventories are initially recognised at cost. Cost generally refers to the purchase price, plus taxes, transport costs and any
other costs in bringing the inventories to their current location and condition. Where inventory is acquired by the
municipality for no or nominal consideration (i.e. a non-exchange transaction), the cost is deemed to be equal to the fair
value of the item on the date acquired.
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1.11 Inventories (continued}

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then
their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Subsequently inveniories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. If there is no refated revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are
distributed, or refated services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current
replacement cost and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss oceurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current
replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

The basis of determining the cost of an inventory is (FIFO) First In First Qut and weighted Average method.
1.12 Impairment of cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return. Commercial return means
that positive cash flows are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic
recognition of the loss of the asset’s fulure economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return
that generates cash inflows from confinuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income
fax expense.

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Fair value less costs fo sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Useful life is either:
. the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the municipality; or
’ the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the municipality.

Criteria developed by the municipality to distinguish cash-generating assets from non-cash-generating assets are as
follows: as the municipality is a district municipality, it does not hold assets which are specifically used to generate revenue
(e.g. infrastructure relating to utilities), other than the farm used fo hold biological assets. Other revenue generated by the
municipality is in exchange for services provided, for which the related assets (furniture, office equipment, etc.) are
interchangeable with the assets used for non-cash generating activities

Identification
When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired.

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the municipality also test a cash-generating intangible asset
with an indefinite useful life or a cash-generating infangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amouni. This impairment test is performed at the same fime every year.
If an intangible asset was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for
impairment before the end of the current reporting period.
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1.13 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return. Commercial return means
that positive cash flows are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset.

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

Impairment is & loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic
recognition of the loss of the asset's future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation {amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial
return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income
tax expense.

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, wiling parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Useful life is either:
. the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the municipality; or
U the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the municipality.

Criteria developed by the municipality fo distinguish non-cash-generating assets from cash-generating assets are as follow:
as the municipality is a district municipality, it does not hold assets which are specifically used to generate revenue (e.g.
infrastructure relating to utilities), other than the farm used to hold biological assets. Revenue generated by the municipality
is in exchange for services provided, for which the related assets (furniture, office equipment, etc.) are interchangeable with
the assets used for non-cash generating activities; all such interchangeable assets are deemed to be non-cash generating
assets.

Identification
When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is impaired.

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the entity also test a non-cash-generating intangible asset with
an indefinite useful life or a non-cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable service amount, This impairment test is performed at the same time
every year. If an intangible asset was initially recognised during the current reparting period, that intangible asset was
tested for impairment before the end of the current reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

if the recoverable service amount of a2 non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cash-generating asset to
which it relates, the municipality recognises a liability anly to the extent that is a requirement in the Standards of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation} charge for the non-cash-generating asset is
adjusted in fuiure periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value {if
any)}, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful iife.
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1.14 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid
vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the peried in
which the service is rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employess render services that increase
their entitiement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

The expected cost of surplus sharing and benus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits} which are payable after the completion of
employment,

Post-employment benefit plans are formal or inforrnal arrangements under which an entity provides post-employment
benefits for one or more employees.

Multi-employer plans are defined contribution pians {other than state plans and composite social security programmes) or
defined benefit plans (other than state plans) that pool the assets contributed by various entities that are not under common
control and use those assets to provide benefits to employees of more than one entity, on the basis that contribution and
benefit levels are determined without regard to the identity of the entity that employs the employees concerned.

Defined contribution plans
Payments {o defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.
Payments made to industry-managed {or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealf with as defined contribution

plans where the entity’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement
benefit plan.
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1.14 Employee benefits (continued)

Medical Aid

For defined benefit plans the cost of providing the benefits is determined using the projected credit method.
Actual valuations are conducted on an annuai basis by independent actuaries separately for each plan.

Consideration is given {0 any event that could impact the funds up to end of the reporting period where the interim valuation
is performed at an earlier date.

Past service costs are recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are vested, and are otherwise amortised on a
straight line basis over the average period until the amended benefits become vested.

To the extent that, at the beginning of the financial period, any cumulative unrecognised actuarial gain or loss exceeds ten
percent of the greater of the present value of the value projected benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets (
the corridor), that portion is recognised in surplus or deficit over the expected average remaining service lives of
participating employees. Actuarial gains or losses within the corridor are not recognised.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan is recognised when the entity is demonstrably
committed to curtailment or settlement.

When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or ali of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit
cbligation, the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The asset is measured at fair vaiue. In all other
respects, the asset is ireated in the same way as plan assets. In surplus or deficit, the expense relating to a defined benefit
plan is [OR is noij presented as the net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement.

The amount recognised in the statement of financial position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation
as adjusted for unrecognised acturial gains and losses and unrecognised past service cost, and reduces by the fair value of
plan assets,

Any asset is limited to unrecognised actuarial losses and past service costs, plus the present value of available refunds and
reduction in future contributions to the plan.

Actuarial assumptions
Actuarial assumptions are unbiased and mutually compatible.

Financial assumptions are based on market expectations, at the reporting date, for the period over which the obligations are
o be settled.

The rate used to discount post-employment benefit obligations {both funded and unfunded) reflect the time value of money.
The currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the currency
and estimated term of the post-employment benefit obligations.

Post-empioyment benefit obligations are measured on a basis that reflects:

. estimated future salary increases;

. the benefits set out in the terms of the plan {or resulting from any constructive obligation that goes beyond those
terms) at the reporiing date; and

+  estimated future changes in the level of any state benefits that affect the benefits payable under a defined benefit
plan, if, and only if, either:

. those changes were enacted before the reporting date; or

. past history, or other reliable evidence, indicates that those state benefits will change in some predictable
manner, for example, in line with future changes in general price levels or general sajary levels.

Assumptions about medical costs fake account of estimated future changes in the cost of medical services, resulting from
both infiation and specific changes in medical costs.

1.15 Provisions

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to setile the present obligation at
the reporting date.

Where the effect of fime value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settte the obligation.
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1.15 Provisions {continued)

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the
municipality settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it
is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to
settle the obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of & provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This
increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating surplus (deficit).

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 38.
1.16 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result
in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating fo contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilittes extinguished, and
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in
exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume
rebates.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:

» the municipality has transferred fo the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the geoeds;

. the municipality retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably,

. it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
municipality; and

»  the costs incurred or {o be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
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1.16 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)
Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with
the transaction is recognised by reference o the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome
of a fransaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will low to the

municipality;
. the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
. the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised ona
straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some cther method better represents the
stage of compietion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is
postponed until the significant act is executed.

When the cutcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverabie.

Service Charges

Service charges relating to electriciy are based on consumption. Meters are read on a monthly basis and are recognised
as revenue when invoiced. Provisional estimates of consumption, based on the consumption history, are made monthly
when meter readings have not been performed. The provisional estimates of consumption are recognised as revenue when
invoiced, except at year-end when estimates of consumption up to year-end are recorded as revenue without being
invoiced. Adjustments to provisionat estimates of consumption are made in the invoicing period in which meters have been
read. These adjustments are recognised as revenue in the invoicing period. In respect of estimates of consumption
between the last reading date and the reporting date, an accrual is made based on the average monthly consumption of
consumers.

Service charges relating to refuse removal are recognised on a monthly basis in arrears by applying the approved tariff to
each property that has improvements. Tariffs are determined per category of property usage, and are levied monthly based
on the number of refuse containers on each property.

In circumstances where services cannot readily be measured and guantified, a fiat rate service charge is Jevied monthly on
such properties.

Pre-paid Electricity
Revenue from the sale of electricity pre-paid meter cards are recognised at the point of sale. Revenue from the sale of
electricity prepaid meter cards made in the last month of the financial year is recognised based on an estimate of the

prepaid electricity consumed as at the reporting date with reference to the consumption patterns of the individual users,

Rentals

Revenue from the rental of facilities and equipment classified as operating leases is reccgnised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease agreement where material, where such lease periods span over more than one financial year.

1.17 Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the
extent that a fiability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

As the municipality safisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an infiow of resources from a non-
exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an
amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue to the extent that the
municipality has complied with the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the
criteria, conditions or obligations have not been met, a liability is recognised.

27



Greater Kokstad Local Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 June 2021

Accounting Policies

1.17 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)
Measurement

Revenue from a nen-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the
meunicipality.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the municipality recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue
equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to
recognise a liability. Where a liability is required fo be recognised it will be measured as the hest estimate of the amount
required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as
revenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount
of the reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue.

Transfers

Apart from Services in kind, which are nof recognised, the municipality recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the
transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.

The municipality recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset
and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.

Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Deferred Income

Amounts received before the related work is performed are included in the statement of financial position as a liability,
Deferred Income

Rates and Taxes

Revenue from property rates is recognised when the legal entitiement to this revenue arises. Collection charges are
recognised when such amounts are tegally enforceable. Penalty interest on unpaid rates is recognised on a time proportion
hasis with reference to the principal amount receivable and effective interest rate applicable. A composite rating system
charging different rate tariffs is employed. Rebates are granted to certain categories of ratepayers and are deducted from
revenue.

Fines
Fines constitute both spot fines and summonses.

Revenue from fraffic fines is initially measured on the value stipulated on the notice, summens or equivalent document. The
revenue from traffic fines is subject to further judicial process which is outside ihe municipality's control. These reductions
are not considered in measuring the revenue and receivable on initial recognition. This is because of the high degree of
uncertainty in estimating the likely outcome of this process. Once this separated process has been concluded, any
reductions are accounted for as a change in estimated revenue and in accordance with iGRAP1.

Public contributions

Revenue from public contributions is recognised when all conditions associated with the contribution have been met or
where the contribution is to finance property, plant and equipment, when such items of property, plant and equipment are
brought into use. Revenue is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received. Where public contributions have
been received and the municipality has not met the condition, a liability is recognised.

Tariff Charges

Revenue arising from the application of the approved tariff of charges is recognised when the relevant service is rendered
by applying the relevant authorised tariff. This includes the issuing of licences and permits.
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1.18 Value Added Taxation

The Municipality accounts for Value Added Tax on the accrual basis. .

The municipality is registered with the South African Revenue Services (SARS) for VAT on the invoice basis, in accordance
with Section 15(1) of the VAT Act No.89 of 1991.

1.19 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalised to
to the cost of that asset unless it is inappropriate to do so. The municipality ceases the capitalisation of horrowing costs when
substantially all the activities to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are complete. it is considered inappropriate to
capitalise borrowing costs where the link between the funds borrowed and the capital asset acquired cannot be adequately

established. Borrowing costs incurred other than on qualifying assets are recognised as an expense in surplus or deficit when
incurred.

1.20 Comparative figures
No comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.
1.2% Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure is an expenditure that has not been budgeted for, expenditure that is not in terms of the
conditions of an allocation received from another sphere of government, municipality or organ of state and expenditure in
the form of a grant that is not permitted in {erms of the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No 56 of 2003).
Unzauthorised expenditure is accounted for as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered,
it is subseguently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance
in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense,
and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.22 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had
reasonable care been exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of
the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

AN

1.23 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expendiiure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condened before year end
and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure
register. In such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financiat
statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being
awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception
of updating the note to the financial statements.

Where irreguiar expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year,
the register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the
National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for
the irregutar expenditure can be attribuied to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is kiable in law.
Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the
accounting officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debi impairment and disclose such in the refevant
note to the financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irreguiar
expenditure has not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the
relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly
in the irregular expenditure register.
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1.23 Irregular expenditure (continued)

Irreguiar expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.55 of 2003), the
Municipal Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of
the economic entity’s supply chain management policy. Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. Irregular
expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is
subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.24 Commitments

ltems are classified as commitments where the municipality commits itself to future transactions that will normally result in
the outflow of resources.

Commitments are not recegnised in the statement of financial position as a liability, but are included in the disclosure notes
in the following cases;

«  approved and contracted commitments;

. where the expenditure has been approved and contract has been awarded at the reporting date; and

. where disclosure is required by a specific standard of GRAP,

1.25 Budget information

Municipality is typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations {or equivalenit),
which is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.

General purpose financial reporting by municipality shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used
in accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a accrual basis and presented by economic classification linked to performance
outcome objectives.

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 2020/07/01 to 2021/06/30.

The budget for the economic entity includes all the entities approved budgets under its control.

The annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the
budgeted amecunts for the reporting peried have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts.

1.26 Related parties

A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise significant
influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control.

Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Joint control is the agreed sharing of control over an activity by a binding arrangement, and exists only when the strategic
financial and operating decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control (the
venturers).

Related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity and a related party,
regardiess of whether a price is charged.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is not control
over those policies.

Management are those persons responsible for pianning, directing and controlling the activities of the municipality,
including those charged with the governance of the municipality in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are
required to perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are censidered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that management in their dealings with the municipality.
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1.26 Related parties (continued)

The municipality is exempt from disclosure requirements in relation to related party transactions if that transaction cccurs
within normal supplier and/or client/recipient relationships on terms and conditions no more or less favourable than those
which it is reasonable to expect the municipality to have adopted if dealing with that individual entity or person in the same
circumstances and terms and conditions are within the normal operating parameters established by that reporting entity's
legal mandate.

Where the municipality is exempt from the disclosures in accordance with the above, the municipality discloses narmrative
information about the nature of the transactions and the related outstanding balances, to enable users of the entity’s
financial statements to understand the effect of related party transactions on its annuaj financial statements,

1.27 Events after reporting date

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and
the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:
. those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting
date}; and
. those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting
date).

The municipality wilt disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its finrancial effect or a statement that such estimate
cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

1.28 Statutory receivables
Statutory receivables are receivables that:

(a) arise from legislation, suppoerting regulations, or similar means; and
(b) require settiement by another entity in cash or another financial asset.

Recognition
An entity shall recognise statutory receivables as follows:

(a} if the transaction is an exchange transaction, using GRAFP 9;

(b} if the transaction is a non-exchange transaction, using GRAP 23; or

{c) if the transaction is not within the scope of the Standards of GRAP listed in (2) or (b) or another Standard of GRAP, the
receivable is recognised when the definition of an asset is met and, when it is probable that the future economic benefits or
service potential associated with the asset will flow to the entity and the transaction amount can be measured reliably.

An entity shall derecognise a statutory receivable, or a part thereof, when:

(a) the rights to the cash flows from the receivable are settled, expire or are waived;
(b) the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the receivable; or
(c) the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the receivable, has transferred
control of the receivable to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the receivable in its entirety to
an unrelated third party, and is able o exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose additional restrictions
on the transfer. In this case, the entity shall:

(d) derecognise the receivable; and

(e} recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer

initial measurement

The muncipality initially measures statutory receivables at their transaction amount.

Subseguent Measurement

The municipality measures statutory receivables after initial recognition using the cost model. Under the cost method the
initial measurement of the receivables is changed subsequent to initial recognition to reflect any :

(1)interest or other charges that may accrued on receivables (where applicable)

(2)Impairement losses and
(3)Amount deracognised.
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2021 2020

2. New standards and interpretations
2.1 Standards and interprefations issued, but not yet effective

The municipality has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory
for the municipality’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2021 or later periods:

GRAP 104 {amended): Financial Instruments

Following the global financial crisis, @ number of concerns were raised about the accounting for financial instruments. This
included that {a} information on credit losses and defaulis on financial assets was received {oo late to enable proper
decision-making, (b} using fair value in certain instances was inappropriate, and {(¢) some of the existing accounting
requirements were seen as too rules based. As a result, the International Accounting Standards Board® amended its
existing Standards to deal with these issues. The IASB issued IFRS Standard on Financial Instruments (IFRS 8} in 2008 to
address many of the concerns raised. Revisions were also made to IAS on Financial Instruments: Presentation and the
{IFRS Standard® on Financial Instruments: Disclosures. The IPSASBE issued revised International Public Sector Accounting
Standards in June 2018 so as to align them with the equivalent IFRS Standards.

The revisions better align the Standards of GRAP with recent international developments. The amendments result in better
information available to make decisions about financial assets and their recoverability, and more transparent information on
financial liabilities.

The most significant changes to the Standard affect:

- Financial guarantee contracts issued
- Loan commitments issued

- Classification of financial assets

- Amortised cost of financial assets

- Impairment of financial assets

- Disclosures

The effective date of the amendment is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.

The municipality expects to adopt the amendment for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date for the
amendment.

GRAP 25 Employee costis

The Accounting Standards Board (the Board) is required in terms of the Public Finance Management Act, Act No. 1 of
1929, as amended (PFMA), o determine generally recognised accounting practice referred to as Standards of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP).

Recognition and measurement

When an employee has rendered service to an entity during a reporting period, the entity shall recognise the undiscounted
amount of short-term employee benefits expected fo be paid in exchange for that service:

(a) As a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of the benefits, an entity shall recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that
the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund.

(b} As an expense, unless another Standard of GRAP requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an
asset (see, for example, the Standards of GRAP on Inventories (GRAP 12), Property, Plant and Equipment {GRAP 17),
Intangible Assets (GRAP 31) and Heritage Assets (GRAP 103)).

Disclosure
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2. New standards and interpretations (continued)

Although this Standard does not require specific disclosures about short-term employee benefits, other Standards may
require disclosures. For example, GRAP 20 reguires disclosures of the aggregate remuneration of management and the
Standard of GRAP on Presentation of Financial Statements (GRAP 1) requires the disclosure of information about
employee benefits expense.

3. Going concern

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settiement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

4. Inventories

Stores and materials 1,117,098 1,985,542

inventory pledged as security

No Inventory pledged as security.
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2021 2020
R R
5. Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Sundry debtors 5,711,294 5,590,656
5.1 Statutory Receivables
Consumer debiors - rates 16,581,399 16,052,350
Fines 15,441,616 13,621,598
32,023,015 29,673,948
Fines Reconciliation
Opening balance fines 20,611,930 18,371,980
Opening impairment of fines {6,990,333) (6,497,966)
Current year fines 2,102,739 2,239,950
Current year on impairment fines (289,720) (492,367)
15,441,616 13,621,597

Receivables from non-exchange transactions-Rates
Gross
Rates 31,349,076 30,820,877
Impairment (14,767 677) (14,768,528)

16,581,399 16,052,349
Rates
Current (0 -30 days) 5,173,946 4,286,908
31-60days 2,769,111 1,936,939
61 - 90 days 1,069,992 1,097,671
91 - 120 days 739,089 811,441
121 - 150 days 718,028 591,661
> 151 days 20,878,899 22,097,257

31,349,076 30,820,877

6. Prepayments

The year of renewal overlaps to the Municipality's new financial year. The municipality pre-paid for the following licenses :

Adobe sign
Anti-virus
Disaster recovery
Eclaimer cloud
Firewall licence
Microsoft licences
Papercut MF print - tenable management tool to scan
Resillio sync
Sage licence
Solar winds
Cibecs perpetual
Lensweeper
Meunsoft

51,974
42,511
3,393
29,085
32,194
524,444
65,314
113,273
96,751
304,008
230,562
115,556
81,250

107,208

52,528
276,810

90,761

1,690,316

527,307
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2021 2020
R R

7. Receivables from exchange transactions
Gross balances
Electricity 22,668,665 18,676,837
Refuse 20,018,383 15,916,081
Fire and other 6,587,838 8,190,153

49,274,886 38,783,071
Less: Allowance for impairment
Electricity (2,962,478) (1,477,492)
Refuse (11,824,034) (10,624,087}
Fire and other {3,544 723) (908,543}

Net balance
Electricity
Refuse

Fire and other

Electricity

Current (0 -30 days)
31 - 60 days

61 - 90 days

91 - 120 days

121 - 365 days

> 365 days

Refuse

Current (0 -30 days)
31-60 days

61 - 90 days

91 - 120 days

121 - 365 days

> 365 days

Fire Levy and other
Current {0 -30 days}
31-60 days

61 -90 days

81 -120 days

121 - 365 days

> 365 days

{18,331,233)

{13,010,122) ¢

19,706,189 15,199,345
8,194,349 5,291,989
3,043,115 5,281,610
30,943,653 25,772,944
13,554,800 8,228,604
3,567,920 3,074,702
1,024,886 630,538
626,849 424,880
209,426 302,407
2,784,784 4,006,706
22,668,665 16,676,837
1649411 1,575,496
1,147,939 1,107,030
890,808 856,039
800,613 754578 (.
717,921 1,304,924
14,811,691 10,228,014
20,018,383 15,916,081
136,712 122,326
113,255 101,879
102,733 89,341
91,447 79,748
83,978 215,928
6,059,713 5,580,933
6,587,838 6,190,153

35



Greater Kokstad Local Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2021 2020
R R
7. Receivables from exchange transactions (continued)
Summary of debtors by customer classification
Consumers
Current (0 -30 days) (783,823) 3,000,263
31 - 80 days 51,719 2,195,083
61 - 90 days 427,766 1,509,404
91 - 120 days 573,341 1,222,590
121 - 365 days 427 401 1,801,335
> 365 days 13,885,449 18,865,417
14,581,853 28,694,072
Industrial/ commercial
Current (0 -30 days) 14,515,319 7,945,042
31 - 60 days 3,293,545 3,470,179
61 - 80 days 1,711,297 788,968
91 - 120 days 696,972 486,077
121 - 365 days 323623 (140,788)
> 365 days 3,956,117 6,266,271
24,496 873 18,815,751
National and provincial government
Current {C -30 days) 860,978 634,127
31-60 days 395,218 371,352
61 - 90 days 334,164 123,470
91 - 120 days 102,384 78,509
121 - 365 days 70,647 37,405
> 365 days 1,779,445 2,751,860
3,542,836 3,996,723
Total
Current (0 -3C days) 14,592,474 11,579,433
31 - 80 days 3,740,482 6,036,594
61 - 90 days 2,473,227 2,421,841
91 - 120 days 1,372,697 1,787,176
121 - 365 days 821,671 1,797,954
> 365 days 19,621,010 9,037,491
42,621,561 32,660,489
Less: Allowance for impairment {18,331,233) (13,010,120}
Add debtors with credit balances 6,653,318 6,122,575
30,943,646 25772944
Less: Allowance for impairment
Current (0 -30 days) (983,618)  (3,468,606)
31 - 60 days (875,442)  (1,858,897)
61 - 90 days (891,602) (3,819,414)
91 - 120 days (869,253) (980,258)
121 - 365 days (14,711,318}  (3,282,947)

Reconciliation of allowance for impairment
Balance at beginning of the year
Contributions to allowance

(18,331,233)

(13,010,122)

(13,010,127)
(5,321,108)

(14.554,4186)
1,544,294

(18,331,233)

(13,010,122}
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7. Receivables from exchange tfransactions (continued)
Fair value of receivables from exchange transactions
The fair value equates to carrying value due to the short term nature.
Consumer debtors past due but not impaired
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:
1 month past due 5,032,569 7,779,841
2 months past due 1,715,740 3,208,694
3 months past due 226,836 (44,419
8. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of;
Cash on hand 23,885 20,173
Bank halances - 14,347,113
Short-term deposits 60,922,047 102,969,636

60,945,932 117,336,922
Current assets 60,945,932 117,336,022
Current liabilities {10,371,289) -

50,574,643 117,336,922

The municipality had the following bank accounts

Account number / description

FNB 527 2002 4258

FNB 620 4594 7825

FNB 620 9521 8947

FNB 620 610 2682

FNB 620 8937 2868

FNB 621 8992 7663

FNB 6219170 1476

FNB 6210368 9230

FNB 6219024 8221

STD BANK 308 644 085
NED BANK 0371 6501 3887
FNB 623 0064 1611

NED 716 501 3660

NED 0371 8501 4276
ABSA 207 483 6976

ABSA BANK 20-7551-2256
NED BANK 50110597/9997 -
037165022295

DOE 63875 1558 80001
NED BANK 371 6502 1266
STD BANK 638 516 198-012
STD BANK 638 516 196-011
FNB 628 6690 0337

Total

Bank statement halances
30 June 2021 June 30, 2020 30 June 2021 June 30, 2020

Cash book bhalances

4,342,248 15,532,828  (10,371,288) 14,347,112
162,328 198,677,982 162,328 18,196,941
1,000 1,006 1,000 1,000
24,115 24,667 24,115 24,634
6,460 1,000 6,460 1,000
252,271 247 A40 252,271 227,038
1,000 2,887 1,000 2,875
988,370 1,087,556 988,370 1,058,864
2,962,334 2,806,748 2,862,334 2,784,506
109,295 1,936,716 109,295 1,936,716
89,218 86,310 89,216 85,424
2,237 2,237 2,237 2,237
28,807 3,953 28,807 3874
118,679 114,813 118,679 114,813

- 15,007,781 - 15,007,781
7,204,189 6,989,455 7,204,189 6,988,455
15,301,853 14,803,478 15,301,853 14,803,478
1,467,126 12,778,549 1,467,126 12,727,712
7,107,937 6,876,434 7,107,937 6,876,434
16,218,620 15,388,864 16,218,623 13,945,737
7,539,057 7,179,330 7,539,067 7,179,330
1,337,148 - 1,337,149 -
65,264,291 120,530,028 50,550,757 117,316,961

The following Financial assets was held as collateral R&0 000.
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9. Investment property
2021 2020
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation depreciation Valuation depreciation
and and
accumnulated accumulated
impairment impairment
Land & Buildings 102,284,133 - 102,284,133 100,033,382 - 100,033,382
Reconciliation of investment property - 2021
Opening Fair value Total
balance adjustments
Land & Buildings 100,033,382 2,250,751 102,284,133
Reconciliation of investment property - 2020
Opening Fair value Total
balance adjustments
Land & Buildings 96,650,610 3,382,772 100,033,382

Pledged as security
No assets pledged as security

A register containing the information reguired by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for
inspection at the registered office of the municipality.

Details of valuation

The effective date of the revaluations was 1 July 2017. Revaluations were performed by an independent valuer, Mr Boateng
[SACPVP, IAAO &GiS], of Khanyisa Property valuations.Mr Boateng is not connected to the entity and has recent
experience in location and category of the investment property being valued. The valuation was based on open market
value for existing use

For investment property, where there was a lack of comparable market data, the vajuation was based on discounted cash
flows. The following assumptions were used :

Rental revenue and interest rate increases and prevailing interest rates , Discount rate used is 2.25%.
These assumptions are based on cusrent market conditions.

The last valuation came into effect on 1 July 2017. Interim valuations are processed on a quarterty basis to take into
account changes in individual property values due to alterations. Valuations are performed every 5 years.

Amounts recegnised in surplus and deficit for the year.

Rental revenue from investment property 1,893,386 1,876,336
Direct operating expenses from rental generating property 1,638,641 640,984
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10. Property, plant and equipment
2021 2020
Cost / Accumutated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation depreciation Valuation depreciation
and and
accumulated accumulated
impairment impairment
Land and buildings 124,883,488  (92,892,311) 32,001,177 124,893,488 (91,738,094) 33,155,394
Motor vehicles 18,953,823  (13,418,884) 5,534,939 18,342,259  {11,032,475) 7,309,784
infrastructure 702,802,713 (384,660,835) 318,141,878 654,062,344 (350,767,402) 294,284,842
Community 248,732,050 (108,273,261) 140,458,789 202,460,239 (104,506,012) 97,954,227
Other property, plant and 50,761,754 (36,133,301} 14,628,453 46,255,883  (32,662,223) 13,593,660
equipment
Capital work in progress 75,771,983 - 75771983 68,532,237 - 68,632,237
infrastructure
Capital work in progress 95,941,371 - 95,941,371 83,099,763 - 83,099,763
community
Total 1,317,857,182 (635,378,592) 682,478,590 1,197,636,213 (599,706,206) 597,930,007
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2021
Opening Additions Transfers Depreciation Total
balance received
Land and Buildings 33,155,394 - - (1,154,217) 32,001,177
Motor vehicles 7,309,784 611,563 - (2,386,408) 5,534,939
Infrastructure 294,284,942 - 48750,373 (24,893,437) 318,141,878
Community 97,054,227 - 46,271,811 {3,767,248) 140,458,789
Other property, plant and equipment 13,693,660 4,505,870 - (3.471,077) 14,628,453
Capital work in progress infrastructure 68,532,237 55,990,119  (48,750,373) - 75,771,983
Capital work in progress community 83,099,763 59,113,419 (46,271,811) - 95,941,371
597,930,007 120,220,971 - (35,672,388) 682,478,590
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2020
Opening Additions Transfers  Depreciation Total
balance
Land and Buildings 34,309,811 - - (1,154,417) 33,155,384
Motor vehicles 8,310,479 1,112,035 - (2,112,730) 7,309,784
Infrastructure 301,953,347 - 17,215,811 (24,884,216) 204,284,942
Community 89,923,724 - 11,368,170 (3,337,667) 97,954,227
Other property, plant and equipment 16,403,128 1,728,071 - {4,535,639) 13,593,660
Capital work in progess infrastructure 24,856,574 60,891,474 (17,215,811) - 68,532,237
Capital work in progess community 68,687,378 25,880,555 (11,368,170) - 83,099,763
544,344,441 89,610,135 - (36,024,569) 597,930,007

Pledged as security

Assets were not pledged as security.

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for

inspection at the registered office of the municipality.
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10. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Expenditure incurred to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment

Expenditure incurred to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment

included in Statement of Financial Performance

Contracted services 8,033,521 -
General expenses 13,060,714 14,262,155

21,094,235 14,262,155

Carrying value of PPE, that is taking significantly longer period to complete than expected
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11. Intangible Assets
2021 2020
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation amortisation Valuation amortisation
and and
accumulated accumulated
impairment impairment
Computer software 4,703,527 (3,088,195) 1,615,332 4,315,527 {2,806,618) 1,508,909
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2021
Opening Additions Amortisation Total
balance
Computer software 1,508,909 388,000 (281,577) 1,615,332
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2020
Opening Additions Amortisation Totat
balance
Computer software 1,716,708 133,218 (341,015) 1,608,909

Pledged as security

None of intangible assets pledged as security.

The register containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for

inspection at the registered office of the municipality.
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12. Heritage assets
2021 2020
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accurnulated Carrying value
Valuation impairment Valuation impairment
losses losses
Statue 854,000 - 954,000 954,000 - 954,000
Museum 1,112,400 - 1,112,400 1,112,400 - 1,112,400
Total 2,066,400 - 2,066,400 2,066,400 - 2,066,400
Reconciliation of heritage assets 2021
Opening Total
balance
Statue 954,000 954,000
Museum 1,112,400 1,112,400
2,066,400 2,066,400
Reconciliation of heritage assets 2020
Opening Total
balance
Statue 954,000 854,000
Museum 1,112,400 1,112,400
2,066,400 2,066,400
No impairment loss that is recognised during the current financial year.
413. Payables from exchange transactions
Trade payables 8,554,279 17,011,089
Unazllocated deposits 16,490,354 14,528,834
Accrued leave pay 9,441,150 8,481,663
Other payables 23,146 158,183
Debtors with credit balances non- exhange and exchange services 7,141,726 6,627,445
Retentions 6,605,992 6,064,528
Creditor accruals 12,251,143 465,460
60,507,790 53,337,302
14. VAT payahle
Vat payable 3,042,581 4,705,589
All VAT returns have been submitted by the due date througout the vear.
15. Consumer deposits
Electricity 4,503,509 4,524,843

Consumers on application for electricity connections pay consumer deposits. The deposit is repaid when connections are
terminated. Consumer deposits are refunded to the owner when a house or building is sotd after the Municipality has issued

a clearance certificate.
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16. Retirement benefits and long term service awards
Defined benefit plan
The plan is a post employment medical benefit plan.
The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:
Nen-current liabilities 28,535684 23,327,004
Current liabilities 1,260,320 1,312,000

29,796,004 24,639,004
Post employment health care benefits
Opening balance (19,230,000} (16,365,346)
MNet actuarial gains pr (losses) recognised (725,000 (1,257,077}
Current service costs {999,000} (740,632)
Interest cost (2,015,000  (1,508,290)
Contributions by employer 654,000 632,346

{22,324,999) (19,238,899)
Long service awards
Opening balance {5,389,005) {(4,900,188)
Net actuarial gains or (losses) recognised {1,750,000) (37.677)
Current service costs (599,000) (553,657}
Interest cost (381,000) (383,613)
Contributions by employer 658,000 476,130

(7,471,005)  (5,399,005)
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16. Retirement benefits and long term service awards (continued)

PeHCL report
Assumptions used at the reporting date:
Post-Employment Medicai Aid subsidy liability

Key Financial Assumptions

Table 5.1 summarises the key financial assumptions used for the liabilities at the Valuation Date and the expense figures
for the ensuing year. The next contribution rate increase is assumed 1o occur at 1 January 2022,

Table 5.1: Key financial assumptions

Assumption Value p.a.
Discount rate 10.27%
Health care cost inflation rate 6.94%
Net-of-health-care-cost-inflation discount rate 3.11%
Maximum subsidy inflation rate 4.83%
Net-of-maximum-subsidy-inflation discountrate  |5.19%
Key Demographic Assumptions

Table 5.2 summarises the key demographic assumptions used.

Key demographic assumptions

Assumption Value
Average retirement age 62
Continuation of membership at retirement 75%
Proportion with a spouse dependant at retirement  |60%
Proportion of in-service non-members joininga  [25%
scheme by retirement and continuing with the

subsidy thereafter

Mortality during employment SA 85-90

Mortality post-employment

PA(90) -1 with a 1% mortalityimprovement p.a.
from 2010

Withdrawal from service (sample annual rates)

See Table A4.2
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16. Retirement benefits and long term service awards (continued)
Accrued Liability (R millions)
Category 30/06/2020 30/06/2021
In-service members 8.432 11.306
In-service non-members 4.243 4.922
Total in-service 12.678 16.228
Continuation members 6.565 6.097
All members
Total liability 19.240 22.325
Value of assets 0.000 0.000
Unfunded liability 19.240 22.325
Expected current portion of liability (payable (0.654 0.576
within 12 months)
Expected non-current portion of liability 18.586 21.749
(payable thereafter
Comparison of assumptions
Assumption 30/06/2020 30/06/2021
Discount rate 10.65% 10.27%
Health care cost inflation rate 6.68% 6.94%
Net-of-health-care-cost-inflation 3.72% 3.11%
discount rate
Maximum subsidv inflation rate 4.64% 4.83%
Net-of-maximum-subsidy-inflation |5.75% 5.19%
discount rate
Average retirement age 62 62
Mortality during employment SA 85-90
Mortality post-employment PA(90) -1 with al% PA(90) -1 with a 1% mortality
mortality improvement p.a. from 2010
improvement p.a. from 2010
Withdrawal rates Updated per Table A4.2
Proportion with a spouse dependant [60% 60%
at retirement
Continuation of membership at 75% 75%
retirement
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16. Retirement benefits and long term service awards {continued)
Proportion of eligible in-service non- [0% 25%
members joining a scheme by
retirement and continuing with the
subsidy at and after retirement
{“take-up rate™)
Table 7.1: Sensitivity Analysis on the Accrued Liability (R Millions)
Assumption Change Eligible Continuation Total Change
Emplovees members
Central 16.228 6.097 22.325
assumptions
Health care +1% 18.139 6.171 24310 9%
inflation rate -1% 13.974 5.954 19.928 -11%
Discount rate  {+1% 13.665 5.647 19.312 -13%
-1% 19.515 6.616 26.131 17%
Post- +1 YR 15.819 5.915 21.734 3%
employment +I YR 16.633 6.277 22.910 3%
Mortality
Average +1 YR 17.844 6.097 23.941 7%
retirement age
Continuation of |+1% 14.116 6.097 20.213 -9%
membership at
retirement
Tabhle A4.2: Withdrawal rates
This Valuation
Age Females Males
20 9% 9%
25 8% 8%
30 6% 6%
35 5% 5%
40 5% 5%
45 4% 4%
50 3% 3%
55 0% 0%
> 55 0% 0%
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17. Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of:
Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Intergrated National Electrification Programme - 614,557
Furniture world 226,413 226,413
Horseshoe Township 1,591,217 1,574,892
IDP Community participation 69,019 85,673
industrial Park 177,382 177,382
Peoples Housing Project 12 and 13 26,702 26,702
Shayamoya Eco- Complex 31,743 31,743
Small Town Rehabilitation 95,508 95,508
Building plans 1,193 500,000
Cultural Village 891,248 5,696,688
Housing account 1,701,654 2,027,209
Sports & Recreation 20,808 20,8086
Massification 41,352 41,352
Disaster COVID19 grant - 2,333
Informat Trader stalls 4,483,795 -
Smart city development strategy 469,813 -
Greenest Municipality 375,000 -
10,202,845 11,021,358
18. Provisions
Reconciliation of provisions - 2021
Cpening Additions  Utilised during  Reversed Total
Balance theyear  during the year
Landfill site 12,212,617 4,220,928 - - 16,433,545
Provision for performance bonus 2,001,718 2,082,395 (193,338) (1,808,382) 2,082 395
14,214,335 6,303,323 (193,336)  (1,808,382) 18,515,840
Reconciliation of provisions - 2020
Opening Additions  Utilised during  Reversed Total
Balance the year  during the year
Lnadfill site - 12,212,617 - - 12,212,617
Provision for performance bonus 1,956,143 2,001,719 {311,692) (1,644,452} 2,001,718
1,956,143 14,214,336 (311,682)  ({1,644,452) 14,214,335
Non-current liabilifies 16,433,545 12,212,617
Current liabilities 2,082,395 2,001,718
18,515,940 14,214,335

Performance bonuses are paid one year in arrear as the assessment of eligible employees had not taken place at the

reporting date.

The balance of the performance bonus provisions relate to amounts not yet paid and eligible employees awaiting

assessment for 2019/2020 financiat year.
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19. Deferred income
Electricity Units purchases unused 258,576 1,636,981
Sale of land 2,429,130 2,429,130

2,687,706 4,086,121

Deferred Income relates to unused electricity credits .

Income was received for the sale of fand which the risks and rewards are stili with the municipality. This refers to:
-Erf 2281

-Erf 2293

-Erf 383

-Erf 4684

-Erf 8275
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20, Service charges
Sale of electricity 134,573,363 118,490,580
Refuse removal 17,083,266 20,080,696
Other services charges 1,654,765 1,007,853

153,291,394 140,479,129
21. Rental of facilities and equipment
Premises
Rental of facilities 1,893,386 1,876,336
22. Licences and permits
Testing ground and licensing 4,557 646 3,006,644
23. Other revenue
Other income 666,573 2,960,382
24. Investment revenue
interest revenue
Interest earned - external investments 3,247,824 8,520,941
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25. Property rates
Actual
Residential 46,311,562 38,306,590
Commercial 32,607,245 31,087,149
Pubtic service infrastructure 99,419 24,382
Government 56,713,176 62,382,965
industrial 12,975,589 12,038,799
Agriculture 12,224,873 12,599,835
Sectional titles 2,665,088 2,054,805
Less: Income forgone (41,104,600} (41,138,507}
122,492,352 115,356,018
Interest received - ouftstanding receivables 5,235,431 3,794,507
127,727,783 119,150,525
interest is levied on outstanding rates per annum at 18 %,
Valuations
Residential 3,053,304,900 3,047,087,000
Commercial 1,142, 897,500 1,147 655,500
Public benefit organisation 68,078,500 66,235,000
Municipal Properties 528,172,000 535,172,000
Government 1,488,297 500 1,500,141,500
Industrial 421,579,000 429,053,000
Agricultural 3,5687,352,038 3,780,948,039
Public service infrastructure 25,910,500 25,810,500
Place of worship 99,838,000 99,838,000
10,415,429,939  10,632,040,539
Category Of Owner House hold Income from |Age from and to Percentage Rebate
and to.
Indigent persons Nil Ameunt Equal to 2 state 100%
pensions
Child headed households MNil Amount Equal to 2 state 100%
(see criteria below) pensions
A pensioner or Retiree 60 - 85 55%
A pensioner or Retiree 66 -70 75%
A pensioner or Retiree 71 and above 100%
Disabled person or Medically |Amount Equatl to 2 pensions  |Amount Egqual to 4 state 55%
boarded +1 pensions
Disabled person or Medically [Amount Equal to 4 state Amount Equal to & state 40%
boarded pensions + R1 pensions
Disabled person or Medically |Amount Equal to 6 state Amount Equal fo 8 state 25%
boarded pensions + R1 pensions
Disabled person or Medically [Armount Equal to 8 state t Amount Equat io 12 stafe 10 %
boarded pPEnSIons +
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26. Government grants and subsidies

Operating grants

Equitable share 77,546,000 61,663,000
FMG 1,800,000 1,800,000
SETA 85,231 266,810
Expanded Public Works Programme 3,164,000 3,700,000
Arts and Culture 2,261,000 2,182,000
Covid 19 2,333 593,668

84,858,564  70,205478

Capital grants

Intergrated National Electrification Programme 360,000 15,843,406
Municipal Infrastructure Grant 17,229,000 21,318,000
Informal economic trader stalls 32,844 -
Building plans management systems 498,807 -
Housing account 23,428,099 9,017,031
Cultural village 4,705,439 10,158,853
Smart city Development strategy 30,188 -

46,284,377 56,337,290
131,142,941 126,542,768

Equitable Share

In terms of the Censtitution this grant is used to subsidise the provision of basic services fo indigent community members;

Unconditional grants received 76,931,000 61,663,000
Transfred {o Naticnat treasury 615,000 -
Unconditionat grants spent (77,546,000} (61,663,000)

Financial Management Grant - FMG

Current-year receipts 1,800,000 1,800,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue {1,800,000) (1,800,000)

This grant is used for implementation of MFMA, finance reforms and payment of intern's salaries.

Municipal infrastructure Grant - MIG

Current-year receipts 17,229,000 21,318,000
Conditions met - transferred o revenue (17,228,000) (21,318,000)

This grant is used for for road infrastructure as part of upgrading of infrastructure projects.

Small Town Rehabilitation

Balance unspent at beginning of year 95,508 95,508

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).

This grant is used for development in town like upgrading sidewalks, parkings and storm water drainage.

Horseshoe Township
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26, Government grants and subsidies (continued}
Balance unspent at beginning of year 1,674,992 1,528,248
Current-year receipts 16,225 46,744

1,691,217 1,674,992
This grant is used for upgrading informal settlement areas within the Municipaiity.
Massification
Batance unspent at beginning of year 41,352 41,352
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).
Arts and culture
Current-year receipts 2,261,000 2,182,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (2,261,000} (2,182,000)
This grant is used for the provision of staffing costs for Library services within the Municipality.
Sports and Recreation
Batance unspent at beginning of year 20,806 20,806
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).
This grant is used for upgrading and maintenance of Sport field,
Community Participation Grant
Balance unspent at beginning of year 85,673 85,673
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).
This grant is for IDP compilation and processes.
EPWP
Current-year receipts 3,164,000 3,700,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (3,164,000) {3,700,000)

EPWP Grant is used to expand job creation efforts in specific focus areas where labour intensive delivery methods can be

measured
Shayamoya eco complex

Balance unspent at beginning of year

Grant is used to boost local economic tourism and envirenment.
Light industrial park

Balance unspent at beginning of year

31,743

31,743

177,382

177,382
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26. Government grants and subsidies (continued)
Grant is used to build infrustructure to boost small to meduim businesses.
Furniture World
Balance unspent at beginning of year 226,413 226,413
The Grant is used to provided on the job training for the youth , capacitating them for job readiness .
SETA
Current-year receipis 85,231 266,810
Conditions met - transferred to revenue {85,231) (266,810)
The Grant is used to provided on the job training for the youth | capacitating them for job readiness
Integrated National Electrification Programme
Balance unspent at beginning of year 614,557 3,457,964
Current-year receipts 360,000 13,000,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (360,000) (15,843,407)
Grant witheld (614,557) -

- 614,557
Conditions slill io be met - remain liabilities {see note 17).
This grant is used for the upgrade of bulk electricity infrustructure
Cultural Village (Cogta)/ shayamoya Internal Roads (EPWP}
Balance unspent at beginning of year 5,596,688 55,541
Current-year receipts - 15,700,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (4,705,440} {10,158,853)

891,248 5,596,688 ( '

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).
This grant is used to boost the local tourism sector.
Emergency Equipment Grant
Balance unspent at beginning of year - 4,430,610
Conditions met - transferred to revenue - (4,430,610)

This grant is used to equip the municipalities Fire fighting capabities and response to disasters .
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26. Government grants and subsidies (continued)
Disaster COVID19 grant
Balance unspent at beginning of year 2,333 -
Current-year receipts - 596,000
Conditions met - transferred o revenue (2,333} (593,667)
- 2,333
Housing
Baiance unspent at beginning of year 2,027,209 128,918
Current-year receipts 23,119,198 13,071,119
Conditions met - current year spending (23,444,753} (11,172,828)
1,701,654 2,027,209
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17),
Provide explanations of conditions still to be met and other relevant information.
Smart city Development strategy
Current-year receipts 500,000 -
Conditions met - transferred fo revenue (30,188) -
469,812 -
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).
Building plans management systems
Balance unspent at beginning of year 500,000 -
Current-year receipts - 500,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (498,807) -
1,193 500,000
Conditions still fo be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).
Informal econcmic trade stalls
Current-year receipts 4,500,000 -
Conditions met - transferred to revenue {32,844) -
4,467,156 -
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities {see note 17).
Peoples Housing
Balance unspent at beginning of year 26,702 26,702
Current-year receipts 428 -
27,131 26,702
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26, Government grants and subsidies (continued)
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).
Provide explanations of conditions still to be met and other relevant information.
27. Fines, Penalties and Forfeits
Fines 2,335,547 2,772,700
ltlegal Connections Fines 37,328 30,051
Overdue Books Fines 300 300
2,373,175 2,803,051

28, Revenue
Service charges 153,281,394 140,479,129
Rental of facilities and equipment 1,893,386 1,876,336
Licences and permits 4,557,646 3,006,644
Other income 666,573 2,960,382
Interest eamed -external investment 3,947,824 8,520,941
Property rates 122,492,352 115,356,018
Interest earned - outstanding receivables 5,235,431 3,794,507
Government grants & subsidies 131,142,941 126,542,768
Recovery for Provision Debtors - 3,297,307
Fines and Penalties 2,373,175 2,803,051
Recovery of provision for perfomance bonus 1,808,382 1,644,452

427,409,104 410,371,535
The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services
are as follows:
Service charges 153,291,394 140,479,129
Rental of facilities and equipment 1,893,386 1,876,336
Licences and permits 4,557,646 3,006,644
Other income 666,573 2,960,382
Interest earned - exiernal investment 3,047,824 8,520,941

164,356,823 156,933,432
The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as
foliows:
Taxation revenue
Property rates 122,492,352 115,356,018
Interest earned - outstanding receivables 5,23543 3,794 507
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 131,142,941 126,542,768
Recovery for Pravision Debtors - 3,297,307
Fines and Penalties 2,373,175 2,803,051
Recovery of provision 1,808,382 1,644 452

263,052,281 253,438,103
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29. Employee related costs
Basic 21,898,009 83,602,114
Bonus 6,974,574 6,401,978
Medical aid - company contributions 6,174,036 5,462,402
UIF 683,660 656,259
SDL 1,018,999 428,539
L.eave pay provision 2,697,072 2,494,237
Pension fund 15,607,364 14,539,164
Travel, motor car, accommeodation, subsistence and other allowances 5,894,402 6,228,459
Qvertime payments 6,923,361 7,780,823
Housing benefits and allowances 1,505,652 1,419,938
Performance bonus Provision 2,082,385 2,001,718
Interest on post employment benefits 2,395,000 1,892,903
Current Service Cost 1,598,000 1,294,289
145,653,524 134,202,824
Remuneration of Municipal Manager
Annual Remuneration 752,408 917,425
Car Allowance 217,003 261,554
Performance Bonuses - 258,797
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 33,682 28,326
Other Allowance 33,1386 -
1,036,229 1,466,102
Remuneration of Chief Financial Officer
Annual Remuneration 689,822 616,441
Car Allowance 229,152 203,409
Performance Bonuses - 100,718
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds - 27,857
Other Allowance 18,000 -
936,974 948,225
Remuneration of Community Services Executive Manager
Annual Remuneration 747,134 593,155
Car Allowance 158,435 158,435
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 37,200 27,857
Other Allowance 18,000 168,977
960,769 948,224
Remuneration of Infrastructure Planning and Development Executive Manager
Annual Remuneration 697,768 704,083
Car Allowance 162,727 162,727
Performance Bonuses - 83777
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pensien Funds - 27,657
Other Allowance 18,000 -
878,495 948,224
Remuneration of Corporate Services Executive Manager
Annual Remuneration 823,930 766,206
Car Allowance 87,693 36,000
Performance Bonuses - 148,361
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2%. Employee related costs (continued)
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 19,318 27,657
Other Allowance 97,318 -

1,028,259 948,224
Remuneration of Economic Development & Spatial Planning Executive Manager
Annual Remuneration . 766,622 556,335
Car Allowance 127,485 131,054
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 71,286 122,400
Bonus/ 13th chegue - 57,000
Back pay - 27657
Cell Phone , rural and other allowance 56,856 55,891

1,022,259 950,437
30. Remuneration of councillors
Mayor 001,658 901,659
Deputy Mayor 729,488 729,488
Speaker 729,488 729,488
Counciliors 3,316,241 3,271,142
Counciliors' allowances 1,262,561 1,258,159
Councillars' pension and medical coniributions 661,523 691,143

7,600,859 7,582,073

In-kind benefits

The Mayor , the Deputy Mayor and Speaker each have the use of separate Council owned vehicles for official duties. The
Mayor has three full-time bodyguards .The speaker has two full-time bodyguards.

31. Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment 35,672,391 36,024,569
intangible assets 281,577 341,015

35,953,968 36,365,584

32. Debt impairment

Debt written off 4,168,622 16,345,663

33. Bulk purchases

Electricity - Eskom 109,282,374 98,433,057

Bulk purchases are the cost of commadities not generated by the municipality but distributed and sold to consumers in the
municipal area. Electricity is purchased from Eskom.
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34. Contracted services
Burial services 321,186 108,705
Financial Management Systems 5,242,346 4,837,354
Legal Advice and Litigation 16,930,835 6,376,335
Professional Services 2,661,654 3,609,176
Research and Advisory 776,031 494,500
Security services 10,298,684 8,301,523
Town planning services 326,137 253,509
Valuation services 432,728 655,749

36,989,601 24,636,851
35. General expenses
Advertising 2,034,614 2,193,418
Auditors remuneration 2,045,082 2,311,098
Bank charges 758,855 526,716
Bursaries 105,501 149,180
Collection costs 5,140,816 3,738,203
Conferences and seminars 1,999,179 1,366,632
Departmental electricity consumption 677,856 681,643
Fuel and oil 2,919,978 2,705,756
Gls 48,000 83,903
ICT services 2,765,844 2,692,731
Insurance 1,544,075 1,392,383
Licence fees 406,715 221,282
Materials maintenance 16,337,965 14,008,646
Other expenses 4,232,107 6,275,936
Postage and courier 304,729 338,438
Pound management fees 336,000 364,000
Printing and stationery 127,116 30,000
Rental of surveillance cameras 4,080 83,001
Rentals buildings and vehicles 264,859 338,131
Staff weliness 371,121 478,241
Stocks and materials 4,446 502 3,028,176
Subscription & memberships 2,344,287 2,253,241
Telephone and fax 1,996,182 1,071,703
Third party Commision 913,044 2,710,963
Training - 3,500
Travel and accommodation 785,552 2,102,762
Uniforms 2,521,956 2,859,882

54,432,085 54,010,565
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36. Cash generated from operations
Surplus 15,323,549 18,185,732
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 35,953,968 36,365,584
Fair value adjustments (2,250,751) (3,382,771}
Provision for consumer impairment 5,609,985 492 367
Debts wrilten off 4,159,622 16,345,553
Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities 5,157,000 3,373,470
Movements in provisions 4,301,605 12,258,192
Loss on actuarial 2,475,000 1,294,754
Indigent write-off (22,465,252) (18,177,435}
Current service costs (1,598,000) 1,294,289
Rates impairment recovery - (3,297,307)
Performance bonus addition non cash 2,082,395 2,001,720
Recognition deferred revenue (1,378,415) (1,636,991} {
Interest on post employment benefits 2,396,000 1,882,903 ..
Leave accrual adjustment 2,697,072 2,494,237
Provision recovery {1,808,382) (1,644,451}
Rates impairment recovery
Inventory 868,446 (230,571}
Trade and other receivables (5,170,709) (6,776,107)
Revenue from non-exchange (120,638) 6,101,804
Fines recavery {1,820,018) (4,641,379)
Prepayments 1,170,003 12,568
Payables from exchange transactions 7,170,488 15,698,290
Unspent conditional grants and receipts (818,513} 5,143,518
Consumer deposits (21,333} 79,859
VAT payable 1,663,008 3,696,777
Deferred income (258,5786) (529,831)
Statutory Receivables 529,049 4,586,238

53,846,693 91,009,012
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37. Commitments
Already contracted for but not provided for

. Infrastructure
. Community

Total capital commitments
Already contracted for but not provided for

Total commitments

Total commitments
Authorised capital expenditure

60,797,928 100,735,932
121,369,283 26,501,376

182,167,211 127,237,308

182,167,211 127,237,308

182,167,211 127,237,308

This committed expenditure relates to ptant and equipment and infrastructure projects and will be financed by available

bank facilities, accumulated surpluses, existing cash resources, funds internally generated, etc.

Funding

Expenditure will be financed from

Government Grants
Own revenue

160,028,382 101,846,087
22,138,829 25,391,220

182,167,211 127,237,307
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38. Contingencies
CONTINGENT LIABILITY
SINKSHOW CONSTRUCTION VS GREATER KOKSTAD MUNICIPALITY

Demand for the return of construction material and currently there is a rescission of Default Judgment granted and the
amount claimed is R 100 000.

GREATER KOKSTAD MUNICIPALITY VS SIBIYA

Sibiya is suing Municipality for damages under vicarious liability He claim R151 154.00 and R 7 470.00 for hiring the
replacement car..

GREATER KOKSTAD MUNICIPALITY VS HOOSEN KHARVA

The Hoosen Kharva is suing the municipality There was water pipes maintenance which was handled by Hurry Gwala
District Municipality at Kokstad Municipality. At Hoawthorn Street, Kokstad one of the Hoosen Kharva motor vehicle collided
with a hole and hip of soil that was dug in the process of repairing water pipe probiem and was not properly zoned out with
accident tapes and signs. Then it claimed R33 707 .68 plus interest of 15.5% for damages he suffered repairing his car.
GREATER KOKSTAD MUNICIPALITY VS ANDIMAHLE TRADING

Andimahie was appointed for the construction of Jim Payne sports complex, They are claiming for work done which we
disagree with the amount and the matter was reffed to the ajudication. The adjudicator delivered a determination in terms
of which the Municipality was ordered to pay Andimahle approximately R9.1 milfion. Municipality was dissatisfied with the
order and ought to procced to arbitration.

GREATER KOKSTAD MUNICIPALITY VS BAWINILE BAMBELO

Bawinile Veronica Bambelo, Themba Bambelo and Siphiwe Bambelo are suing Municipal, National Minister of Transport
and MEC Transport for a toatal amount of R669 022.00 for Motor Vehicle ACCIDENT.

GREATER KOKSTAD MUNICIPALITY VS KOKSTAD PRIVATE HOSPITAL

Kokstad private hospital has sued GKM for an amount of R1 349 401.29 with regards to the payment of property rates for
F274..

GREATER KOKSTAD MUNICIPALITY VS PRIMROSE T.COETZE

Mrs PT Coetze seeks reinstatement with full back pay salary from the date of dismissal to date of a possible order
reinstating her should she succeeds at arbitration.

GREATER KOKSTAD MUNICIPALITY VS DOLLY BIHL

Review Application by Ms Bihl.

CONTINGENT ASSETS

GREATER KOKSTAD MUNICIPALITY vs KIBO LODGE CC

GKM suing Kibo Lodge CC an amount proximately R104 698.00 for Municipality Rates

GREATER KOKSTAD MUNICIPALITY VS TOGOS

The atterneys have been given a status report on the developments in this case and they have briefed Advocate Gani. The
prospects of success in this matter were discussed and it was decided that the Municipality will enter into settiement
negotiations with the other side to ensure that the Municipality obtains some value. The estimated envisaged cost is R100

000,

GREATER KOKSTAD MUNICIPALITY VS FEZ BUILDING CONSTRUCTION.
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38. Contingencies (continued)

This is an action claiming R 4 342 991 for breach of a contruction contract Summons has beer issued and served , and the
matter is defended .

GREATER KOKSTAD MUNICIPALITY VS TURF INC
GKM sued Turf Inc & 2 Others for the sum of R1 652 632.65 for non-performance in terms of agreement.
GREATER KOKSTAD MUNICIPALITY VS CEBO MANTSHAYANA

GKM evict Mr C Mantshayana from ERF 60 Bhongweni, which is valued at R118 500.00.

39. Risk management
Financial risk management

The municipality's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest
rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The municipality’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise poiential adverse effects on the municipality’s financial performance. The municipality uses derivative financial
instruments to hedge certain risk exposures. Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department (entity
treasury) under policies approved by it. Municipality treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-
cperation with the municipality’s operating units. The provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as
written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative
financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

Liquidity risk

The municipality's risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The municipality manages
liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.

At June 30, 2021 Less than 1 Between 1 and Between 2 and QOver 5 years
year 2 years 5 years
Trade and other payables 60,507,790 - - -

Maximum credit risk exposure

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The
municipality only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-
party.

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an
ongoing basis. If customers are independertly rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating,
risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other
factors.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

As the municipality has interest-bearing assets such as investments , the municipality’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in market inferest rates.
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40, irregular expenditure
Opening balance as previously reported 73,074,805 223,722,330
irregular expenditure current year 49,713,355 35,738,872
Subtotal 122,788,260 259,461,202
Less: Amount written off - current (51,407,318} (186,386,297)
Irregular expenditure awaiting for condonment 71,380,942 73,074,905
Expenditure identified in the current year include those listed below:
BAC Improperly Constituted 23,876,590 25,537,920
Bid Not Advertised for the Prescribed Number Of - 3,935,370
days
Scope Variation not properly approved - 155,805
Local content 20,123,836 5,808,417
Unjustfied Deviation - 129,565
Employees in service of state - 171,800
Unjustified diviation 5,317,920 -
Non compliance with SCM regulations 395,010 -

49,713,356 35,738,877
41. Fruitiess and wasteful expenditure
Opening balance as previously reported 482,904 600,528
Transferred to debtor - (6,558}
Less: Amount written off - current (23,136) (111,067
Closing balance 459,768 482,904
42. Deviation from supply ¢chain management regulations
Original dealer 1,683,068 471,950
Emergency 254,728 3,266,401
Impossible to foliow the SCM process 11,132,915 2,535,882
Total Section 36 deviations for the financial year 13,070,711 6,274,233

Paragraph 12(1}{d}i} of Government gazette No. 27636 issued on 30 May 2005 states that a supply chain management
policy must provide for the procurement of goods and services by way of a competitive bidding process. Paragraph 36 of

the same gazette states that the accounting officer may dispense with the official procurement process in certain

circumstances, provided that he records the reasons for any deviations and reports them to the next meeting of the
accounting officer and includes a note to the annual financial statements. The majority of itermns mentioned had to be
addressed in short notice and the response times did not allow for the complete procurement process.

Approval of ratification of minor breach of procoment prosesses

During 2021 financial year the municipality approved the bid with reciification of minor breach of procument processes
where the bidder was given more than 7 days to ractify its Tax complience status the bid was for the elecrification of
willowdale and informal settlement the amount was R6 343 624.00 This approval was based on SCM regulation 36 1( b).
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43. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act
Contributions to organised local government

Current year subscription / fee

Amount paid - current year

Audit fees

Current year subscription / fee

Amount paid - current year

PAYE, UIF & SDL

Current year subscription / fee

Amount paid - current year

Pension and Medical Aid Deductions

Current year subscription / fee

Amount paid - current year

Councillors' arrear consumer accounts

No Councillors had arrear accounts outstanding at 30 June 2021.

Award to close family member

incident
Ndumis Transport
Ndzora Trading

44. Electricity losses

2021

1,520,180 1,441,670
{1,520,180) (1,441,670}

2,364,701 2,311,008
(2,364,701)  (2,311,0988)

21,607,065 20,339,843
(21,607,065) (20,339,643)

33,826,739 31,242,909
(33,826,739) (31,242,909)

- 75,800
- 96,000

- 171,800

The municipality has identified electricity losses in units 11 894 247 with an estimated value of R 21 582 044.48 that

Equates to 13%.

2020

The municipality has identified electricity losses in units 13 114 761 with an estimated value of R15 447 877 that Equates

15%.

45. In Kind assistance

The municipality received in kind assistance from Provincial Treasury

- Contract management
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45. In Kind assistance (continued)

- SCM compliance assessment

- SCM bid committee training

46. Events after the reporting date

There were no material non-adjusting events that came to the attention of management after the reporting date.
47. Key sources of estithation, uncertainty and judgements

The following areas involve a significant degree of estimation uncertainty:

- Impairment testing

- Present value of defined benefit obligation {
- Fair value estimation )
- Provision for doubtful debts

- Useful life assessment of PPE and intangible

- Allewance for doubtful debts

43. Budget Variance Explanation

1. Service Charges : the decrease is due to low electricity usage and purchases by businesses and other customers as a
result of COVID-19 lockdowns.

2. Rental of Facilities: decrease due to cancelled rental contracts as some tenants could no more afford rentals as a resuit
of being affected by COVID-12 pandemic.

3. Licences and permis; Additional working hours have been implemented to boost revenue collection and licences
department

4. Cther income: Decline in other revenue is due to demand decline related to COVID, services affected , approval of
building plans ,parking management, connections,

5. Investment revenue: The increase is due to council investements

6. Property Rates : decrease due to supplementary valuation rolls implemented during the year.

<’} i

7. Interest earned - outstandingInterest earned ; increase due {o increase in debtors.
8. Fines, Penalties and Forfeits: The increase in fings is due to increase in the law enforcement

9. Provision for performance bonus recovery: Perfornance bonuses are budgeted on full 14% of remuneration packages
however recoveries may ocour as assessments are based on perfomance.

10. Employee costs: The municipality implemented cost saving strutegies such as reduction on overtime and standby.

11. Remuneration of councillors: Annual expenditure is as per Upper Limit gazzette approved by the MEC. Which at the
time of approval of budget is not available.

12. Repairs and maintenance: The variance was due to expenditure control measures and COVID 19 pandemic

13, Debt Impairment: The municipality has implemented data cleansing ensuring that all accounts are vigorously
scruitinised before any write offs

14. Material & Bulk purchases: The decrease is due to NERSA approving the final tariffs after the municipal budget has
been approved.

15. Contracted Services: COVID resulted in the economic slow down negatively affecting consumers ability to pay thus
resulting in the increase in provision .
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48. Budget Variance Explanation (continued)
16. General expenses: The variance was due to expenditure control Measures and COVID 19 Pandemic
17. Landill site was not previously budget for as it was a new landfill site which started operating in December..
49. Financial instruments disclosure
Categories of financial instruments
2021
Financial assets
At cost Total
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 37,734,309 37,734,308
Receivables from exchange {ransactions 30,943,653 30,943,653
Cash and cash equivalents 60,845,932 60,945,932
129,623,894 129,623,894
Financial liabilities
At Cost Total
Consumer deposits 4,503,509 4,503,509
Unspent conditional grants 10,202,845 10,202,845
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 60,507,720 60,507,790
Cash and cash equivalenis Overdraft 10,371,289 10,371,289
85,685,433 85,585,433
2020
Financial assets
At cost Total
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 35,264,604 35,264,604
Receivables from exchange transactions 25,772,844 25,772,944
Cash and cash equivalents 117,336,921 117,336,921
178,374,469 178,374,469
Financial liahilities
At cost Total
Consumer deposits 4,524,843 4,524,843
Unspent conditional grants 10,521,358 10,521,358
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 53,337,302 53,337,302
68,383,503 68,383,503
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50. Related parties
Accounting Officer Refer to accounting officer's report note

Key Management [nformation

Class Description
Municipal Manager Accounting Officer
Chief Financial Officer Senior Management
Community Services Executive Manager Senior Management
Infrastructure Planning and Development Senior Management
Corporate Services Executive Manager Senior Management
EDPS Executive Manager Senior Management

Remuneration of Management

Councillors

Refer to general information page for full list of councillors.

Executive Management

Refer to note "Employee Related Costs"

Payment of remuneration of senior managers and councillors - details of payments are set out in notes 30&31.

51. Prior period errors

-

The restatement of Grants and subsidies 2019/2020 this was due to revenue recognition which was overstated by building

plans system grant which was not utilised in the previous financial year.

Provision is required to be measured as per GRAP19 or paragraph 36 1AS 37. The muncipality previously rehabilitated the
Shayamoya Landfill site. However due to capacity contraits had to apply to utilize certain cells. This has necessitated a

Provision for Rehabilitation costs for these cells.
The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as follows:

Statement of financial position
Unspent conditional grants and receipis -
provision -

Statement of financial performance
Grants and subsidies -
Provision of impairment of debtors expense -

(600,000)
(12,212,617)

500,000
12,212,617
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52. Segment information

General information

Identification of segments

The segments were organised around the type of service delivered and the target market.

Management uses these same segments for determining strategic objectives, Segments were aggregated for reporting
purposes.

Information reported about these segments is used by management as a basis for evaluating the segments’ performances
and for making decisions about the allocation of resources. The disclosure of information about these segments is also
considered appropriate for external reporting purposes.

Aggregated segments

The Municipality operates in Kwazulu Natal. Segments were aggregated on the basis of

services delivered as management considered that the economic characteristics of the segmentse

sufficiently similar to warrant aggregation.

Types of goods and/or services by segment

These reportable segments as well as the goods and/or services for each segment are set out below:

Reportable segment Goods and/or services

Cemeteries Provision of cemeteries
Electricity Provision of electricity
Housing Providing access to adequate housing

Roads and storm water
Refuse removal

Provision of roads and storm water
Refuse removal

Segment surplus or deficit, assets and liabilities

2021 External External Total Non-current
Revenues from Revenues from Expenditure assets
non-exchange exchange
transactions transactions

Kokstad R263 052 281 R164 205 972 R372 374 461 R826 120 610

Employee costs (145,553,524}

Remuneration of councillors {7,600,959)

Repairs and maintenance (8,058,280}

Depreciation and amortization {(35,953,968)

Provision expense Landfillsite {3,958,789)

Debt written off (4,159,622)

Bulk purchases (109,282,374)

Provision of impairment of debtors expense (5,872,124

Contracted services {36,989,601}
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52, Segment information (continued)
(General expenses {54,425,001)
Total Surplus R15 330 633

Pharagraph 21 of GRAP 18 requires the Municipilty to report a measure of assets and liability for each reportable segment
if such an amount is regulary provided to management.

The information of assets and liabilities for each reportable segment is currently not regularly provided to management
hence a measure of assets and liabilities for each reportable segment is not be reported.

Measurement of segment surplus or deficit, assets and liabilities

Basis of accounting for transactions between reportable segments
The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies, ( ’
except that pension expense for each segment is recognised and measured on the basis of cash payments to the pension
plan.

The nature and effect of any asymmetrical allocations to reportable segments

An Municipality allocated depreciation expense to a segment without allocating the related depreciable assets to thatl
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Polizeforees  RoadsRoads

Meyorand  financeand Efestricity Commenity  Treffic and Steeet {333

Counci Adminitration  Services Waste LED Senvices Farking Infrastructure PRI Total
Empeatess 0706038 BB O MBI UTENA  WEE00T 1695509370 TN 19555352040
Rempggendtomstlns 760095953
Repars avd mantenance TR 2SI 164851859 118828438
Depsecton and emertzzin 10328237385 109,282373.85
Prpesgnerpinse Lindile 395875300 3058 7800
Jetwtien o 415960203 415862200
B punchases 109,280374.60 169,182.374.50
Padvessan of popsemen of Getiats erpense 587010 580210800
Gantacted sereves < LEIEE 0TI IBNONT AT LB UMLN0S0  JEMEs  1R0EISHL0D
Gererel petss NIOILIL 3B 285556347 EB3GALSE 20300 MINANS  ATHAE  S4L5H0LLD
Tetal 481,465, 250,65

70




Greater Kokstad Local Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2021

2020

52. Segment information (continued)
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e,

In terms of Section 129 of the MFMA no.56 of 2003, it is required that,

“the Council of a municipality must consider the annual report of the municipality and of any
municipal entity under the municipality’s sole or shared control, and by no later than two
months from the date on which the annual report was tabled in the council in terms of saction
127, adopt an oversight report containing the council’s comments on the annual report, which
must include a statement whether the council—

(z) has approved the annual report with or without reservations;
{b) has rejected the annual report; or

(c) has referred the annual report back for revision of those components that can be

revised.,

The Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) assigns specific oversight responsibilities to
Council with regard to the Annual Report and the preparation of an Oversight Report. Given
the processes required by Council to effectively undertake its oversight role, the establishment
of Municipal Public Accounts Committee (MPAC) of Council provides the appropriate
mechanism through which Councit fulfils its oversight responsibilities. MPAC's primary role in
this regard is to consider the Annual Report, receive inputs from the various stakeholders and

prepare an Oversight Report for consideration by Council.

In light of the above, the audited draft Annual Report for 2020/2021 financial year was tabled
to Council in 27 January 2022 for consideration. Council subsequently referred the draft
Annual Report to the Municipal Public Accounts Cammittee for scrutiny and public consultation
in order to compile its Oversight Report.

The draft Annual Report was submitied to the Auditor-General, the KZN Provincial Treasury,

National Treasury and ihe Department of Co-operative Governance and Traditional Affairs
after tabling to Council.

appointed in accordance with section 79 of the Structures Act. The role of MPAC is mainly to




provide oversight over the functioning of the municipality in various aspects. including but not
limited to the functions of Council, service delivery, financial performance and management

and compliance . As a Section 79 committee, the following principles will apply:

= The municipal council must determine the functicns of the commitiee and agree on the
terms of reference for the committee:

e The municipal council must delegate functions to the MPAC in accordance with the
terms of reference of the committee;

= The municipal council appoints the members of the MPAC from amongst the
councillors;

e Section 160{8) of the Constitution applies to the committee and therefore its
composition must be such that it allows parties and inleresis reflected within the
Council to be fairly represented in the MPAC;

= The municipal council appoints the chairperson of the MPAC;

= The municipal council may dissolve the MPAC at any time;

s Meetings of the MPAC should be provided for and included in the annual calendar of
the council; and

The MPAC reports directly io the municipal council and the chairperson of the MPAC
liaise directly with the Speaker on the inclusion of reports of the MPAC in the council
aganda.

of council and to ensure good governance in the municipality. This will include oversight over

municipal entities. In order for the MPAC to fulfil this oversight role, it needs to be provided

with the necessary information and documentation tc interrogate the actions of the executive.
MPAC must inferrogate the following financial aspects addressed in the Municipal Finance

Management Act;

s Unforeseen and unavoidable expenditure

= Unauthorized, irregular or fruitless and wasteful expenditure

= The quarterly report of the mayor on the implemeantation of the budget and the state of
afiairs of the municipality / SDBIP (Section 52(d))

= Monthly budget statements (Section 71)

s Mid-year budget and performance assessment

= Disclosures concerning counciilors, directors and officials

= Submission and auditing of annual financial statements

= Submission of the annual report

e




" Issues raised by the Auditor-General in audit reporis

The MPAC reports directly to the municipal council and the chairperson of the MPAG must
liaise directly with the speaker on the inclusion of reports of the MPAC in the council agenda.
As the MPAC is a committee of the council, its reports are submitted directly to the council
without being submitted to the Exco Committee.

The MPAC of Greater Kokstad Municipality in performing its oversight role for the reporting
period under review has through its scheduled mestings considered the following areas of the
municipality’s functioning:
®= The municipality’s reporting on financial matters.
= The functionality of Council and its structures.
= The response of management to findings and recommendations of the Auditor
General's report.
= The achievement of municipal goals through performance management, (service
delivery targets)

= Investigations into Unauthorized, Irregular, Fruitiess and Wasteful expenditure.

Section 127 (5) (a) {i); (ii) and (b) of the MFMA no. 56 of 2003 states that -

(5) Immediately after an annual report is tabled in the councit in terms of subsection (2), the

accounting officer of the municipality must—
(a) in accordance with section 21A of the Municipal Systems Act—
(i) make public the annual report; and

(it} invite the tocal community to submit representations in connection with the annual

report; and

(b) Submit the annual report to the Auditor-General, the relevant provincial treasury and the

provincial department responsible for local government in the province,

MPAC confirmed compliance by the Accounting Officer with the Sections referred to above
and made public the annual report on the 4™ February 2022 and issued a public notice on the
Municipal website and on the East Griqualand Post, inviting the public and stakeholders to

make submission on the annual report and submitted the annual report to the AGSA, the KZN




Provincial Treasury and KZN Department of Co-operative Governance & Traditional Affairs on
the 31 January 2022.

WMPAC as part of its process of consultation on the Annual Report, performed the following:

1. Conducted Infrastructure projects sites visits on the 07" and 08% February 2022

2. Held a public hearing as follows:

DATE . 18 February 2022
TIME : 10h00
VENUE : Municipal Town Hall

The following stakeholders were in atiendance:

GKM Business Forum

= Kokstad Rates Payers Association

= Community Policing Forum

2 Ward Commiitees

= Parliamentary Conslituency Office

e Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs
= Community Developmeni workers

= Department of Social Development

Below are comments recaived from stakeholders in relation to the draft Annual Report.

INSTITUTION COMMENTS/COMPLAINTS

Kokstad Rates  Payers | Attached as annexure 1 of the Oversight Report
Association

Other  Stakeholders  and 1. Clarity was sought on what will be the Councils
Members of the public legacy when they leave the term.
2. Response was 1io achieve 2047 economic

possibilities.

building of the Rolyat's complex

4. Response was that it was a lie that Rolyat's complex

3. Page 15 of the Annual report hearing relating to the !

was encouraged to be built because of the 50% ;

AT




INSTITUTION COMMENTS/COMPLAINTS

rebates, the processes and plans were already in
place.
5. Mr Naega requested the council to investigate the

following issues in their term.

Atd

Managing of illegal dumping.
Roads upgrading.

v v

Bursting of water pipes.
» Storm water -never upgrade roads without
attending storm waters
# Streellights are damaged -put solar
streetlights
6. Mr W Radebe sought clarity on which were the 3
companies that were investing 15 million
7. Response was that the investment commiitee was

1o attract investments and grow revenue base

4.1 MPAC SITE VISITS

On the 07" and 08" of February 2022, the MPAC conducted a two-day site visit as part of
their duties and responsibilities to enable them to compile a comprehensive oversight report
on 2020/2021 annual report. MPAC visited the following projects that were constructed during
the year under review and were reported in the Annual Report. Below are findings commenis
and recommendations made by MPAC:

PROJECT NAME MPAC COMMENTS/INPUTS
Installation of Streetlights (Murray | MPAC noted the progress on the projects report in the
& St Johns) Annual Report.




PROJECT NAME MPAC COMMENTS/INPUTS
MV Cable upgrade phase 5

Electrification of Murray Park MPAC has however noted with concerns a report on

Singisi substation (control rooms) the Construction of the Gym Payn Sports Complex,

Elocirfication of Willowdale over a number of issues. MPAC has since requested

detailed reporis on the project from the Accounting
Officer.

Bhongweni & Shayamoya

Swilchgear

Mini Substation on Murray Strest

CIVIL & PMU
CBD Roads {(Wyide & Murray
Strest)

Stormwater  upgrade  Murray
Streets
Upgrade of Ext 7 Phase 4

Jim Payne Sports Complex

Thuthukani community Hall

Horseshoe  Early  Childhood

Development

Qhingalendlaia Hall
CRU Housing Project

51 MEMBERSHIP

The Municipal Public Accounts Committee is a committee of Council established under section
79 of the Municipal Structures Act, 1998. Section 79 allows for the co-option of advisory

members to a Commiittee of Council, who are not members of the Council.

Due to the separation of roles and responsibilities, between Council and the Executive (Mayor
and Executive Committee) it is not appropriate that members of the Executive Commitiee be
members of the MPAC.

The following members of Council served as members of the Municipal Public Accounts
Committee for GKM during the 2020/2021 financial vear:




= ClIr. P. Nocanda (ANC) — Chairperson
= Clir. N. Nguza (ANC)

= Clir. E. Bhengu (ANC)

= Clir. B.L. Marnce (DA)
The above-mentioned members served for the duration of the fuli duration of the 2020/2021
financial year and accordingly performed its duties.

Due fo the Local Government Municipal Elections, the Annual Report process for 2020/2021
has been undertaken by the in-coming MPAC which came into effect in November 2021,

The following Members constitute the in-coming MPAC Members:

e CHr M Hlakanyana (ANC) — Chairperson
= Clir N Mngonyama (ANC)

= Clir SW Mbabala (EFF)

= Clir S Njisane (ANC)

= Clr KN Norsworthy (DA)

5.2 AUTHORITY & POWER

5.2.1 In terms of section 79 of the Municipal Structure Act No117 of 1998, the MPAC will
assist Council to effectively and efficiently exercise its functions and powers;

5,2.2 MPAC functions as a sub-committee of Coungcil, and therefore adhered io the Council's
Rules of Order;

5.2.3 MPAC makes recommendations to management via Council, resulting from activities
carried out by the Committee in terms of its delegated authority;

5.2.4 MPAC is delegated the responsibility to conduct meetings and to hold public hearings
to receive and hear public submissions on the Annual Report, on behalf of Councit.

5.3 DUTIES PERFORMED BY MPAC

The MPAC of Greater Kokstad Municipality in performing its oversight role for the reporting
period under review has through its scheduled meetings considered the following areas of the

municipality’s functioning:
= The municipality’s reporting on financial matters.
e The functionality of Council and its structures.

= The response of management to findings and recommendations of the Auditor

General's repori.



= The achievemnent of municipal goals through performance management.

5.4 ON — GOING OVERSIGHT ACTIVITY

The MPAC of GKM had during the 2020/2021 financial year developed its annual workplan

through which its performed its oversight duties. MPAC conducted projects sites visits,

scheduled meetings in order fo consider reports prepared by management and performed

observations over Council and its structures.

S

The MPAC of GKM in its process of preparing the oversight report on the annual reportx

consider the annual report in line with requiremenis of various sections of the municipal
legislative framework as stated below. The MPAC has considered the annual report in

ensuring the municipality's level of compliance to legisiation requirements.

1. Financial Matiers

— Annual Financial
Statements - Section
121 (3) MFMA

121 (3)(a)

Tthe annual financial
statements (AFS) for
the municipality and, if
applicable,
consolidated
statements (with all
entities) as submitted
to the Auditor-

General.

Financial reporting maiters to he Considered

The AFS are fo be in the form as
required by the applicable Generally
Recognized Accounting Practice
standards, MFMA and DoRA.
Confirmed by Auditor General report
that the Annual Financial Statements
ware fairly presented as at 30 June
2021.

The municipality has complied with

the requirements of this Sectlion.

The Audited Annua! Financial
Statements have been included in
the annual report. The AFS will be
adopted by Council together with
the Annual Report.

See Page 276 of the Annual

Report




121 (3)a)

121 (4)

121 (4)(b)

121 (3) (e) An
assessment by the

accounting officer on
any arrears on

municipal taxes and

service charges,
including  municipal
entities.

121 (3)(g)

Particulars  of any
corrective action

taken or to be taken in

response o issues
raised in the audit
reports.

The above applies.aliso to the AFS éf

municipat entities.

Has an adequate assessment been

included?

Is there sufficient explanation of the

causes of the arrears and of actions

to be taken to remedy the situation?

Is any other action required to be

taken?

The conclusions of the annual audit

are:

o

an unqualified audit opinion with

or without management issues,

which means that the financial

statements are acceptable;

The objective of the municipality .

should be to achieve an

unqualified audit opinion.

Taking into account the audit

report, audit opinion and the

views of the audit commitiee,
council considered:

- To what extent does the
report indicate serious or
minor financial issues?

+  To what extent are the same

from

issues repeated

previous audits?

The section

is not re[e\)ant to
Greater Kokstad Municipality for

the period under review.

The réquéremeﬂts of the section

has been complied with.

A report by the Accounting Officer
on assessment of arrears on
municipal taxes has been included
in Charter 5 of the report.

See Page 248 of the Annual
Report

The requirements of this section of
the MFMA have been complied
with.

action has been

An  audit

developed by the Accounting
Officer to address issues raised in
the Auditor General's report. This
report is included under Chapter 6
of the annual report.

The Audit Action Plan was tabled
to MPAC in February 2022.

See Page 253 of the Annual

Report.




action

. s the

proposed
considered to be adequate fo
effectively address the issues
raised in the audit report?

- kHas aschedule of action to be
taken been included in the
annual report, with

appropriate due dates?

125 (3)(1)

An assessment by the
municipality’'s
accounting officer of
the municipality's
performance against
measurable
performance
objectives for revenue
collection from each
revende source and
far each vote in the
approved budget.

Note that actions taken on audit
issues are to be reported fo the
provincial legislature, the MEC for
Cooperative Government &
Traditional Affairs to report on any
omissions by municipaliies in
addressing issues. Council should
confirm that the audit report has been

forwarded o the MEC.

The budget of the municipality muét
contain measurable performance
objectives for revenue from each
source and for each vote in the
budget, taking into account the IDP
(MFMA s17(3}b)). The accounting
officer must include these objectives
in the annual report and report on
performance accordingly.

Has the performance met ths
expectations of council and the
community?

Have the objectives been met?

This secticn has been complied
with.

The AG action plan report was
submitted togetner with the Draft
Annual Report to MEC for COGTA.

This Section has béé'ri'c'o'mbliéd"

with.

An assessment was done by the
Accounting Officer and the report
of which has been included in the

annual report as appendix D.




121 (3)(iXk)
information as .
determined by the

municipality, the entity
or its parent

municipality.

1. Financial Maters
— Annual Financial
Statements - Section
121 (3) MFMA
continued....

121 (3)()

(4)(9)

Recommendations of

and 121

the audit committee in
relation to the AFS
and audit reports of
the municipality and

its entities.

Any |

been

have

What

provided for any non-achievemeni?

explanations

What was the impact on the service
delivery and expenditure objectives in
the budget?

Review any other infofmation that

has been included regarding the
AFS.

No additional infc.arma.tion. h.as.beén |
identified to be included in the
Annual Report by the Municipality

for the 2020/2021 FY.

Financial reporting matters to be considered

Have the recommendations of the
audit commitiee in regard to the AFS
been adequately addressed by the
municipality and/or the entity?

What actions need to be taken in

terms of these recommendations?

Conclusions on these
recommendations and the actions
required should be incorporated in

the aversight report.

The reguirements of the section of
the MFMA has been compfied with.

A report from the audit commitiee
the
functionality of the Internal Audit

on the assessment of

Function has been included in the

report.

The report of the audit committee

aiso included matters in relation to




2.. .;Diéclésureé i
Alloeations received
and made - Section
123-125 MFMA

123 (1)(a)
Allocations  received

by and made o the

.t.he AFS. The report has been

Considerations

The report should disclose:
« Details of allocations received

from another organ of state in the

attached as Appendix A.
See Page 267 of the Annual
Report.

All granis allocations have been
included in the report under

Chanter 5 of the Annual repert,

municipality. national or provincial sphere.
Details of allocations received Full disclosures of the grants have
from a municipal, entily or has been made in line with
another municipality. legisiative requirements.
+ Details of allocations made to any
other organ of state, another N/A
municipalily, or a municipal entity.
s Any other allocation made to the
municipality under Section 214(1) N/A
(c) of the Constitution.
Have these allocations been received
and made? Does the audit report
confirm the correctness of the
allocations received in terms of
DORA and provincial budgets? Does
the audit report or the audit N/A
committee recommend any action?
1256 {1) Municipalites and entities are The requirements of the section

reminded of the requirement to

has been complied with.
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Information in relation
to outstanding debtors
and creditors of the
municipality and

entities.

inciude, in their annual financial
statements, amounts owed to them
and persistently delayed beyond 30
days, by national or provincial
departments and pubiic entities.
it is also a requirement to report on
whether the municipality or entity has
met its statutory commitments,
including the payment of taxes, audit
fees, and coniributions for pension
and medical aid funds.
Council should be satisfied that -
¥ the information has been properly
disclosed;
conditions of allocations have
been met; and
v That any explanations provided

are acceptable.

Al outstanding debtors  and
creditors of the municipality were
disclosed on the AFS and report on

the annual report under Chapter 5.

See Page 278 of the Annual
Report.

2, Disclosures -
Allocations received
and made - Section
123-125 MFMA
continued....

123 (1)c)

Information in relation
to the use of

allocations received.

Considerations

Section 123 of the MFMA and MFMA
guidance circular 11, require that the
municipality provide information per
gliocation received per vote and
include:
The current year and details of
spending on all  previous

conditional grants, for the

Information in relation to all
received grant allocations and use
thereof has been disclosed in the
audited AFS, under volume 2 of

the annual report.
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previous two financial years.
Information is to be provided per
vote. {For example, municipalities

musi fransfers

report on all
received from provincial housing
departments for housing subsidy
grants for three financial vears,
and indicate how such funds were
spent, and for what projects.
Information stating whether the
municipality has complied with
the conditions of the grants,
allocations in terms of section
214(1)(c) of the Constitution and
allocations received from other
than another organ of state.
Where there is non-compliance,
details of the reasons for non-
compliance are to be provided.
Infarmation on whether
allocations under the DORA were
delayed or withheld and the

reasons advanced for this.

This information is required on all

allocations

exciuding the

municipality’s portion of the equitable

share and

where  prescribed

otherwise by the nature of the

aliocation.

Al related disclosure information

as per MFMA requirements were

made.

Comments of the Audit Committee
were effected prior to submission
for auditing by the AGSA.

AGSA comments were
considered and effecied prior fo
finalization of the audit.

All other comments and finding
have been incorporated in the AG
action plan.




3. Disclosures in
notes to AFS

Information relaling to
benefits paid by
municipality and entity
io councillors,

directors and officials.

The Auditor-General will ensure that

the audit process includes a proper
assessment (and reconciliation) on
all national grants received by a
municipality. Council should consider
this aspect of the audit report and
comments by the audit committee on
the use of allocations received.
Council should be satisfied that —
the information has been properly
disclosed;
v conditions of allocations have
been met; and
< that any explanations provided

are accepiable.

The comments of the Audiior-
General and the views of the audit
committee should be used 1o

determine the accuracy and

appropriateness of this information.

Considerations relating to section 124

Information on the following items is
to be included in the notes to the
annual report and AFS:

salaries, allowances and benefits
office

of  political bearers,

councillors and boards of
directors, whether financial or in

kind;

senior

ALL  councilors and
management remuneration have
been fully discloged in the AFS,

under volume 2.
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any arrears owed by individual
councillors 10 the municipality or
entity for rates and services,
which at any time were
outstanding for more than 90
days, including the names of
counciliors;

salartes allowances and benefits
of the municipal manager, CEQ of
a municipal entity, CFO and avery
senior manager;

contributions for pensions and
medical aid;

travel, motor car,
accommeodation, subsistence and
other allowances;

housing benefits and allowances;
overtime payments;

loans and advances, and;

any other type of benefit or

allowance related to staff.

Council should be satisfied that —

v the information has been
properly disclosed;

« conditions of allocations have
been met; and
that any explanations

provided are acceptable.

The commenis of the Auditor
General and the views of the audit

commitiee should be used to




4, Muniéipal

Performance

The

performance

annual
reports
of the municipality and

entities.

determine

the  accuracy and

appropriateness of this information.
Considerations

Section 46, MSA

municipalities to

requires
submit a
performance report reflecting the
performance of the municipality and
each service provider, a comparison
of the performance with targets set
for the previous year and measures
taken to improve performance. The
report must forrn part of the annual
report.  Questions that may be
considered are —
< Has the performance report been

included in the annual report?
+ Have all the performance targets
the budgets, SDBIP,

service agreements eic, been

set in

included in the report?

Does the performance evaluafion
in the annual report compare
actual performance with targets
expressed in the budgsts and
SDBIP approved for the financial
year?

In terms of key functions or services,
how has each performed? E.g. have

backlogs for water, sanitation, and

The Annual Performance Report
has been included under chapter 3
of the annual report.

The

submitted to Council for approval

report was audited and

prior to inclusion in the Annual
Report.
See Page 139 of the Annual
Report.




glectricity been reduced? What are

the refuse collection volumes, library

usage statistics etc?

Y

-

To what extent has performance
achieved targets set by council?

Is the council satisfied with the
performance levels achieved?

Is the community satisfied with
performance? Has a customer
satisfaction survey been
undertaken and, if so, how do the
resuits align with the annual
report contents? What were the
outcomes of public consultation
and public hearings?

What actions have been taken
and planned o  improve
performance?

s the council satisfied with
actions to improve performance?
Did the targets set in the budgets,
SDBIP agree with the targets set
in the performance contracts of
the municipal manager and each
senior manager?

Does the report evaluate the
efficiency of mechanisms applied
fo deliver the performance
ouicomes?

Taking into account the audit
report and opinion and fhe views

of the audit committee, is




Audit

reports  on
performance.
Performance of

municipal eniities and

i 2

performance considered to be
efficient and effective?

To what extent have actions
planned for the previous year
been carried over to the financial
year reported upon?

+ Have any actions planned in the
reported year been carried over
to the current or future years? If
s0 are any explanations been

the

provided by municipal

manager and are these

satisfactory?

Council should comment and draw

conclusions on information and

explanations provided.

Section 45, MSA requires that the

Auditor-General must audit the

results of performance
measurements, as part of the internal
auditing processes and annually.
Have ihe recommendations of
internal audit been acted on during
ihe financial year? Have
recommendations by internal audit
and/or the auditor-general been
included in action plans to improve

performance in the following year?

The annual report of the municipality

should provide an assessment of the

'Fhé section .has”bee'ré. Eofﬁpiiéd
with.

Findings and recommendations by
the Auditor General have been
included in the action pian
developed by

Officer.

the Accounting

The

complied with.

requirement has been




service

municipal
providers.
5 General

information

Relevant information

on municipal entities,

e s e i S

performance of the municipal entities

and all contracted service providers.
This ig in addition to the separate

annual reporis of the entities.

The

effectiveness of these services and

report should evaluate the

whether alternative

mechanisms
should be considered.

with the
eveluation and conciusions of the

Is the council satisfied
municipality?

What other actions are considered
to be taken by the

accounting officer?

necessary

The following general iﬁfo.r“rﬁéti.o.n

annual report.

The municipality should disb[oée éll
information relating to the municipal
entities under the sole or effective
control of the municipality.
Information to be disclosed includes
names and types of enfities,
members of the board, addresses,
and contact details for entities, the
purpose of the entity, the functions,
and services provided the type and
term of service level agreements with

the entities.

Assessment of service provider

was performed on a quarterly
basis. A report has been included
under chapter 2 of the Annual

Report.

See Page 55 of the Annual
Report.

is.required to be disclosed in the -

This section is not applicable to

GKM for the period under review.

£
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funding support.

Agreements,
contracts and projects
under Private-Public-

Partnerships.

Service delivery
performance on key

services provided.

The use of any donor

What

municipality received?

donor funding has the

Have the purposes and the
mansagement agreemenis for the
funding been properly agreed
upen?

Have the funds been used in
accordance with agreements?

< Have the objectives been
achieved?

Has the use of funds been
effective in improving services to
the community?

+  What actions need to be taken to

improve utilisation of the funds?

Info.rmat.io.n similar to the details of
municipal entities should be provided,
Council should ensure that all details

have been supplied.

This may be a high-lévél surﬁmary, in |

addition to detailed information on
performance, which sets out overall
performance under the strategic
objectives of the municipality. Overall
results on the strategic functions and
services should be summarized. This

should cover all services whether

This section is not applicable fo

GKM for the period under review.

This section is not applicable to

GKM for the period under review.

Thi.s section has been cohplied
with.

This information has been covered
under executive summary section
of the annual report and in

statistical tables.
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provided by the municipality, enities,

information on long-

term contracts.

Information
technology and
systems  purchases

and the effectiveness
of these systems in
the delivery of
services and  for
ensuring compliance
with

obligations.

statutory

Three vyear capital

plan for addressing

or external mechanisms.

Council may draw conclusions on the
overall performance of  the
municipality.

This information may be found in an
executive summary section of the
annual report and or in statistical

tables.

Details of all long-term contracts
including levels of liability to the
municipality should be included.
Council should ensure all information

is correctly supplied.

Details of significant |IT activities

should be outlined indicating the
effectiveness of the IT projects and
the quality of IT services.

should

effectively the IT services support

Council how

consider
and facilitate performance of the
municipality and whether value for
money has been obtained.

Details of any future IT proposals

should be summarised. Council
should comment and draw
conciusions on the information

provided.

A summary of the long-term capital

plans and how these address the

This

This

complied with.

requirement has been

Report on long term contracts
included under chapter 2.

requirement has been
complied with.
A report on all significant IT

activities is included under chapter
3.

See Page 133 of the Annual
Report.

This  requirement has been

complied with.

™
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infrastructure

backlogs in terms of
the Municipal
Grant
(MIG) framework.

Infrastruciure

backlogs of services in the

municipality should be provided.

This should include details of types
and scale of backlogs, projected cost
implications, sirategies to address
the backlogs and plans proposed
and/or approved. The summary here
should cross reference {o the
performance reports in the annual
report and also will be highlighted in

the coming budgets.

Councit should consider whether the
plans appropriately address the
backlogs and are consistent with the
strategic policy directions of council

and needs of the community.

6. Other considerations recommended

Timing of reports.

Oversight committee

or other mechanism.

Was the repori tabled in the time
prescribed?
Has a schedule for consideration of

the report heen adopted?

What mechanisms have been put in
place to prepare the oversight report?
Has a schedule for its completion and

tabling been adoptad?

i a2 i

3 year capital plan addressing
backlogs has been included under

chapter &.

The report was fabled in

accordance to prescribed
timelines. The process plan has

been included under chapier 1.
MPAC was established by Counci
as a council oversight committee.
MPAC scheduled public hearing
MPAC held public

hearings to receive and consider

mestings.

public comments on the AR,

MPAC also ensured publication of




Payment of
performance bonuses

to municipat officials.

Refer to Section 57 MSA as

amended. Bonuses based on
performance may be awarded io a
municipal manager or a manager
directly accountable to the municipal
manager after the end of the financial
year and only after an evaluation of
performance and approval of such
evaluation by the municipal council.
Preferably such evaluation should be
considered along with the annual
report. The basie upon which
periormance is evaluated for
payment of bonuses should be
reconciled  with  the
performance reported in the annual
report.
Have bonuses been paid based on
achievements of agreed outputs and
after consideration of the annual
report by council?

If so has a proper evaluation of

performance been undertaken?

Was the evaluation approved by

council?

Does the performance evaluation

align and reconcile with the

municipal

the AR on media and municipal

website.

Comments of which have been

documented under  QOversight
Report.
Individual performance

assessments for senior managers
are done per quarter, mid-term and
at year end.

No performance bonuses were
noted to have been paid during the
2020/2021 financial year.

e




reported in the

performance

annual report? If not, what
reasons have been given for non-
reporting of the  basis of

evaluation in the annual report?
< Are the payments justified in

terms of performance reported in

Public Consultative
meetings:

Meetings conducted
by ward counciiors
and feedback
documented

.Reé,.idént.s./ Ratepayers

Association consulted
and feedback
documented

Farmers Assaociation
consulted and
feedback documented

Other organisations
identified, consulied
and feedback
documented

Annual report
distribution points

the annual report?
« Reporis  on  all
consultation

ward councilors.

Needs to be nétéd and should bhe |

included in the annual report

Needs to be noted and should be
included in the annual report

Needs to be noted and should be
included in the annual report

Distribution points were Municipal
offices and Library.

public
meetings by

Report on public consultalive
meetings by ward councilors have

been included under chapter 2.

Thé .st.é.k.eholci.er Was consulféd -
18 February 2022.

Feedback has been documented.

The stakeholder was consulied —
18 February 2022. There were no
submissions received from the

Farmers Association.

All stakeholders were consulted by
18 February 2022, Comments
from stakeholders are documented
in the oversight report, under

section 4 above.

The annual report was displayed in

following places:




documented and Feedback documented. The municipal website
feedback documented

The municipal libraries

Municipal Youth Centre Hall
Municipal Main Office

Written submissions were received
from the Koksiad Rate Payers
Association and have been

documented under Section 4 o

)

above., -

i

Having performed the following tasks:

Reviewed and analysed the Annual Report;

Invited, received, and considered inputs from Councillors and Portfolio Committees,
on the Annual Report;

Considered the written and verbal comments received on the Annual Report from the
public consultation process;

Conducted Public Hearing fo allow the lecal community or any organs of state to make
representations on the Annual Report;

Received and considered Council's Audit Committee views and comments on the

annual financial statements and the performance report; and



= Prepared the Oversight Report, taking into consideration, the views and inputs of the

public, representatives of the Auditor-General, Council’s Audit Committee,

MPAC has pleasure in presenting the Oversight Report to Council for consideration and
approval.

7.1 COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS

1. That Council having fully considered the Annual Report of the Greater Kokstad Municipality
for the 2020/2021

Financial Year adopts the Oversight Report for the 2020/2021 Financial Year.

2. That Council approves the Annual Report of the Greater Kokstad Municipality for the
2020712021 Financial Year without reservations.

3. That the Oversight Report be made public in accordance with Section 129(3) of the
Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of 2003.

L CLDR/M. HLAKANYANA DATE

MPAC CHAIRPERSON
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